STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

M FUND, INC.

M International Equity Fund (MBEQX)

M Large Cap Growth Fund (MTCGX)

M Capital Appreciation Fund (MFCPX)

M Large Cap Value Fund (MBOVX)

May 1, 2024

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus. Much of the information contained in this SAI expands upon information discussed in the prospectus for M Fund, Inc. (the "Prospectus") and should, therefore, be read in conjunction with the Prospectus. To obtain a copy of the Prospectus with the same date as this SAI, write to M Fund, Inc. at M Financial Plaza, 1125 NW Couch Street, Suite 900, Portland, Oregon 97209, Attn: M Fund Administration, or call (888) 736-2878. You may also obtain copies of the Prospectus on the Internet at http://www.mfin.com/m-funds.

1

Financial statements are incorporated by reference into this SAI from the M Fund, Inc. annual report dated December 31, 2023.

Table of Contents

	Page
The Corporation and the Funds	3
Fund Policies	3
Investment Strategies and Risks	7
Management of the Funds	22
Investment Advisory and Other Services	29
Brokerage Allocation and Other Practices	40
Capital Stock and Other Securities	42
Control Persons and Principal Shareholders	42
Purchase, Redemption and Pricing of Shares	43
Federal Tax Status of the Funds	45
Other Information	48
Appendix A – Description of Proxy Voting Procedures	A-1

The Corporation and the Funds

M Fund, Inc. (the "Corporation") is an open-end management investment company established as a Maryland corporation on August 11, 1995. The Corporation consists of four separate investment portfolios or funds (each a "Fund" and, collectively, the "Funds"), each of which is, in effect, a separate mutual fund. Each Fund is an open-end management investment company and is diversified. The Corporation issues a separate class of stock for each Fund representing fractional undivided interests in that Fund. By investing in a Fund, an investor becomes entitled to a pro rata share of all dividends and distributions arising from the net income and capital gains on the investments of that Fund. Likewise, an investor shares pro rata in any losses of that Fund.

Pursuant to an investment advisory agreement and subject to the authority of the Corporation's board of directors (the "Board of Directors"), M Financial Investment Advisers, Inc. (the "Adviser") serves as the Corporation's investment adviser and conducts the business and affairs of the Corporation. The Adviser has engaged the following sub-advisers (each a "Sub-Adviser" and together, the "Sub-Advisers") to provide day-to-day portfolio management for the respective Funds:

Fund	<u>Sub-Adviser</u>
M International Equity Fund	Dimensional Fund Advisors LP
M Large Cap Growth Fund	DSM Capital Partners LLC
M Capital Appreciation Fund	Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC
M Large Cap Value Fund	Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC

The Corporation currently offers one or more classes of its stock to separate accounts of certain insurance companies (the "Participating Insurance Companies") as the underlying funding vehicles for certain variable life insurance and variable annuity policies (the "Policies") issued by the Participating Insurance Companies. The Corporation does not offer its stock directly to the general public. Each such separate account has a separate prospectus, which accompanies the prospectus for the Corporation, describing that separate account and the Policies. The prospectus for that separate account and the Policies, should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus.

Terms appearing, but not defined, in this SAI that are defined in the Prospectus have the same meaning in this SAI as in the Prospectus.

Fund Policies

Fundamental Restrictions

The following investment restrictions have been adopted by the Corporation as fundamental policies for the Funds. A fundamental policy is one that cannot be changed without the affirmative vote of "a majority of the outstanding voting securities" (as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act")) attributable to that Fund. The investment objective of each Fund and all other investment policies or practices of the Funds are considered by the Corporation not to be fundamental and accordingly may be changed by the Board of Directors without shareholder approval. See "Investment Objectives and Policies" in the Corporation's Prospectus. For purposes of the 1940 Act, "a majority of the outstanding voting securities" means the lesser of (a) 67% or more of the votes attributable to shares of the Fund present at a meeting, if the holders of more than 50% of such votes are present or represented by proxy, or (b) more than 50% of the votes attributable to shares of the Fund.

None of the Funds may:

1. Pledge, mortgage or hypothecate its assets, except to the extent necessary to secure permitted borrowings.

2. Purchase securities on margin, except for such short-term credits as are necessary for the clearance of transactions.

3. Underwrite securities issued by others, except to the extent that the sale of portfolio securities by a Fund may be deemed to be underwriting.

4. Purchase, hold or deal in real estate (including real estate limited partnerships) or oil, gas or mineral leases, although a Fund may purchase and sell securities that are secured by real estate or interests therein and may purchase mortgage-related securities (unless otherwise prohibited in these investment restrictions) and securities issued by real estate investment trusts and may hold and sell real estate acquired for the Fund as a result of the ownership of securities.

5. Invest in commodities.

6. Lend any money or other assets, except through the purchase of all or a portion of an issue of securities or obligations of the type in which the Fund may invest. However, a Fund may lend its portfolio securities in an amount not to exceed one-third of the value of its total assets, unless otherwise prohibited in these investment restrictions.

7. Issue any senior security (as such term is defined in Section 18(f) of the 1940 Act) except as otherwise permitted under these fundamental investment restrictions.

8. Alone or together with any other of the Funds, make investments for the purpose of exercising control over, or management of, any issuer.

9. Borrow money except from banks for temporary or short-term purposes and then only if the Fund maintains asset coverage of at least 300% for such borrowings. None of the Funds will purchase securities when such borrowings exceed 5% of its total assets.

10. Sell securities short or maintain a short position including short sales against the box.

11. Invest more than 25% of the value of its total assets in the securities of issuers conducting their principal business activities in the same industry. This limitation does not apply to U.S. government securities.

12. As to 75% of the value of its total assets, purchase the securities of any one issuer (except U.S. Government securities) if, as a result thereof, more than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets would be invested in securities of that issuer or if, as a result thereof, more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of that issuer would be owned by the Fund.

Non-Fundamental Restrictions

In addition to the fundamental investment restrictions mentioned above, the Board of Directors has adopted certain non-fundamental restrictions for each Fund as shown below. Non-fundamental restrictions represent the current intentions of the Board of Directors, and they differ from fundamental investment restrictions in that they may be changed or amended by the Board of Directors without prior notice to or approval of shareholders.

None of the Funds may:

1. Purchase the securities of any one issuer if, by such purchase, the Fund would own more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of that issuer.

2. Write call or put options (except for the M International Equity Fund).

3. Purchase variable-amount master demand notes, which are obligations that permit the investment of fluctuating amounts at varying rates of interest pursuant to direct arrangements between the lender and the borrower.

4. Purchase variable or floating-rate demand instruments, which are debt securities that include a variable or floating interest rate adjustment feature.

5. Purchase fixed-income investments (*e.g.*, corporate debt obligations, including commercial paper, but excluding convertible securities) that are unrated or rated at the time of purchase in the lower rating categories by S&P Global Ratings', a business unit of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC ("S&P") or Moody's (*i.e.*, ratings of BB or lower by S&P or Ba or lower by Moody's for corporate debt obligations and ratings below A-3 by S&P or Prime-3 by Moody's for commercial paper).

6. Invest in mortgage-backed securities, which represent direct or indirect participation in, or are collateralized by and payable from, mortgage loans secured by real property.

7. Invest in asset-backed securities, which represent participation in, or are secured by and payable from, assets such as motor vehicle installment sales, installment loan contracts, leases of various types of real and personal property, receivables from revolving credit (*i.e.*, credit card) agreements and other categories of receivables.

8. Invest in options or futures (except for the M International Equity Fund).

9. Invest in when-issued securities (or delayed-delivery or forward commitment contracts) (except for the M International Equity Fund).

10. Invest in interest-only ("IO") or principal only ("PO") securities. However, this does not preclude investments in zero coupon bonds.

Fund-Specific Restrictions:

11. The M International Equity Fund has adopted a non-fundamental investment policy, in accordance with Rule 35d-1 under the 1940 Act, to normally invest at least 80% of its total assets in equity securities of issuers located in at least three countries other than the United States. This strategy is not fundamental (it may be changed without shareholder approval), but should the Fund decide to change this strategy, it will provide shareholders with at least 60 days' notice.

12. The M Large Cap Growth Fund has adopted a non-fundamental investment policy, in accordance with Rule 35d-1 under the 1940 Act, to normally invest at least 80% of its total assets in U.S. large cap equity securities, including, but not limited to, common stocks, preferred stocks and American Depositary Receipts. This strategy is not fundamental (it may be changed without shareholder approval), but should the Fund decide to change this strategy, it will provide shareholders with at least 60 days' notice.

13. The M Large Cap Value Fund has adopted a non-fundamental investment policy, in accordance with Rule 35d-1 under the 1940 Act, to normally invest at least 80% of its total assets in the large capitalization segment of the U.S. stock market, including equity securities of U.S. issuers. This strategy is not fundamental (it may be changed without shareholder approval), but should the Fund decide to change this strategy, it will provide shareholders with at least 60 days' notice.

14. The M International Equity Fund and the M Large Cap Growth Fund may not purchase illiquid securities, including certain repurchase agreements or time deposits maturing in more than seven days (except securities offered and sold to "qualified institutional buyers" in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act, and except foreign securities offered and sold outside the United States), if, as a result thereof, more than 5% of the value of its total assets would be invested in assets that are either illiquid or are not readily marketable. The M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may not purchase illiquid securities.

15. The M International Equity Fund, the M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may not purchase restricted securities (except securities offered and sold to "qualified institutional buyers" in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act, and except foreign securities offered and sold outside the United States) if, as a result thereof, more than 10% of the value of its total assets would be invested in restricted securities.

16. The M Large Cap Growth Fund may invest no more than 20% of the value of its total assets in securities of companies that are organized under the laws of a foreign country and (i) are unlisted or listed primarily on a non-U.S. exchange or (ii) are listed on a U.S. exchange or over-the counter as a sponsored or unsponsored American Depositary Receipt ("Foreign Issuers").

17. The M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may invest no more than 15% of the value of their total assets in Foreign Issuers.

18. The M International Equity Fund may invest no more than 40% of the value of its total assets in emerging markets (including no more than 5% of its net asset value in Brady Bonds), calculated at the time of purchase.

19. The M Large Cap Growth Fund, the M Capital Appreciation Fund, and the M Large Cap Value Fund may invest no more than 5% of their net asset value in Brady Bonds.

20. The M International Equity Fund may not invest in warrants or rights (other than those acquired in units or otherwise attached to other securities) if, as a result thereof, more than 10% of the value of its total assets would be invested in warrants or rights, and the Fund may not invest more than 5% of its total assets, calculated at the time of purchase, in warrants or rights that are not listed on the New York Stock Exchange or the NYSE American. The M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may not invest in warrants or rights (other than those acquired in units or otherwise attached to other securities) if, as a result thereof, more than 5% of the value of its total assets would be invested in warrants or rights, and each may not invest more than 2% of its total assets, calculated at the time of purchase, in warrants or rights that are not listed on the New York Stock Exchange or the NYSE American. The M Stock Exchange or the NYSE American assets would be invested in warrants or rights, and each may not invest more than 2% of its total assets, calculated at the time of purchase, in warrants or rights that are not listed on the New York Stock Exchange or the NYSE American. The M Large Cap Growth Fund may not invest in warrants or rights.

21. Under normal circumstances, the M International Equity Fund, the M Large Cap Growth Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund will not enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts with respect to more than 5% of their assets.

Interpretive Rules

For purposes of the foregoing fundamental and non-fundamental restrictions, any restriction will be deemed to be violated to the extent an acquisition, encumbrance or sale of securities or assets of, or borrowings by, a Fund causes the Fund to exceed or fall short of the stated limitations. Market fluctuations that cause a Fund to exceed or fall short of a stated limitation (except with respect to borrowings) will not be deemed to cause the Fund to violate a restriction. In addition, with regard to exceptions recited in a restriction, a Fund may only rely on an exception if its investment objective or policies otherwise permit it to rely on the exception.

Temporary Defensive Positions

Each Fund may depart from its normal strategies by taking temporary defensive positions in response to adverse market, economic, political or other conditions. When a Fund takes a temporary defensive position, it may invest all or a substantial portion of its assets in U.S. and Foreign Government securities, money market funds, securities, debt instruments, futures or options on futures, or cash. During these times, a Fund may not achieve its investment goals.

Investment Strategies and Risks

Investments

Some or all of the Funds may utilize the following investment techniques or make the following types of investments, subject to the restrictions set forth above. To the extent permitted by federal law, investments of any cash invested or reinvested under the securities lending program are exempt from the restrictions set forth in this SAI.

- Common and Preferred Stocks
- Foreign Government Obligations
- Depositary Receipts
- Short-Term Bank and Corporate Obligations

Foreign Investments

Each of the Funds may invest in securities of Foreign Issuers. The M Large Cap Growth Fund may invest up to 20% of the value of its total assets in securities of Foreign Issuers and the M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may invest up to 15% of the value of their total assets in securities of Foreign Issuers. The M International Equity Fund may invest in securities denominated or quoted in a currency other than the U.S. dollar ("non-dollar denominated securities"). The M Capital Appreciation Fund and the M Large Cap Value Fund may not invest in any foreign government securities.

Risks Related to Foreign Investments. Investments in the securities of Foreign Issuers, or in non-dollar denominated securities, may present potential benefits and risks not associated with investments solely in securities of domestic issuers or U.S. dollar-denominated securities. Because investments in Foreign Issuers may involve currencies of foreign countries, because a Fund may temporarily hold funds in bank deposits in foreign currencies during completion of investment programs, and because a Fund may be subject to currency exposure independent of its securities positions, the Fund may be affected favorably or unfavorably by changes in currency rates and in exchange control regulations and may incur costs in connection with conversions between various currencies.

Foreign investment markets also have different clearance and settlement procedures, and in certain markets there may be times when settlements may be unable to keep pace with the volume of transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. Communications between the United States and foreign countries may be slower or less reliable than within the United States, thus increasing the risk of delayed settlements of portfolio transactions or loss of certificates for portfolio securities.

Investing in non-dollar denominated securities or in the securities of Foreign Issuers involves significant risks that are not typically associated with investing in U.S. dollar-denominated securities or in securities of domestic issuers. Such investments may be affected by changes in currency rates, changes in foreign or U.S. laws or restrictions applicable to such investments and in exchange control regulations (*e.g.*, currency blockage). Some foreign stock markets may have substantially less volume than, for example, the New York Stock Exchange, and securities of some Foreign Issuers may be less liquid than securities of comparable domestic issuers. Commissions and dealer mark-ups on transactions in foreign investments may be higher than for similar transactions in the United States. In addition, clearance and settlement procedures may be different in foreign countries and, in certain markets, on certain occasions, such procedures may be unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, thus making it difficult to conduct such transactions. For example, delays in settlement could result in temporary periods when a portion of the assets of a Fund is uninvested and no return is earned thereon. The inability of a Fund to make intended investments due to settlement problems could cause it to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of portfolio securities or other investments due to settlement problems could result either in losses to a Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio investment or, if the Fund has entered into a contract to sell the investment, could result in possible liability to the purchaser.

Foreign Issuers may not be subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards comparable to those applicable to domestic companies. There may be less publicly available information about a Foreign Issuer than about a domestic one. In addition, there is generally less government regulation of stock exchanges, brokers, and listed and unlisted issuers in foreign countries than in the United States. Furthermore, with respect to certain foreign countries, there is a possibility of expropriation or confiscatory taxation, imposition of withholding taxes on dividend or interest payments, limitations on the removal of funds or other assets of a Fund, or political or social instability or diplomatic developments which could affect investments in those countries. Individual foreign economies also may differ favorably or unfavorably from the United States economy in such respects as growth of gross national product, rate of inflation, capital reinvestment and resource self-sufficiency.

It is also possible that the U.S., other nations or other governmental entities (including supranational entities) could impose sanctions against issuers in various sectors of certain foreign countries. This could limit a Fund's investment opportunities in such countries, impairing the Fund's ability to invest in accordance with its investment strategy and/or to meet its investment objective. In addition, an imposition of sanctions upon such issuers could result in an immediate freeze of the issuers' securities, impairing the ability of a Fund to buy, sell, receive or deliver those securities. Further, current sanctions or the threat of potential sanctions may also impair the value or liquidity of affected securities and negatively impact a Fund.

Europe and United Kingdom Risk. The European financial markets have continued to experience volatility because of concerns about economic downturns and about high and rising government debt levels of several countries in the European Union ("EU") and Europe generally. These events have adversely affected the exchange rate of the Euro and the European securities markets, and may spread to other countries in Europe, including countries that do not use the Euro. These events may affect the value and liquidity of certain of the Fund's investments. Responses to the financial problems by EU governments, central banks and others, including austerity measures and reforms, may not work, may result in social unrest and may limit future growth and economic recovery or have other unintended consequences. Further defaults or restructurings by governments and others of their debt could have additional adverse effects on economies, financial markets and asset valuations around the world.

As the EU may grow in size or number of members with the addition or announced candidacies of new member countries, the candidate countries' accessions may become more controversial to the existing EU members. Some member states may repudiate certain candidate countries joining the EU upon concerns about the possible economic, immigration and cultural implications. Also, Russia may be opposed to the expansion of the EU to members of the former Soviet bloc and may, at times, take actions that could negatively impact EU economic activity.

The United Kingdom (the "U.K.") left the EU on January 31, 2020, in a process now commonly referred to as "Brexit." Certain aspects of the relationship between the U.K. and EU remain unresolved and subject to further negotiation and agreement. As such, there remains uncertainty as to the scope, nature and terms of the relationship between the U.K. and the EU and the long-term effect and implications of Brexit.

Secessionist movements, such as the Catalan movement in Spain and the independence movement in Scotland, as well as governmental or other responses to such movements, may also create instability and uncertainty in the region. In addition, the national politics of countries in the EU have been unpredictable and subject to influence by disruptive political groups and ideologies. The governments of EU countries may be subject to change and such countries may experience social and political unrest. Unanticipated or sudden political or social developments may result in sudden and significant investment losses. The occurrence of terrorist incidents throughout Europe could also impact financial markets. The impact of these events is not clear but could be significant and far-reaching and could adversely affect the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments.

Foreign Currency Transactions. Because investment in Foreign Issuers will usually involve currencies of foreign countries, and because the Funds may be exposed to currency exposure independent of their securities positions, the value of the assets of the Funds invested in Foreign Issuers as measured in U.S. dollars will be affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. To the extent that a Fund's assets consist of investments denominated in a particular currency, the Fund's exposure to adverse developments affecting the value of such currency will increase.

Currency exchange rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time causing, along with other factors, a Fund's net asset value to fluctuate as well and may make the return on an investment increase or decrease unrelated to the quality or performance of the investment itself. Currency exchange rates generally are determined by the forces of supply and demand in the foreign exchange markets and the relative merits of investments in different countries, actual or anticipated changes in interest rates and other complex factors, as seen from an international perspective. Currency exchange rates also can be affected unpredictably by intervention by U.S. or foreign governments or central banks, or the failure to intervene, or by currency controls or political developments in the U.S. or abroad. To the extent that a substantial portion of a Fund's total assets, adjusted to reflect the Fund's net position after giving effect to currency transactions, is denominated in the currencies of foreign countries, the Fund will be more susceptible to the risk of adverse economic and political developments within those countries.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts. The M International Equity Fund in the sole discretion of its Sub-Adviser may, but is not obligated under any circumstances to, enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts in order to attempt to protect against uncertainty in the level of future foreign currency exchange rates in connection with settling trades. A forward foreign currency exchange contract involves an obligation to purchase or sell a specific currency at a future date, which may be any fixed number of days from the date of the contract agreed upon by the parties, at a price set at the time of the contract. These contracts are traded in the interbank market conducted directly between currency traders (usually large commercial banks) and their customers. A forward contract generally has no deposit requirement, and no commissions are generally charged at any stage for trades.

At the maturity of a forward contract the Fund may accept or make delivery of the currency specified in the contract or, at or prior to maturity, enter into a closing purchase transaction involving the purchase or sale of an offsetting contract. Closing purchase transactions with respect to forward contracts are usually effected with the currency trader who is a party to the original forward contract.

The M International Equity Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts in several circumstances. When the M International Equity Fund enters into a contract for the purchase or sale of a security denominated or noted in a foreign currency, or when it anticipates the receipt in a foreign currency of dividend or interest payments on such a security that it holds, it may desire to "lock in" the U.S. dollar price of the security or the U.S. dollar equivalent of such dividend or interest payment, as the case may be. By entering into a forward contract for the purchase or sale, for a fixed amount of dollars, of the amount of foreign currency involved in the underlying transactions, the M International Equity Fund will attempt to protect itself against an adverse change in the relationship between the U.S. dollar and the subject foreign currency during the period between the date on which the security is purchased or sold, or on which the dividend or interest payment is declared, and the date on which such payments are made or received.

The M International Equity Fund intends to enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts in compliance with its policies and procedures adopted pursuant to Rule 18f-4 (the "Derivatives Rule"), as that rule is further described below in the section "Derivatives Rule". Although the contracts are not presently regulated by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC"), the CFTC may in the future assert authority to regulate these contracts. In such event, the M International Equity Fund's ability to utilize forward foreign currency exchange contracts may be restricted.

While the M International Equity Fund may enter into forward contracts to reduce currency exchange rate risks, transactions in such contracts involve certain other risks. Thus, while the M International Equity Fund may benefit from such transactions, unanticipated changes in currency prices may result in a poorer overall performance for the M International Equity Fund than if it had not engaged in any such transactions. Moreover, there may be an imperfect correlation between the M International Equity Fund's portfolio holdings of securities denominated in a particular currency and forward contracts entered into by the M International Equity Fund. Such imperfect correlation may cause the M International Equity Fund to sustain losses, which may prevent it from achieving a complete hedge or expose the M International Equity Fund to risk of foreign exchange loss. Additionally, the market in forward foreign currency exchange contracts offers less protection against defaults by the other party to such instruments than is available for currency instruments traded on an exchange.

Forward contracts are subject to the risk that the counterparty to such contract will default on its obligations. Since a forward foreign currency exchange contract is not guaranteed by an exchange or clearinghouse, a default on the contract would deprive the M International Equity Fund of unrealized profits, transaction costs or expected benefits of a currency hedge or force the M International Equity Fund to cover its purchase or sale commitments, if any, at the current market price. The M International Equity Fund will not enter into such transactions unless the credit quality of the unsecured senior debt or the claims-paying ability of the counterparty is considered to be investment grade by the Sub-Adviser.

Investments in Depositary Receipts. Many securities of Foreign Issuers are represented by Depositary Receipts.

Subject to the restrictions set forth above, each of the Funds may invest in American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"). ADRs represent the right to receive securities of Foreign Issuers deposited in a domestic bank or a foreign correspondent bank. Prices of ADRs are quoted in U.S. dollars, and ADRs are traded in the United States on exchanges or over-the-counter and are sponsored or unsponsored and issued by domestic banks. ADRs do not eliminate all the risk inherent in investing in the securities of Foreign Issuers. To the extent that a Fund acquires ADRs through banks that do not have a contractual relationship with the Foreign Issuer of the security underlying the ADR to issue and service such ADRs (*i.e.*, unsponsored programs), there may be an increased possibility that the Fund would not become aware of and be able to respond to corporate actions such as stock splits or rights offerings involving the Foreign Issuer in a timely manner. The issuers of depositary receipts may discontinue issuing new depositary receipts and withdraw existing depositary receipts at any time, which may result in costs and delays in the distribution of the underlying assets to the Fund. In addition, the lack of information may result in inefficiencies in the valuation of such instruments. However, by investing in ADRs rather than directly in the stock of Foreign Issuers, a Fund will avoid currency risks during the settlement period for purchases and sales. In general, there is a large, liquid market in the United States for ADRs quoted on a national securities exchange or on the NASDAQ National Market. The information available for ADRs is subject to the accounting, auditing and financial reporting Issuers may be subject.

In addition to ADRs, the M International Equity Fund may invest in European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs"), International Depositary Receipts ("IDRs"), and Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs"), which are receipts evidencing an arrangement with a bank similar to that for ADRs and are designed for use in the foreign securities markets. EDRs, IDRs, and GDRs are not necessarily quoted in the same currency as the underlying security.

Emerging Market Securities

The M International Equity Fund may invest up to 40% of its total assets, measured at the time of purchase, in emerging markets, which may include countries or regions with relatively low gross national product per capita compared to the world's major economies, countries or regions with the potential for rapid economic growth, or countries or regions at an earlier stage of development compared to the world's major economies. With respect to the M International Equity Fund, emerging market securities include (i) securities of companies that are organized under the laws of, or maintain their principal place of business in, an emerging market country; (ii) securities for which the principal trading market is in an emerging market country; (iii) securities issued or guaranteed by the government of an emerging market country, its agencies or instrumentalities, or the central bank of such country or territory; (iv) securities of companies that derive at least 50% of their revenues or profits from goods produced or sold, investments made, or services performed in an emerging market country or have at least 50% of their assets in an emerging market country; (v) equity securities of companies in emerging market countries in the form of depositary shares; (vi) securities of pooled investment vehicles that invest primarily in securities of emerging market countries or derivative instruments that derive their value from securities of emerging market country; or (vii) securities included in the M International Equity Fund's benchmark index.

Risks Related to Emerging Market Securities. The risks of investing in foreign securities may be intensified in the case of investments in emerging markets. Securities of many issuers in emerging markets may be less liquid and more volatile than securities of comparable domestic issuers. Emerging markets also have different clearance and settlement procedures, and in certain markets there may be times when settlements may be unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. Delays in settlement could result in temporary periods when a portion of the assets of a Fund is uninvested and no return is earned on the assets. The inability of a Fund to make intended security purchases due to settlement problems could cause the Fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of portfolio securities due to settlement problems could result either in losses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security or, if the Fund has entered into a contract to sell the security, in possible liability to the purchaser. Certain markets may require payment for securities before delivery.

Securities prices in emerging markets can be significantly more volatile than in the more developed nations of the world, reflecting the greater uncertainties of investing in less established markets and economies. In particular, countries with emerging markets may have relatively unstable governments, present the risk of nationalization of businesses, restrictions on foreign ownership, or prohibitions on repatriation of assets, and may have less protection of property rights than more developed countries. The economies of countries with emerging markets may be predominantly based on only a few industries, may be highly vulnerable to changes in local or global trade conditions, and may suffer from extreme and volatile debt burdens or inflation rates. Local securities markets may trade a small number of securities and may be unable to respond effectively to increases in trading volume, potentially making prompt liquidation of substantial holdings difficult or impossible at times. Securities of issuers located in countries with emerging markets may have limited marketability and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements.

Certain emerging markets may require governmental approval for the repatriation of investment income, capital or the proceeds of sales of securities by foreign investors. In addition, if deterioration occurs in an emerging market's balance of payments or for other reasons, a country could impose temporary restrictions on foreign capital remittances. The Fund could be adversely affected by delays in, or a refusal to grant, any required governmental approval for repatriation of capital, as well as by the application to the Fund of any restrictions on investments.

Investing in Small-Capitalization Companies

All of the Funds may invest in small-capitalization companies. Small capitalization companies have historically offered greater growth potential than larger ones, but they are often overlooked by investors.

Risks Related to Small-Capitalization Companies. Small capitalization companies often have limited product lines, markets or financial and managerial resources and may be dependent on one person or a few key persons for management. Investing in securities of smaller, lesser-known companies involves greater risks than investing in larger, more mature, better known issuers (such as those included in the S&P 500), including an increased possibility of portfolio price volatility. Historically, small-capitalization stocks and stocks of recently organized companies have been more volatile in price than larger capitalization stocks. Among the reasons for the greater price volatility of the stocks of these smaller companies are less certain growth prospects of smaller companies, a lower degree of liquidity in the markets for such stocks, and a greater sensitivity of smaller companies to changing economic conditions. The stock prices of smaller companies may fluctuate independently of larger company stock prices. Thus, small company stocks may decline in price as large company stock prices rise, or rise in price as large company stock prices decline.

Recently Organized Companies and IPOs. Investments in recently organized companies and in many initial public offerings ("IPOs") have the same risks as investments in small capitalization companies, but to a greater degree, including the risk of significant price fluctuations over short periods of time.

Liquidity Risk Management

Many factors may influence the price at which a Fund could sell an investment at a given time. Investments are subject to liquidity risk when they are difficult to purchase or sell under favorable conditions. Investments in certain securities or other assets may be particularly subject to liquidity risk. A Fund's ability to sell an instrument may be negatively impacted as a result of various market events or circumstances or characteristics of the particular instrument. In addition, market participants attempting to sell the same or similar instruments at the same time as the relevant Fund may increase such Fund's exposure to liquidity risk. Investments in less liquid or illiquid investments may reduce the returns of the Fund because it may be unable to sell the investments at an advantageous time or price. Thus, a Fund may be forced to accept a lower sale price for the security, sell other investments or forego another more attractive investment opportunity. Liquid investments purchased by a Fund may subsequently become less liquid or illiquid, and harder to value.

Pursuant to Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act, a Fund may not acquire any "illiquid investment" if, immediately after the acquisition, the relevant Fund would have invested more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. An "illiquid investment" is any investment that a Fund reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment. The Corporation has implemented a written liquidity risk management program and related procedures ("Liquidity Program") that is reasonably designed to assess and manage each Fund's "liquidity risk" (defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") as the risk that a Fund could not meet requests to redeem shares issued by the relevant Fund without significant dilution of remaining investors' interests in such Fund). The Board has designated a committee comprised of the Corporation's Administrator, the Corporation's Treasurer and the Corporation's CCO (the "LRMP Administrator") to serve as the administrator of the Liquidity Program and the related procedures. As part of the Liquidity Program, the LRMP Administrator is responsible for identifying illiquid investments and categorizing the relative liquidity risk, and is responsible to make periodic reports to the Board and the SEC or gearding the liquidity of a Fund's investments, and to notify the Board and the SEC of certain liquidity events specified in Rule 22e-4. The liquidity of a Fund's portfolio investment is determined based on a number of factors including, but not limited to, relevant the LRMP Administrator will use its best efforts to remedy the situation as promptly as practicable under the circumstances. Under certain circumstances, the Fund's holdings in illiquid securities exceed 15%.

Securities Lending

All Funds may seek to increase their income by lending portfolio securities. Under present regulatory policies, such loans may be made to institutions, such as certain broker-dealers, and are required to be secured continuously by collateral in cash (U.S. currency) or non-cash (U.S. Treasuries and Agencies) maintained on a current basis at an amount at least equal to the market value of the securities loaned. The collateral may be invested in repurchase agreements, money market funds, and other short-term obligations, subject to the restrictions of the 1940 Act. The amount of such collateral investment may be substantial. The Corporation has a Securities Lending Agreement with its custodian bank, State Street Bank and Trust Company ("State Street") pursuant to which State Street manages the securities lending on behalf of the Funds. The value of securities loaned will not exceed one-third of the value of the total assets of the Fund making the loan.

To the extent permitted by federal law, investments of any cash invested or reinvested under the securities lending program are exempt from the restrictions set forth in the Corporation's Prospectus and this SAI.

Risks Related to Securities Lending. Securities lending typically involves counterparty risk, including the risk that a borrower may not provide additional collateral when required or return the loaned securities in a timely manner. This risk could be greater for foreign securities. In the Funds' securities lending program, the counterparty risk related to borrowers not providing additional collateral or returning loaned securities in a timely manner is borne by the securities lending agent, which has indemnified the Fund against losses resulting from these risks. However, the Fund may lose money from lending securities (or the amounts earned from securities lending may be limited) if, for example, the value or return of its investments of the cash collateral declines below the amount owed to a borrower.

Cash received as collateral through loan transactions may be invested in other eligible securities, including shares of a money market fund. Investing cash subjects the investment, as well as the securities loaned, to market appreciation or depreciation.

Derivatives Rule

The Derivatives Rule regulates the ability of a fund to enter into derivative transactions and other leveraged transactions. The Derivatives Rule defines the term "derivatives" to include short sales and forward contracts, in addition to instruments traditionally classified as derivatives, such as swaps, futures, and options. The Derivatives Rule also regulates other types of leveraged transactions, such as reverse repurchase agreements. Under the Derivatives Rule, a fund is prohibited from entering into derivatives transactions except in reliance on the provisions of the Derivatives Rule. Based on its derivatives usage, the M International Equity Fund qualifies as a "limited derivatives user," which the Derivatives Rule defines as a fund that limits its derivatives exposure to 10% of its net assets. As such, M International Equity Fund is required to, and has, adopted and implemented polices reasonably designed to manage its derivatives risks.

Futures Contracts

The discussion below relates to both the M International Equity Fund itself and the Underlying Fund in which it invests.

The M International Equity Fund and the Underlying Fund may purchase or sell futures contracts and options on futures contracts for equity securities and indices to increase or decrease market exposure based on actual or expected cash inflows to or outflows from the Fund or Underlying Fund. The Fund intends to enter into futures contracts in compliance with its policies and procedures adopted pursuant to the Derivatives Rule.

Futures contracts provide for the future sale by one party and purchase by another party of a specified amount of defined securities at a specified future time and at a specified price. Futures contracts that are standardized as to maturity date and underlying financial instrument are traded on national futures exchanges. The Fund or Underlying Fund will be required to make a margin deposit in cash or government securities with a futures commission merchant (an "FCM") to initiate and maintain positions in futures contracts. Minimal initial margin requirements are established by the futures exchanges and FCMs may establish margin requirements which are higher than the exchange requirements. The Fund or Underlying Fund also will incur brokerage costs in connection with entering into futures contracts. After a futures contract position is opened, the value of the contract is marked-to-market daily. If the futures contract price changes to the extent that the margin on deposit does not satisfy margin requirements, payment of additional "variation" margin to be held by the FCM will be required. Conversely, a reduction in the required margin would result in excess margin that can be refunded to the custodial accounts of the Fund or Underlying Fund. Variation margin payments may be made to and from the futures broker for as long as the contract remains open. The Fund or Underlying Fund expects to earn income on its margin deposits.

At any time prior to the expiration of a futures contract, the Fund or Underlying Fund may elect to close the position by taking an opposite position, which will operate to terminate its existing position in the contract. Positions in futures contracts may be closed out only on the exchange on which they were entered into (or through a linked exchange). No secondary market for such contracts exists. Although the Fund or Underlying Fund may enter into futures contracts only if there is an active market for such contracts, there is no assurance that an active market will exist for any particular futures contract at any specific time. Most futures exchanges limit the amount of fluctuation permitted in futures contract prices during a single trading day. Once the daily limit has been reached in a particular contract, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond that limit or trading may be suspended for specified periods during the day. It is possible that futures contract prices could move to the daily limit for several consecutive trading days with little or no trading, thereby preventing prompt liquidation of futures positions at an advantageous price and subjecting the Fund or Underlying Fund to substantial losses. In such event, and in the event of adverse price movements, the Fund or Underlying Fund would be required to make daily cash payments of variation margin. In such situations, if the Fund or Underlying Fund had insufficient cash, it might have to sell securities to meet daily variation margin requirements at a time when it would be disadvantageous to do so. In addition, if the transaction is entered into for hedging purposes, in such circumstances the Fund or Underlying Fund may realize a loss on a futures contract or option that is not offset by an increase in the value of the hedged position. Losses incurred in futures transactions and the costs of these transactions will affect the performance of the Fund or Underlying Fund.

When-Issued Securities, Delayed Delivery, and Forward Commitment Transactions

The M International Equity Fund and its Underlying Fund may purchase eligible securities or sell securities it is entitled to receive on a when-issued basis. When purchasing securities on a when-issued basis, the price or yield is agreed to at the time of purchase, but the payment and settlement dates are not fixed until the securities are issued. It is possible that the securities will never be issued and the commitment cancelled. In addition, the Fund and the Underlying Fund may purchase or sell eligible securities for delayed delivery or on a forward commitment basis where the Fund or Underlying Fund contracts to purchase or sell such securities at a fixed price at a future date beyond the normal settlement time. The Fund and Underlying Fund may renegotiate a commitment or sell a security it has committed to purchase prior to the settlement date, if deemed advisable.

While the payment obligation and, if applicable, interest rate are set at the time the Fund or Underlying Fund enters into a when-issued, delayed delivery, to-be-announced or forward commitment transaction, no interest or dividends accrue to the purchaser prior to the settlement date. In addition, the value of a security purchased or sold is subject to market fluctuations and may be worth more or less on the settlement date than the price the Fund or Underlying Fund committed to pay or receive for the security. The Fund or Underlying Fund will lose money if the value of a purchased security falls below the purchase price and the Fund or Underlying Fund will not benefit from the gain if a security sold appreciates above the sales price during the commitment period.

When entering into a commitment to purchase a security on a when-issued, delayed delivery, to-be-announced or forward commitment basis, the Fund or Underlying Fund will comply with the Derivatives Rule. Under the Derivatives Rule, transactions made on a when-issued, delayed delivery, to-be-announced or forward commitment basis will not be deemed to involve a "senior security" so long as the Fund intends to physically settle the transaction within 35 days of the trade date.

Exchange Traded Funds

The M International Equity Fund and the Underlying Fund may also invest in exchange traded funds ("ETFs") and similarly structured pooled investments for the purpose of gaining exposure to the equity markets while maintaining liquidity. An ETF is an investment company classified as an openend investment company or unit investment trust that is traded similar to a publicly traded company. ETFs may be actively managed based on a particular strategy or passively managed to track or replicate a particular index. The ETFs in which the Funds invest are passively managed. The risks and costs of investing in ETFs are comparable to investing in a publicly traded company. The goal of a passively managed ETF is to correspond generally to the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of its underlying index. The risk of not correlating to the index is an additional risk to the investors in passive ETFs. When the Fund invests in an ETF, shareholders of the Fund bear their proportionate share of the underlying ETF's fees and expenses.

Other Investment Companies

Each Fund (except the M International Equity Fund) may invest up to 10% of the value of its total assets, calculated at the time of purchase, in the securities of other investment companies including business development companies, and small business investment companies (although it is anticipated that such investments will not exceed 5% of total assets). Each Fund (except the M International Equity Fund) may not invest more than 5% of its total assets in the securities of any one investment company nor in more than 3% of the voting securities of any other investment company. The above percentage limits do not apply to (i) investments in money market funds for short-term cash management or (ii) the investment of securities lending collateral. Subject to certain conditions, as described in Rule 12d1-4, such as entering into a fund of funds investment agreement, the Funds may exceed the percentage limits enumerated above.

Subject to certain limitations under the 1940 Act, the M International Equity Fund may invest up to 100% of the value of its total assets, calculated at the time of purchase, in the securities of other investment companies (although it is anticipated that such investments will not generally exceed 50% of the value of its total assets under normal circumstances). Each Fund will indirectly bear its proportionate share of any advisory and other fees paid by investment companies in which it invests, in addition to the management fees paid by such Fund.

Certain types of investment companies, such as closed-end investment companies, issue a fixed number of shares that trade on a stock exchange or over-the-counter at a premium or a discount to their net asset value per share (NAV). Others are continuously offered at NAV, but may also be traded in the secondary market.

The extent to which a Fund can invest in securities of other investment companies is limited by federal securities law.

Risks Related to Investments in Other Investment Companies. Investing in other investment companies involves substantially the same risks as investing directly in the underlying instruments, but may involve additional expenses at the investment company-level, such as portfolio management fees and operating expenses.

Commodity Pool Operator Exemption

The Funds are not deemed to be "commodity pool operators" under the Commodity Exchange Act and are not subject to registration or regulation as such under the Commodity Exchange Act. The Adviser has claimed an exclusion from registration as a "commodity pool operator" with respect to its service as investment adviser to the Funds pursuant to a claim for exclusion filed with the National Futures Association with respect to each Fund under CFTC Rule 4.5, as of the date of this SAI. The Funds intend to limit their investments in commodity interests so as to remain exempt commodity pools.

Cybersecurity

Risks Related to Cybersecurity. Intentional cybersecurity breaches of the Funds could include: unauthorized access to systems, networks or devices (such as through "hacking" activity), infection from computer viruses or other malicious software code, and attacks that shut down, disable, slow, or otherwise disrupt operations, business processes, or website access or functionality. In addition, unintentional incidents can occur, such as the inadvertent release of confidential information (possibly resulting in the violation of applicable privacy laws). A cybersecurity breach could result in the loss or theft of customer data or funds, the inability to access electronic systems ("denial of services"), loss or theft of proprietary information or corporate data, physical damage to a computer or network system, or costs associated with system repairs. Such incidents could cause a Fund, the Adviser, or other service providers to incur regulatory penalties, litigation expenses, reputational damage, additional compliance costs, or significant financial loss. Work from home arrangements by the Funds, the Adviser, the Sub-Advisers or their service providers could increase all of the above risks, create additional data and information accessibility concerns, and make the Funds, the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser or their service providers susceptible to operational disruptions. In addition, such incidents could affect issuers in which a Fund invests, and thereby cause the Fund's investments to lose value.

Economic and Market Events

Risks Related to Economic and Market Events. Economic events historically have resulted, and may in the future result, in an unusually high degree of volatility in the financial markets, both domestic and foreign. These events have included bankruptcies, corporate restructurings, and similar events; governmental efforts to limit short selling and high frequency trading; measures to address U.S. federal and state budget deficits; bank failures; social, political, and economic instability in Europe and other countries; economic stimulus by the Japanese central bank; dramatic changes in energy prices and currency exchange rates; China's economic slowdown; and regional armed conflict, such as the war between Russia and Ukraine and the war between Israel and Hamas. Interconnected global economies and financial markets increase the possibility that conditions in one country or region might adversely impact issuers in a different country or region. Both domestic and foreign equity markets have experienced increased volatility and turmoil, with issuers that have exposure to the real estate, mortgage, and credit markets particularly affected. Financial institutions could suffer losses as interest rates rise or economic conditions deteriorate.

In addition, relatively high market volatility and reduced liquidity in credit and fixed-income markets may adversely affect many issuers worldwide. Actions taken by the U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) or foreign central banks to stimulate or stabilize economic growth, such as interventions in currency markets, could cause high volatility in the equity and fixed-income markets. Reduced liquidity may result in less money being available to purchase raw materials, goods, and services from emerging markets, which may, in turn, bring down the prices of these economic staples. It may also result in emerging market issuers having more difficulty obtaining financing, which may, in turn, cause a decline in their securities prices.

Beginning in March 2022, the Fed began progressively increasing interest rates. As a result, risks associated with high interest rates are currently heightened. It is difficult to accurately predict the pace at which the Fed will increase interest rates any further, or the timing, frequency or magnitude of any such increases, and the evaluation of macro-economic and other conditions could cause a change in approach in the future. Any such increases generally will cause market interest rates to rise and could cause the value of a Fund's investments, and the Fund's net asset value (NAV), to decline, potentially suddenly and significantly. As a result, a Fund may experience high redemptions and increased portfolio turnover, which could increase the costs that the Fund incurs and may negatively impact the Fund's performance.

In addition, as the Fed increases the target Fed Funds Rate, any such increases, among other factors, could cause markets to experience continuing high volatility. A significant increase in interest rates may cause a decline in the market for equity securities. These events and the possible resulting market volatility may have an adverse effect on a Fund.

Political turmoil within the U.S. and abroad may also impact a Fund. Although the U.S. government has honored its credit obligations, it remains possible that the U.S. could default on its obligations. While it is impossible to predict the consequences of such an unprecedented event, it is likely that a default by the U.S. would be highly disruptive to the U.S. and global securities markets and could significantly impair the value of a Fund's investments. Similarly, political events within the U.S. at times have resulted, and may in the future result, in a shutdown of government services, which could negatively affect the U.S. economy, decrease the value of a Fund's investments, and increase uncertainty in or impair the operation of the U.S. or other securities markets. In recent years, the U.S. renegotiated many of its global trade relationships and imposed or threatened to impose significant import tariffs. Such actions could lead to price volatility and overall declines in U.S. and global investment markets.

There is a risk that the present value of assets or income from investments will be less in the future as rising prices (inflation) reduce their purchasing power. Inflation rates may change frequently and drastically as a result of various factors, including unexpected shifts in the domestic or global economy, and a Fund's investments may be affected, which may reduce the Fund's performance. While overshadowed by recent rapid inflation, there is also a risk that the prices of goods and services in the U.S. and many foreign economies may decline over time (deflation). Deflation may have an adverse effect on stock prices and creditworthiness and may make defaults on debt more likely. If a country's economy slips into a deflationary pattern, it could last for a prolonged period and may be difficult to reverse. Historically, securities issued in emerging and frontier markets have been subject to a greater risk of inflationary or deflationary forces, and more developed markets have been better able to use monetary policy to normalize markets.

Risks Related to Russia's Invasion of Ukraine. In late February 2022, Russia launched a large scale military attack on Ukraine. The invasion significantly amplified already existing geopolitical tensions among Russia, Ukraine, Europe, NATO and the West, including the U.S. In response to the military action by Russia, various countries, including the U.S., the United Kingdom, and EU issued broad-ranging economic sanctions against Russia. Such sanctions included, among other things, a prohibition on doing business with certain Russian companies, large financial institutions, officials and oligarchs; a commitment by certain countries and the EU to remove selected Russian banks from the Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunications ("SWIFT"), the electronic banking network that connects banks globally; and restrictive measures to prevent the Russian Central Bank from undermining the impact of the sanctions. Additional sanctions may be imposed in the future. Such sanctions (and any future sanctions) and other actions against Russia may adversely impact, among other things, the Russian economy and various sectors of the economy, including but not limited to, financials, energy, metals and mining, engineering and defense and defense-related materials sectors; result in a decline in the value and liquidity of Russian securities and/or other assets; and have other adverse consequences on the Russian government, economy, companies and region. Further, several large corporations and U.S. states have divested interests or otherwise curtailed business dealings with certain Russian businesses. Countermeasures or retaliatory actions by Russia may further impair the value and liquidity of Russian securities.

The ramifications of the hostilities and sanctions, however, may not be limited to Russia and Russian companies but may spill over to and negatively impact other regional and global economic markets of the World (including Europe and the United States), companies in other countries (particularly those that have done business with Russia) and on various sectors, industries and markets for securities and commodities globally, such as oil and natural gas. Accordingly, the actions discussed above and the potential for a wider conflict could increase financial market volatility, cause severe negative effects on regional and global economic markets, industries, and companies and have a negative effect on a Fund's investments and performance beyond any direct or indirect exposure a Fund may have to Russian issuers or those of adjoining geographic regions. In addition, Russia may take retaliatory actions and other countermeasures, including cyberattacks and espionage against other countries and companies in the World, which may negatively impact such countries and the companies in which the Fund invests. Accordingly, there may be heightened risk of cyberattacks which may result in, among other things, disruptions in the functioning and operations of industries or companies around the World, including in the United States and Europe.

The extent and duration of the military action or future escalation of such hostilities, the extent and impact of existing and any future sanctions, market disruptions and volatility, and the result of any diplomatic negotiations cannot be predicted. These and any related events could have a significant negative impact on Fund performance and the value and liquidity of an investment in the Fund, particularly with respect to Russian exposure.

Recently, the Israel-Hamas war has resulted in significant loss of life and increased volatility in the Middle East, and there is a risk that the war could worsen or spread within the region. The conflict between Israel and Hamas and the involvement of the U.S. and other countries could present material uncertainty and risk with respect to a Fund's performance and ability to achieve its investment objective. The extent and duration of the military action and any market disruptions are impossible to predict, but could be substantial.

China Investments Risk. There are special risks associated with investments in China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. The Chinese government has implemented significant economic reforms in order to liberalize trade policy, promote foreign investment in the economy, reduce government control of the economy and develop market mechanisms. But there can be no assurance that these reforms will continue or that they will be effective. Despite reforms and privatizations of companies in certain sectors, the Chinese government still exercises substantial influence over many aspects of the private sector and may own or control many companies. The Chinese government continues to maintain a major role in economic policy making and investing in China involves risks of losses due to expropriation, nationalization, confiscation of assets and property, and the imposition of restrictions on foreign investments and on repatriation of capital invested. In addition, investments in Taiwan could be adversely affected by its political and economic relationship with China. The political reunification of China and Taiwan, over which China continues to claim sovereignty, is a highly complex issue that has included threats of invasion by China. Political or economic disturbances (including an attempted unification of Taiwan by force), as well as any economic sanctions implemented in response, may have an adverse impact on the values of investments in either China or Taiwan, or make investments in China and Taiwan impractical or impossible. Any escalation of hostility between China and/or Taiwan would likely have a significant adverse impact on the value of investments in both countries and on economies, markets and individual securities globally. The Chinese economy is also vulnerable to the long-running disagreements with Hong Kong related to integration.

Investors in Chinese issuers may have difficulty obtaining information regarding the issuer, particularly high-quality and reliable financial reporting. A contributor to such lack of information are restrictions on the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board's ("PCAOB") ability to inspect audit work and practices of PCAOB-registered public accounting firms in China and the PCAOB's ability to inspect audit work with respect to China-based Issuer audits by PCAOB-registered public accounting firms in Hong Kong. In December 2020, the US Congress passed the Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act ("HFCAA"). The HFCAA provides that after three consecutive years of determinations by the PCAOB that positions taken by authorities in China obstructed the PCAOB's ability to inspect and investigate registered public accounting firms in mainland China and Hong Kong completely, the companies audited by those firms would be subject to a trading prohibition on U.S. markets. On August 26, 2022, the PCAOB signed a Statement of Protocol with the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Ministry of Finance of the People's Republic of China to grant the PCAOB remains unable to inspect audit work papers and practices of PCAOB-registered accounting firms in China with respect to their audit work of U.S. reporting companies, such inability may impose significant additional risks associated with investments in China. Further, to the extent a Fund invests in the securities, as well as their market price, would likely be adversely affected.

A Fund investing in China A shares through Stock Connect is subject to trading, clearance, settlement, and other procedures, which could pose risks to the Fund. Trading through the Stock Connect program is subject to daily quotas that limit the maximum daily net purchases on any particular day, each of which may restrict or preclude a Fund's ability to invest in China A shares through the Stock Connect program. Trading through Stock Connect may require pre validation of cash or securities prior to acceptance of orders. This requirement may limit a Fund's ability to dispose of its A shares purchased through Stock Connect in a timely manner.

A primary feature of the Stock Connect program is the application of the home market's laws and rules applicable to investors in China A shares. Therefore, a Fund's investments in Stock Connect China A shares are generally subject to the securities regulations and listing rules of the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), among other restrictions. Stock Connect can only operate when both PRC and Hong Kong markets are open for trading and when banking services are available in both markets on the corresponding settlement days. As such, the Shanghai and Shenzhen markets may be open at a time when Stock Connect is not trading, with the result that prices of China A shares may fluctuate at times when a Fund is unable to add to or exit its position, which could adversely affect the Fund's performance.

Changes in the operation of the Stock Connect program may restrict or otherwise affect a Fund's investments or returns. Furthermore, any changes in laws, regulations and policies of the China A shares market or rules in relation to Stock Connect may affect China A share prices. These risks are heightened generally by the developing state of the PRC's investment and banking systems and the uncertainty about the precise nature of the rights of equity owners and their ability to enforce such rights under Chinese law. An investment in China A Shares is also generally subject to the risks identified under "Emerging Markets Risk," and foreign investment risks such as price controls, expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation, and nationalization may be heightened when investing in China.

Certain investments in Chinese companies may be made through a special structure known as a variable interest entity ("VIE"). In a VIE structure, foreign investors, such as a Fund, will only own stock in a shell company rather than directly in the VIE, which must be owned by Chinese nationals (and/or Chinese companies) to obtain the licenses and/or assets required to operate in certain restricted or prohibited sectors in China. The value of the shell company is derived from its ability to consolidate the VIE into its financials pursuant to contractual arrangements that allow the shell company to exert a degree of control over, and obtain economic benefits arising from, the VIE without formal legal ownership. Investments involving a VIE structure may pose additional risks because such investments are made through a company whose interests in the underlying operating company are established through contract rather than through equity ownership. While VIEs are a longstanding industry practice and are well known by Chinese officials and regulators, historically the structure has not been formally recognized under Chinese law and Chinese regulations regarding the structure are evolving. It is uncertain whether Chinese officials or regulators will withdraw their acceptance of the structure. It is also uncertain whether the contractual arrangements, which may be subject to conflicts of interest between the legal owners of the VIE and foreign investors, would be enforced by Chinese courts or arbitration bodies. Prohibitions of these structures by the Chinese government, or the inability to enforce such contracts, from which the shell company derives its value, would likely cause the VIE-structured holding(s) to suffer significant, detrimental, and possibly permanent losses, and in turn, adversely affect a Fund's returns and net asset value.

Political, Social and Economic Uncertainty Risk. Social, political, economic and other conditions and events (such as natural disasters, epidemics and pandemics, terrorism, conflicts and social unrest) that occur from time to time will create uncertainty and may have significant impacts on issuers, industries, governments and other systems, including the financial markets, to which a Fund and the issuers in which it invests are exposed. As global systems, economies and financial markets are increasingly interconnected, events that once had only local impact are now more likely to have regional or even global effects. Events that occur in one country, region or financial market will, more frequently, adversely impact issuers in other countries, regions or markets, including in established markets such as the United States. These impacts can be exacerbated by failures of governments and societies to adequately respond to an emerging event or threat.

Uncertainty can result in or coincide with: increased volatility in the global financial markets, including those related to equity and debt securities, loans, credit, derivatives and currency; a decrease in the reliability of market prices and difficulty in valuing assets; greater fluctuations in currency exchange rates; increased risk of default (by both government and private issuers); further social, economic, and political instability; nationalization of private enterprises; greater governmental involvement in the economy or in social factors that impact the economy; greater, less or different governmental regulation and supervision of the securities markets and market participants and increased, decreased or different processes for and approaches to monitoring markets and enforcing rules and regulations by governments or self-regulatory organizations; limited, or limitations on the, activities of investors in such markets; controls or restrictions on foreign investment, capital controls and limitations on repatriation of invested capital; inability to purchase and sell assets or otherwise settle transactions (i.e., a market freeze); unavailability of currency hedging techniques; substantial, and in some periods extremely high, rates of inflation, which can last many years and have substantial negative effects on markets as well as the economy as a whole; recessions; and difficulties in obtaining and/or enforcing legal judgments.

COVID-19 Pandemic Risk. The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in closing borders, enhanced health screenings, healthcare service preparation and delivery, quarantines, cancellations, and disruptions to supply chains, workflow operations and customer activity, as well as general concern and uncertainty. Certain of these impacts, such as border closings and quarantines, have subsided but the impact of this outbreak, and other epidemics and pandemics that may arise in the future, could continue to negatively affect the worldwide economy, as well as the economies of individual countries, individual companies, including Fund service providers and issuers of the Funds' investments, and the market in general in significant and unforeseen ways. Any such impact could adversely affect a Fund's performance, the performance of the securities in which a Fund invests and may lead to losses on your investment in a Fund.

Large Capitalization Companies

Risks Related to Large Capitalization Companies. Larger, more established companies may be unable to respond quickly to competitive challenges, such as changes in technology and consumer tastes. Many larger companies also may not be able to attain the high growth rate of successful smaller companies, especially during extended periods of economic expansion.

Environmental, Social, and Governance ("ESG") Risk. ESG is an important part of the M Large Cap Growth Fund's investment process and is fully integrated into its stock selection, monitoring, and selling processes. There is no guarantee that the M Large Cap Growth Fund's ESG policy will result in the optimal asset allocation or portfolio construction leading to the best risk-adjusted returns. The M Large Cap Growth Fund may forego certain market opportunities available to funds that do not invest using ESG criteria. Moreover, the companies or industries subject to negative screening may not necessarily correspond directly with investors' own subjective views or ethical and moral standards or ESG aspirations. ESG considerations may be based on company disclosures or third-party information sources that are forward looking statements of intent and not necessarily fact-based or objectively measurable. This lack of uniformity and objective metrics can lead to missed opportunities or miscalculations as to the realized future impact of perceived positive and negative ESG factors on company fundamentals, leading to less than desired investment outcomes. The M Large Cap Growth Fund makes no express or implied representations or warranties regarding the accuracy, completeness, effectiveness, fairness, or fitness for a particular purpose with respect to ESG assessments, negative screens, integration or engagement activities.

Sustainability Risk. The M Large Cap Growth Fund's ESG policy integrates sustainability risks into its investment objectives and policies by identifying, evaluating and managing relevant risks. The M Large Cap Growth Fund measures and integrates sustainability risks based on their financial materiality using a blend of inputs including proprietary analysis and third-party information sources. Sustainability risks may be based on company disclosures or third-party information sources that are forward looking statements of intent and not necessarily fact-based or objectively measurable. There is no guarantee that this data will be correctly assessed. A "sustainability risk" means an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investment. If a sustainability risk associated with an investment materializes, it could lead to the loss in value of an investment. Sustainability risks may vary from investment to investment and could include, but are not limited to, risks of environmental damage, social risks (including safety and human rights violations and exploitation), governance risks (inadequate oversight and internal governance of the companies, including management and board structure, compensation and approach to anti-bribery and anti-corruption, litigation risks linked to ESG issues, as well as the risk of political and regulatory changes on investments related to each of the foregoing.

Sectors

Risks Related to Consumer Discretionary Sector. The consumer discretionary sector includes companies in industries such as consumer services, household durables, leisure products, textiles, apparel and luxury goods, hotels, restaurants, retailing, e-commerce, and automobiles. Companies in the consumer discretionary sector may be significantly impacted by the performance of the overall domestic and global economy and by interest rates. The consumer discretionary sector relies heavily on disposable household income and spending. Companies in this sector may be subject to severe competition, which may have an adverse impact on their respective profitability. The retail industry can be significantly affected by changes in demographics, and consumer tastes and shopping habits, which can also affect the demand for, and success of, consumer products and services in the marketplace. The automotive industry is highly cyclical and can be significantly affected by labor relations and fluctuating component prices.

Risks Related to Energy Sector. The energy sector includes companies in the energy equipment and services, and oil, gas and consumable fuels industry groups. The value of companies in these industry groups is particularly vulnerable to developments in the energy sector, which may include swift fluctuations in the price and supply of energy fuels caused by events relating to international politics, energy conservation initiatives, the success of exploration projects, the supply of, and demand for, specific energy-related products or services, and tax and other governmental regulatory policies. Oil and gas companies develop and produce crude oil and natural gas and provide related resources such as production- and distribution-related services. Stock prices for oil and gas companies in particular are affected by supply and demand both for the companies' specific products or services and for energy products in general. The performance of these companies will likewise be affected by the price of oil and gas, exploration and production spending, government regulation, world events and economic conditions. Weak demand for energy companies' products or services or for energy products and services in general, as well as negative developments in these other areas, would adversely impact the energy stocks in which a Fund invests and the Fund's performance. Oil and gas exploration and production companies can be significantly affected by natural and man-made disasters as well as changes in currency exchange rates, interest rates, government regulation, world events and economic conditions, and the companies may be at risk for environmental damage claims.

Risks Related to Financials Sector. Companies in the financials sector of an economy are subject to extensive governmental regulation and intervention, which may adversely affect the scope of their activities, the prices they can charge, the amount of capital they must maintain and, potentially, their size. Governmental regulation may change frequently and may have significant adverse consequences for companies in the financials sector, including effects not intended by such regulation. The impact of recent or future regulation in various countries on any individual financial company or on the financials sector as a whole cannot be predicted. Certain risks may impact the value of investments in the financials sector more severely than those of investments outside this sector, including the risks associated with companies that operate with substantial financial leverage. Companies in the financials sector may also be adversely affected by increases in interest rates and loan losses, decreases in the availability of money or asset valuations, credit rating downgrades and adverse conditions in other related markets. Insurance companies, in particular, may be subject to severe price competition and/or rate regulation, which may have an adverse impact on their profitability. The financials sector is particularly sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates.

Risks Related to Health Care Sector. The profitability of companies in the healthcare sector is affected by the following factors, among others: extensive government regulations, restrictions on government reimbursement for medical expenses, rising costs of medical products and services, pricing pressure, an increased emphasis on outpatient services, limited number of products, industry innovation, changes in technologies and other market developments. Many healthcare companies are heavily dependent on patent protection. The expiration of a company's patents may adversely affect that company's profitability. Many healthcare companies are subject to extensive litigation based on product liability and similar claims. Healthcare companies are subject to competitive forces that may make it difficult to raise prices and, in fact, may result in price discounting. Many new products in the healthcare sector may be subject to regulatory approvals. The process of obtaining such approvals may be long and costly, and such efforts ultimately may be unsuccessful. Companies in the healthcare sector may be thinly capitalized and may be susceptible to product obsolescence.

Risks Related to Industrials Sector. The value of securities issued by companies in the industrials sector may be adversely affected by supply and demand related to their specific products or services and industrials sector products in general. The products of manufacturing companies may face obsolescence due to rapid technological developments and frequent new product introduction. Government regulations, world events, economic conditions and exchange rates may adversely affect the performance of companies in the industrials sector. Companies in the industrials sector may be adversely affected by liability for environmental damage and product liability claims. Aerospace and defense companies, a component of the industrials sector, can be significantly affected by government spending policies because companies involved in this industry rely, to a significant extent, on government demand for their products and services. Thus, the financial condition of, and investor interest in, aerospace and defense companies are heavily influenced by governmental defense spending policies, which are typically under pressure from efforts to control government budgets. Transportation stocks, a component of the industrials sector, are cyclical and can be significantly affected by economic changes, fuel prices, labor relations and insurance costs. Transportation companies in certain countries may also be subject to significant government regulation and oversight, which may adversely affect their businesses. Companies in the industrials sector, particularly aerospace and defense companies, may also be adversely affect their businesses.

Risks Related to Technology Sector. Technology companies, including information technology companies, face intense competition, both domestically and internationally, which may have an adverse effect on profit margins. Technology companies may have limited product lines, markets, financial resources and/or personnel. The products of technology companies may face obsolescence due to rapid technological developments, frequent new product introduction, unpredictable changes in growth rates and competition for the services of qualified personnel. Companies in the technology sector are heavily dependent on patent and other intellectual property rights. The loss or impairment of these rights may adversely affect the profitability of these companies.

Portfolio Turnover

The portfolio turnover rate is calculated for each Fund by dividing the lesser of the dollar amount of sales or purchases of portfolio securities by the average monthly value of that Fund's portfolio securities, excluding securities having a maturity at the date of purchase of one year or less. For each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the portfolio turnover rates for the Funds were as follows:

	2023 Portfolio	2022 Portfolio
Fund	Turnover Rate	Turnover Rate
M International Equity Fund	23%	18%
M Large Cap Growth Fund	32%	37%
M Capital Appreciation Fund	31%	27%
M Large Cap Value Fund	48%	48%

Policies and Procedures for Disclosure of Fund Portfolio Holdings

The Corporation has adopted policies and procedures that govern the disclosure of the Funds' portfolio holdings. These policies and procedures are designed to represent that such disclosure is in the best interests of Fund shareholders. Such disclosure is only permitted if the Corporation's Chief Compliance Officer concludes that it is being done in a manner that, among other things, does not put the interests of the Adviser, Sub-Advisers, M Holdings Securities, Inc., or any affiliated person of the Corporation, the Adviser, Sub-Advisers or M Holdings Securities, Inc., above the interests of Fund shareholders. Under no circumstances does the Adviser, any Sub-Adviser, or the Corporation's custodian, transfer agent, and administrator, State Street, receive any compensation in return for the disclosure of information about a Fund's portfolio securities or for any ongoing arrangements to make available information about a Fund's portfolio securities.

Website Disclosure of Fund Portfolio Holdings. The Corporation has adopted policies and procedures that govern the disclosure of the Funds' portfolio holdings. Disclosure of the complete holdings of each Fund is required to be made quarterly within 60 days of the end of the Fund's fiscal quarter in the Annual Report and Semi-Annual Report to Fund shareholders on Form N-CSR and in Form N-PORT, with every third month made available to the public by the SEC 60 days after the end of the Funds' fiscal quarter. You can find SEC filings on the SEC's website, <u>www.sec.gov</u>. Each Fund will also make the quarterly holdings reports available on the Corporation's website at www.mfin.com/m-funds. Once you reach the website, scroll to the bottom of the web page to find the most recent quarterly report under the "Additional Information" heading.

Disclosure of Fund Portfolio Holdings to Approved Recipients. Under limited circumstances, as described below, a Fund's portfolio holdings may be disclosed to, or known by, certain third parties in advance of their publication on our website. In each case, a determination has been made that such advance disclosure is supported by a legitimate business purpose and that the recipient is subject to a duty not to disclose or trade on the nonpublic information.

• <u>Portfolio Managers</u>. Because they make the investment decisions that determine the portfolio holdings, portfolio managers of the Funds have full daily access to portfolio holdings for the Fund for which they have direct management responsibility.

- <u>Broker-Dealers.</u> Portfolio managers may also release and discuss portfolio holdings with various broker-dealers for purposes of analyzing the impact of existing and future market changes on the prices, availability, demand and liquidity of such securities, as well as for the purpose of assisting portfolio managers in the trading of such securities. Occasionally, certain broker-dealers may also receive information regarding a Fund's portfolio holdings to help portfolio managers determine such Fund's portfolio management and trading strategies. Such disclosure would only be made subject to a written confidentiality agreement that prohibits releasing the information or trading based upon the information.
- <u>The Adviser and Sub-Advisers</u>. Personnel of the Adviser and personnel of the Sub-Advisers other than portfolio managers may have full daily access to Fund portfolio holdings because that information is necessary for the Adviser and the Sub-Advisers to provide their management, administrative, and investment services to the Corporation.
- <u>State Street Bank and Trust Company</u>. Since State Street is the custodian, transfer agent, and administrator for the Corporation, its personnel have full daily access to the Funds' portfolio holdings because that information is necessary for such personnel to provide the agreed-upon services for the Corporation.
- <u>The Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Outside Counsel</u>. Personnel of the independent registered public accounting firm and
 personnel of outside counsel may have access to Fund portfolio holdings because that information is necessary for the independent registered
 public accounting firm to perform the Corporations' annual audit of its financial statements and for the outside counsel to evaluate certain
 regulatory and disclosure issues as they arise.
- <u>Other Service Providers</u>. Other service providers to the Funds, such as proxy voting services and middle office service providers, may have full daily access to Fund portfolio holdings because this information is necessary for such service providers to perform their contracted services to the Funds.

Additions to List of Approved Recipients. The Corporation has designated the Chief Compliance Officer as the person responsible for, and whose prior approval is required for, any disclosure of the Funds' portfolio securities to persons other than those listed above sooner than one day after the publication of the portfolio holdings on www.mfin.com/m-funds. In such cases, the recipient must have a legitimate business need for the information, and the disclosure of the information must be subject to a written confidentiality agreement that prohibits trading based on the information.

Compliance With Portfolio Holdings Disclosure Procedures. On at least an annual basis, the Corporation's Chief Compliance Officer will provide to the Board of Directors a report that includes compliance with the Funds' portfolio holdings disclosure procedures. The Board of Directors will be provided a current copy of the procedures for their review and approval.

Although the Corporation's policies on the disclosure of portfolio holdings are designed to deter and detect improper use of non-public holdings information, there is no assurance that these policies will protect the Funds from the potential misuse of holdings information by individuals or firms in possession of that information.

Management of the Funds

Board of Directors

Overall responsibility for management and supervision of the Corporation rests with the Board of Directors. The Directors approve all material agreements between the Corporation and the persons and companies that furnish services to the Corporation.

Management Information

The Directors of the Corporation are listed below together with their respective positions with the Corporation, their principal occupations during the past five years and any positions held with affiliates of the Corporation:

Name, Address, and Year of Birth INTERESTED DIRECTOF	Position(s) Held with Fund RS	Term of Office ¹ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Director	Other Directorships Held by Director for the Past 5 Years
Malcolm L. "Skip" Cowen, II ² 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1959	Director	Indefinite Two Years	President, Cornerstone Advisors Asset Management, LLC and Cornerstone Institutional Investors, LLC, 1997 to present; President, Cornerstone Benefits, Inc. 2021 to present.	4	M Financial Investment Advisers, Inc., 1999 to present; Gettysburg College Board of Trustees, 2012 to present.
James "Jim" Kaplan ² 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1961	125 NW Couch St., Suite 900Two YearsCompanies, LLC, 2016 to present; Principal, KB Financial Partners, LLC, 2009 to present.		Companies, LLC, 2016 to present; Principal, KB Financial Partners, LLC,	4	M Financial Investment Advisers, Inc., 2021 to present; M Financial Holdings, Inc., 2019 to present; M Life Insurance Company, 2019 to present; The Mariano Rivera Foundation, April 2021 to present.
INDEPENDENT DIRECTO	DRS				
Wayne Pierson 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1950	Director, Chair of the Board and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chair	Indefinite 11 Years	Retired. President, Acorn Investors LLC (investment holding company), 2005 to October 2022; Principal, Clifford Capital Partners LLC, (investment manager), 2010 to 2022.	4	Director, Oaktree Capital Group (investment manager), 2007 to 2019.
Bruce W. Madding 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1951	Director and Audit Committee Chair	Indefinite 15 Years	Retired. Consultant, C.M. Capital Corp., 2022 to 2023; Chief Executive Officer, C.M. Capital Corp., 2010 to 2022.	4	Vice-Chair and Director, C.M. Capital Corp., 2021 to present.

Name, Address, and Year of Birth	Position(s) Held with Fund	Term of Office ¹ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Director	Other Directorships Held by Director for the Past 5 Years
Nancy Crouse 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1958	Director	Indefinite Four Years	Retired. Chief Investment Officer, Senior Vice President, and Portfolio Manager, Nuveen Investments (investment manager), 2004 to 2016.	4	Director and Treasurer, Women's Economic Ventures (non-profit), 2016 to 2023.
Mary Moran Zeven 1125 NW Couch St., Suite 900 Portland, OR 97209 1961	Director	Indefinite Four Years	Retired. Director, Graduate Program in Banking and Financial Law, Boston University School of Law, 2019 to 2022; Director, Graduate Program in Taxation, Boston University School of Law, July 2022 to December 2022; Senior Vice President and Senior Managing Counsel, State Street Bank and Trust Company (custodial bank), 2000 to 2019.	4	Wisdom Tree Digital Trust (mutual fund), June 2022 to present; Beacon Pointe Multi-Alternative Fund (mutual fund), March 2024 to present.

¹ In accordance with the Corporation's current by-laws, each Director serves for an indefinite term until the date such Director resigns, retires or is removed by the Board of Directors or shareholders in accordance with the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation.

The Officers of the Corporation are listed below together with their respective positions with the Corporation, their principal occupations during the past five years and any positions held with affiliates of the Corporation:

Name, Address, and Year of	Position(s) Held	Term of Office and Length of	Principal Occupation(s) During
Birth	with the Fund	Time Served	Past 5 Years
Robert Olson	President	One Year	Head of Advisory Services, M Financial Group, September 2023 to
1125 NW Couch St.,			present; President, M Financial Investment Advisers, October 2023 to
Suite 900		Since	present; Director of Investment Product Management, Morningstar
Portland, OR 97209		October 2023	Investment Management, 2019 to September 2023; International Business
1974			Manager, Nuveen Investments, 2010 to 2019.
David Lees	Secretary and	One Year	Senior Accounting Director, M Financial Group, 1999 to present; Secretary
1125 NW Couch St.,	Treasurer		and Treasurer, M Financial Investment Advisers, Inc., 2007 to present;
Suite 900		16 Years	Secretary and Treasurer, M Financial Asset Management, Inc., 2016 to
Portland, OR 97209			present.
1965			

24

² Messrs. Cowen and Kaplan are deemed to be Interested Persons as defined by the 1940 Act, for the following reasons:

[•] Mr. Cowen is a Director of the Adviser; and

[•] Mr. Kaplan is a Director of the Adviser and M Financial Holdings.

The Chief Compliance Officer of the Corporation is listed below together with his position with the Corporation, his principal occupations during the past five years and any positions held with affiliates of the Corporation:

Name, Address, and Year of Birth	Position(s) Held with the Fund	Term of Office and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During Past 5 Years
Kenneth Kalina	Chief	Indefinite	Anti-Money Laundering Officer, M Financial Advisers, Inc.,
c/o Foreside Fund Officer	Compliance		November 2020 to present; Chief Compliance Officer, M Financial
Services, LLC	Officer and Anti-	Four Years	Advisers, Inc., August 2019 to present; Senior Principal Consultant, ACA
3 Canal Plaza, Suite 100	Money		Foreside, July 2022 to present; Senior Principal Consultant, Foreside
Portland, ME 04101	Laundering		Fund Officer Services, LLC, June 2017 to June 2022.
1959	Officer		

The Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors, which is responsible for generally overseeing the conduct of Corporation business and for protecting the interests of shareholders. The directors meet periodically throughout the year to oversee the Corporation's activities, review contractual arrangements with companies that provide services to the Corporation and review each Fund's performance.

The Board is led by the Chair of the Board who is elected annually and is not an "interested person" of the Corporation for purposes of the 1940 Act. The position of Chair is separate from the position of President. Mr. Pierson, an independent Director, currently serves as the Chair of the Board and Mr. Olson, President of the Adviser, currently serves as President of the Corporation. The Corporation believes this leadership structure is appropriate because having an Independent Director serve as Chair provides the Board with a measure of independence, while having an executive officer of the Adviser serve as President brings extensive knowledge of the Corporation's day-to-day operations to the executive function.

The Board of Directors oversees risk management for the Corporation in several ways. The Board receives regular reports, which detail the results of testing of each Fund's compliance with its Board-adopted policies and procedures, its investment policies and limitations, and applicable provisions of the federal securities laws and Internal Revenue Code. As needed, the Adviser discusses management related issues regarding the Corporation with the Board and solicits the Board's input on many aspects of management, including potential risks to the Corporation. The Board's Audit Committee also receives reports on various aspects of risk that might affect the Corporation and offers advice to management, as appropriate. The Directors also meet in executive session with legal counsel, the Chief Compliance Officer, the independent auditor and representatives from management, as needed.

The Corporation has two standing Committees, the Audit Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Audit and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees were established by the Board at a meeting held on February 10, 2004. Messrs. Madding and Pierson and Mses. Crouse and Zeven are members of the Audit and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees of the Board. Mr. Madding is Chair of the Audit Committee and Mr. Pierson is Chair of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter approved by the Board. The purposes of the Audit Committee are: (a) to oversee generally the Funds accounting and financial reporting policies and processes, including the Funds compliance with legal and regulatory requirements applicable thereto; (b) to oversee generally the quality, objectivity, and integrity of the Funds financial statements and the independent audit thereof, including the Funds controls over financial reporting; (c) to oversee the qualifications, independence, and performance of the Funds independent accountants; (d) to act as a liaison between the Funds independent accountants and the full Board; and (e) to act upon reports of or other information regarding deficiencies, weaknesses in internal controls and procedures for financial reporting, fraud or other similar matters. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, among other things, nominates persons to fill vacancies on the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not have a procedure to consider nominees for the position of Director recommended by shareholders. During the past calendar year, the Audit Committee met two times and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met once.

There is no family relationship between any of the Directors or Officers listed above.

Beneficial Share Ownership in the Funds as of December 31, 2023

Name of Director	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Funds	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Corporation
Malcolm L. "Skip" Cowen, II	None	None
James "Jim" Kaplan	M International Equity Fund \$10,001-\$50,000	\$50,001-\$100,000*
	M Large Cap Growth Fund	
	\$10,001-\$50,000	
	M Capital Appreciation Fund	
	\$1-\$10,000	
	M Large Cap Value Fund	
	\$10,001-\$50,000	
Wayne Pierson	None	None
Bruce W. Madding	None	None
Nancy Crouse	None	None
Mary Zeven	None	None

* Mr. Kaplan beneficially owns shares of the Funds as a result of investment allocations made within his variable life insurance or annuity policies.

The Directors and Officers, as a group, owned less than 1% of each Fund's shares as of March 31, 2024.

Consistent with M Financial Group's focus on client advocacy and leadership, the Corporation's Board of Directors continues to provide valuable direction and insight that fuel differentiation. While there are no formal qualification requirements, Directors have certain perspectives, credentials, skills, and levels of experience that enhance their ability to serve on the Board, including:

- (i) knowledge of mutual funds, insurance, and/or financial services;
- (ii) a reputation for high professional integrity; and
- (iii) an ability to contribute to the ongoing functions of the Board, including the ability and commitment to attend meetings regularly and work collaboratively with other members of the Board and the Adviser.

The following is a summary of the specific qualifications and experience of each Director:

Malcolm L. "Skip" Cowen II: Mr. Cowen is a business executive with over 38 years' experience in the financial services industry. His experience includes working with institutional clients and wealthy families to help design, implement and monitor portfolios on their behalf. He is a co-founder of Cornerstone Advisors Asset Management, LLC and Cornerstone Institutional Investors, LLC. Mr. Cowen is the Chair of Cornerstone's Investment Policy Committee, which oversees all client assets. He became President in 2002 and before that served as Chief Compliance Officer. Mr. Cowen is also chair of the Board of Directors of the Adviser, has been nationally ranked by Barron's, spoken at a number of industry conferences and is an active member of various advisory groups. He received a B.A. in Business Administration from Gettysburg College, an MBA in Business Administration from Lehigh University and a Masters in Taxation from Villanova Law School.

James "Jim" Kaplan: Mr. Kaplan is a business executive with over 33 years' experience in the financial services industry. He is co-founder and the CEO of KB Financial Partners, LLC in Princeton, New Jersey, which has been a Member Firm since 2008. Mr. Kaplan spent 28 years as an agent of Equitable and AXA where he served on various boards within the company including the EARC, the reinsurance company. Mr. Kaplan works with the KB Financial team to develop the overall strategy of the firm and leads the effort to continually refine and improve client offerings. He has a 38-year history of advising high net worth clients in the areas of sophisticated estate, wealth transfer and investment planning strategies. Mr. Kaplan received a BA in Political Science and Government from Lehigh University. He holds the CLU designation and is a member of Finseca (formerly AALU). Mr. Kaplan serves on the Board of Directors of the Adviser, M Financial Holdings, M Life Insurance Company, and The Mariano Rivera Foundation and is involved with a number of local charities. He is registered with M Securities. Mr. Kaplan currently serves on the Corporation's Product Development Group.

Wayne G. Pierson: Mr. Pierson is a business executive with over 41 years' experience in the financial services industry. His experience includes chief executive and chief financial officer positions at Clifford Capital Partners, LLC, of which he is co-founder and served as principal. He was also president of Acorn Investors LLC and a director of Oaktree Capital Group. He served as a trustee for various private trusts. Mr. Pierson was chief financial & investment officer of Meyer Memorial Trust and served on the investment committee of the Portland State University and as the investment committee chair of the Cascade Pacific Council. He received a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the California State University (Northridge). He is a Certified Public Accountant and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He has served on the Corporation's Board of Directors and related committees for 11 years and possesses significant experience regarding the Corporation's operations and history.

Bruce W. Madding: Mr. Madding is a business executive with over 33 years' experience in the financial services industry. His experience includes consultant and chief executive, chief investment, and chief financial officer positions at C.M. Capital Corp. He also has served as a director or trustee for various foundations, including chief financial and investment officer for the Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation, the investment committee for the University of California, Berkeley Foundation and chaired the investment committee for the American Red Cross. He received his Bachelor's degree from the University of California, Berkeley and holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of Southern California. He is a Certified Public Accountant (retired). He has served on the Corporation's Board of Directors and related committees for 15 years and possesses significant experience regarding the Corporation's operations and history.

Nancy Crouse: Ms. Crouse is a business executive with over 38 years' experience in the financial services industry. She was a chief investment officer and co-CIO at two Nuveen Investments equity affiliates where she was responsible for oversight of investment team and process as well as risk oversight. Her experience also includes the role of senior vice president and portfolio manager at Nuveen Investments and at Delaware Investments overseeing both open- and closed-end funds. Ms. Crouse also served as a director and treasurer of the Board of Women's Economic Ventures. She received a BA in International Affairs from Lafayette College and a Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of Pittsburgh. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst. She joined the Board of Directors and related committees in July 2019.

Mary Zeven: Ms. Zeven is an attorney with over 40 years' experience in the financial services and legal industries. Her experience includes director of the Graduate Program in Banking and Financial Law at Boston University School of Law and senior vice president and senior managing counsel at State Street Bank and Trust Company. She received her BBA in Business Administration and Accounting from Florida Atlantic University. She has a Juris Doctor from St. John's University School of Law. She joined the Board of Directors and related committees in September 2019.

Effective January 1, 2024, each Independent Director receives \$2,000 per meeting of the Board that he or she attends and an annual retainer of \$26,500. Interested Directors do not receive an annual retainer, nor compensation from the Funds for any meeting of the Board attended. Each member of the Audit Committee and each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives \$2,000 per meeting of the Audit Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives \$2,000 per meeting of the Audit Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee that he or she attends. The Chair of the Board and the Chair of the Audit Committee each receive additional annual compensation of \$10,000.

From July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023, each Independent Director received \$1,500 per meeting of the Board that he or she attended and an annual retainer of \$25,000. Interested Directors did not receive an annual retainer, nor compensation from the Funds for any meeting of the Board attended. Each member of the Audit Committee and each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee received \$1,500 per meeting of the Audit Committee each received additional annual compensation of \$10,000.

The Corporation does not provide retirement or pension benefits to the Directors. The Corporation pays no compensation to its officers.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Directors of the Corporation received the following compensation from the Corporation:

Name of Person, Position	Aggrega Compensation Corporat	from the	Ber	ion or Retiremen nefits Accrued as Part of the Corporation's Expenses		Estimated Annual Benefits upon Retirement	l	Total Compe from the Corporat Fund Complex Pa Directo	ion and aid to
INTERESTED DIRECTORS									
Peter W. Mullin ¹									
Director	\$	0	\$		0	\$	0	\$	0
Malcolm L. "Skip" Cowen II*									
Director	\$	0	\$		0	\$	0	\$	0
James "Jim" Kaplan*									
Director	\$	0	\$		0	\$	0	\$	0
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS									
Wayne Pierson									
Director, Chair of the Board and Chair of									
the Nominating and Corporate Governance									
Committee	\$	48,500	\$		0	\$	0	\$	48,500
Bruce Madding									
Director and Chair of the Audit Committee	\$	48,500	\$		0	\$	0	\$	48,500
Nancy Crouse	\$	38,500	\$		0	\$	0	\$	38,500
Mary Zeven	\$	38,500	\$		0	\$	0	\$	38,500

¹ Effective July 19, 2023, Mr. Mullin resigned as a Director of the Corporation.

Codes of Ethics

Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act, addresses conflicts of interest that arise from personal trading activities of investment company personnel. The rule requires funds and their investment advisers and principal underwriters to adopt a code of ethics and to report periodically to the Board of Directors on issues raised under such codes of ethics. To assure compliance with these restrictions, the Corporation, the Adviser, each Sub-Adviser and M Holdings Securities, Inc. (the "Distributor") each have adopted and agreed to be governed by a code of ethics containing provisions reasonably necessary to prevent fraudulent, deceptive or manipulative acts with regard to the personal securities transactions of their employees. The codes of ethics of the Corporation, the Adviser, the Sub-Advisers and the Distributor permit covered employees to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Funds. However, such personal securities transactions must avoid actual or potential conflicts of interest with the Funds.

Copies of the codes of ethics may be obtained on the EDGAR Database on the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov. Alternatively, this information may be obtained, upon payment of a duplicating fee by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.

Proxy Voting Procedures

The Funds have delegated proxy voting responsibilities to the Sub-Advisers subject to the Board of Directors' oversight. In delegating proxy responsibilities, the Board has directed that proxies be voted consistent with the Funds' and their shareholders' best interests and in compliance with all applicable proxy voting rules and regulations. The Sub-Advisers have adopted their own proxy voting policies and guidelines for this purpose (collectively, the "Proxy Voting Procedures"). The Proxy Voting Procedures address, among other things, situations where a vote may present material conflicts of interest between the interests of the Funds and their shareholders on the one hand and the interests of the Sub-Advisers and their affiliates on the other hand. The Proxy Voting Procedures are provided in Appendix A to this SAI.

Information regarding how the Funds' voted proxies relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 is available (1) without charge, upon request, by calling the Corporation toll-free at (888) 736-2878; and (2) on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

Investment Advisory and Other Services

Investment Adviser

M Financial Investment Advisers, Inc. is the investment adviser of the Corporation and its Funds. Robert Olson serves as President of the Adviser and President of the Corporation; David Lees serves as Secretary and Treasurer of the Adviser and Secretary and Treasurer of the Corporation; and Kenneth A. Kalina serves as Chief Compliance Officer and Anti-Money Laundering Officer of the Adviser and of the Corporation.

The Adviser is controlled by M Financial Holdings Incorporated, which does business under the name M Financial Group. M Financial Group is engaged in providing product development and marketing support services for participating insurance agents, who, collectively, own a majority of the outstanding stock of M Financial Group. As stockholders, they share in the profits of M Financial Group via periodic stock or cash dividends. M Financial Group derives revenue from, among other things, investment advisory fees with respect to assets invested in the Corporation and receives from insurance carriers compensation based, in part, upon the volume of insurance premiums generated by its participating agents. Clients should be aware that these direct and indirect compensation arrangements may create economic incentives, which could influence recommendations for particular financial products or services (including the Funds). These incentives include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) commissions or other compensation in respect of a comparable provider, product or service; (ii) certain policy features or riders may involve commissions or compensation that differ from compensation payable in respect of "base" or standard contractual features; and (iii) products or services that provide revenue, including override commissions or potential reinsurance profits, to M Financial Group could indirectly provide incentives to agents to recommend such products over similar products or services that do not provide revenue to M Financial Group.

The Adviser was organized on September 11, 1995. Although the Adviser is not primarily responsible for the daily management of the Funds, the Adviser oversees the management of the assets of the Funds by each of the Sub-Advisers. In turn, each Sub-Adviser is responsible for the day-to-day management of a specific Fund.

Investment Advisory Agreement

The Adviser has entered into an investment advisory agreement with the Corporation under which the Adviser assumes overall responsibility, subject to the ongoing supervision of the Corporation's Board of Directors, for administering all operations of the Corporation and for monitoring and evaluating the management of the assets of each of the Funds by the Sub-Advisers. On April 6, 2023, the Board approved an amendment to the investment advisory agreement between the Adviser and the Corporation, on behalf of the M Capital Appreciation Fund, to decrease the advisory fee payable for the Fund. The Adviser, on behalf of the Corporation, has entered into sub-advisory agreements with (i) Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, with respect to the M International Equity Fund, (ii) DSM Capital Partners LLC with respect to the M Large Cap Growth Fund, (iii) Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC with respect to the M Capital Appreciation Fund and (iv) Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC with respect to the M Large Cap Value Fund. On April 6, 2023, the Board approved an amendment to the sub-advisory agreement between the Adviser and Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC, on behalf of the M Capital Appreciation Fund, to decrease the fee payable to the Sub-Adviser. The Adviser provides or arranges for the provision of the overall business management and administrative services necessary for the Corporation's operations and furnishes or procures any other services and information necessary for the proper conduct of the Corporation's business. The Adviser also acts as liaison among, and supervisor of, the various service providers to the Corporation, including the custodian, transfer agent, administrator, and accounting services agent. The Adviser is also responsible for overseeing the Corporation's compliance with the requirements of applicable law and with each Fund's investment objective, policies, and restrictions. The Sub-Advisers provide the day-to-day portfolio management for the respective Funds.

The investment advisory agreement provides that the Adviser may render similar services to others (although there is no current intent for the Adviser to do so) so long as the services that it provides to the Corporation are not impaired thereby. The investment advisory agreement also provides that the Adviser will not be liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss arising out of any investment or for any act or omission in the management of the Corporation, except for (i) willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence in the performance of its duties or by reason of reckless disregard of its duties or obligations under the investment advisory agreement, and (ii) to the extent specified in Section 36(b) of the 1940 Act concerning loss resulting from a breach of fiduciary duty with respect to the receipt of compensation.

The current investment advisory agreement and sub-advisory agreements (each an "Agreement") will remain in effect from year to year, provided such continuance is specifically approved as to each Fund at least annually by (a) the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of that Fund or by the Board of Directors, and (b) the vote of a majority of the Independent Directors, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. Each Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the 1940 Act). Each Agreement is also terminable without penalty (a) as to any Fund at any time by the Board of Directors or by vote of a majority of the votes attributable to outstanding voting securities of the applicable Fund; (b) by the Adviser on not more than 60 days' nor less than 30 days' written notice; or (c) by the Sub-Adviser on 90 days' notice.

As compensation for its services, the Adviser receives a fee (paid by the Funds) based on the average daily net assets of the applicable Fund at the following annual rates:

Fund	Advisory Fee
M International Equity Fund*	0.15% on all assets plus (and only with respect to Fund assets which are not
	invested in a mutual fund that is advised by the Fund's sub-adviser):
	0.25% on the first \$100 million
	0.20% on amounts thereafter
M Large Cap Growth Fund	0.65% of first \$50 million
	0.60% of next \$50 million
	0.55% on amounts thereafter
M Capital Appreciation Fund**	0.85% of the first \$125 million
	0.75% on the amounts thereafter
M Large Cap Value Fund	0.43%

*Prior to March 1, 2021, the advisory fee of the M International Equity Fund was 0.15% on all assets plus (and only with respect to Fund assets which are not invested in a mutual fund that is advised by the Fund's sub-adviser) 0.32% on the first \$100 million and 0.27% on the amounts thereafter. **Prior to May 1, 2023, the advisory fee of the M Capital Appreciation Fund was 0.90% of the first \$125 million and 0.80% on the amounts thereafter.

For the years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively, the Funds incurred the following amounts as investment advisory fees payable to the Adviser:

Fund	2023			2022	2021	
M International Equity Fund	\$	692,788	\$	678,593	\$	733,682
M Large Cap Growth Fund	\$	1,280,388	\$	1,286,648	\$	1,508,719
M Capital Appreciation Fund	\$	1,700,930	\$	1,717,418	\$	1,957,732
M Large Cap Value Fund	\$	564,917	\$	558,990	\$	528,305

Expenses of the Corporation

The Corporation incurs certain operating and general administrative expenses in addition to the Adviser's fee. These expenses, which are accrued daily, include: legal fees; certain regulatory and filing fees; costs associated with shareholder reporting; insurance; director compensation; and other expenses properly payable by the Corporation. These expenses are allocated on the basis of the asset size of the respective Funds or by the Board of Directors, as appropriate. Certain other expenses, including: taxes; expenses for auditing and tax services; charges for custody services; expenses of redemption; brokerage costs; trading costs; transfer agent fees (wire fees); pricing fees; certain regulatory reporting fees; accounting fees; foreign sub-custodian fees; and other costs properly payable by a particular Fund, are borne directly and paid individually by such Fund.

Each year, from the inception of the Funds through April 30, 2024, the Adviser had contractually agreed to reimburse each Fund for any expenses (other than advisory fees, brokerage or other portfolio transaction expenses or expenses for litigation, indemnification, taxes or other extraordinary expenses) to the extent that such expenses exceed 0.25% of a Fund's annualized average daily net assets. For the years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively, the Funds received the following reimbursements:

Fund	2023	2022	2021		
M International Equity Fund	\$ 184,781	\$ 151,020	\$	32,474	
M Large Cap Growth Fund	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$	0	
M Capital Appreciation Fund	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$	0	
M Large Cap Value Fund	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$	0	

The Adviser decided not to extend the Expense Limitation Agreement beyond its expiration date of April 30, 2024.

Sub-Advisers

The Adviser has retained the services of four Sub-Advisers to provide the day-to-day portfolio management for the Funds.

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP ("Dimensional"), Sub-Adviser to the M International Equity Fund, is located at 6300 Bee Cave Road, Building One, Austin, Texas 78746. Dimensional is currently organized as a Delaware limited partnership and is controlled and operated by its general partner, Dimensional Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation.

As of December 31, 2023, the following members of the Dimensional investment team were responsible for advising the following types of accounts:

	Registered Com		Other Investment		Separately Acco	aged			
	Total Assets				Total Assets			To	tal Assets
	Number	of Managed		Number	of Accounts		Number	of	Accounts
	of			of	Ν	lanaged	of	N	lanaged
	Accounts			Accounts	(in millions)		Accounts	(in millions)	
Jed S. Fogdall	127	\$	483,256	28	\$	23,374	781	\$	26,273
Mary T. Phillips, CFA	75	\$	294,950	4	\$	3,285	0	\$	0
William B. Collins-Dean, CFA	24	\$	101,520	0	\$	0	4	\$	1,607

As of December 31, 2023, the following members of the Dimensional investment team managed the following types of accounts for which an advisory fee based on the account's performance is earned:

	U	Registered Investment Companies				led npanies	Separately Managed Accounts			
		Total Assets			T	otal Assets			Tot	al Assets
	Number		of Accounts	Number	0	f Accounts	Number		of <i>i</i>	Accounts
	of		Managed	of		Managed	of		М	anaged
	Accounts		(in millions)	Accounts	(i	n millions)	Accounts		(in	millions)
Jed S. Fogdall	0)	\$ 0	1	\$	185		4	\$	2,158
Mary T. Phillips. CFA	0)	\$ 0	0	\$	0		0	\$	0
William B. Collins-Dean, CFA	0)	\$ 0	0	\$	0		0	\$	0

Potential Conflicts of Interest

Actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise when a portfolio manager has the primary day-to-day responsibilities with respect to the M International Equity Fund and one or more other accounts. Other accounts include registered mutual funds (other than the M International Equity Fund) and ETFs, other unregistered pooled investment vehicles, and other accounts managed for organizations and individuals (each an "Account" and collectively, "Accounts"). An Account may have similar investment objectives to the M International Equity Fund, or may purchase, sell or hold securities that are eligible to be purchased, sold or held by the M International Equity Fund. Actual or apparent conflicts of interest include:

- Time Management. The management of the M International Equity Fund and/or multiple Accounts may result in a portfolio manager devoting
 unequal time and attention to the management of the M International Equity Fund and/or Account. The Sub-Adviser seeks to manage such
 competing interests for the time and attention of portfolio managers by having portfolio managers focus on a particular investment discipline. Most
 Accounts managed by a portfolio manager are managed using the same investment approaches that are used in connection with the management of
 the M International Equity Fund.
- Investment Opportunities. It is possible that at times identical securities will be held by the M International Equity Fund and one or more Account. However, positions in the same security may vary and the length of time that the M International Equity Fund or Account may choose to hold its investment in the same security may likewise vary. If a portfolio manager identifies a limited investment opportunity that may be suitable for the M International Equity Fund and one or more Account, the M International Equity Fund may not be able to take full advantage of that opportunity due to an allocation of filled purchase or sale orders across the M International Equity Fund and all Accounts. To deal with these situations, the Sub-Adviser has adopted procedures for allocating portfolio transactions across the M International Equity Fund and Accounts.
- Broker Selection. With respect to securities transactions for the M International Equity Fund, the Sub-Adviser determines which broker to use to execute each order, consistent with its duty to seek best execution of the transaction. However, with respect to certain Accounts (such as separate accounts), the Sub-Adviser may be limited by the client with respect to the selection of brokers or may be instructed to direct trades through a particular broker. In these cases, the Sub-Adviser or its affiliates may place separate, non-simultaneous, transactions for the M International Equity Fund and another Account that may temporarily affect the market price of the security or the execution of the transaction, or both, to the detriment of the M International Equity Fund or the Account.
- Performance-Based Fees. For some Accounts, the Sub-Adviser may be compensated based on the profitability of the Account, such as by a performance-based management fee. These incentive compensation structures may create a conflict of interest for the Sub-Adviser with regard to Accounts where the Sub-Adviser is paid based on a percentage of assets because the portfolio manager may have an incentive to allocate securities preferentially to the Accounts where the Sub-Adviser might share in investment gains.

• Investment in an Account. A portfolio manager or his/her relatives may invest in an Account that he or she manages and a conflict may arise where he or she may therefore have an incentive to treat the Account in which the portfolio manager or his/her relatives invest preferentially as compared to other Accounts for which he or she has portfolio management responsibilities.

The Sub-Adviser has adopted certain compliance procedures that are reasonably designed to address these types of conflicts. However, there is no guarantee that such procedures will detect each and every situation in which a conflict arises.

Description of Compensation Structure

Portfolio managers receive a base salary and bonus. Compensation of a portfolio manager is determined at the discretion of the Sub-Adviser and is based on a portfolio manager's experience, responsibilities, the perception of the quality of his or her work efforts and other subjective factors. The compensation of portfolio managers is not directly based upon the performance of the M International Equity Fund or other accounts that the portfolio managers manage. The Sub-Adviser reviews the compensation of each portfolio manager annually and may make modifications in compensation as its Compensation Committee deems necessary to reflect changes in the market. Each portfolio manager's compensation consists of the following:

- Base salary. Each portfolio manager is paid a base salary. The Sub-Adviser considers the factors described above to determine each portfolio manager's base salary.
- Semi-Annual Bonus. Each portfolio manager may receive a semi-annual bonus. The amount of the bonus paid to each portfolio manager is based upon the factors described above.

Portfolio managers may be awarded the right to purchase restricted shares of the stock of the Sub-Adviser, as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Sub-Adviser or its delegees. Portfolio managers also participate in benefit and retirement plans and other programs available generally to all employees.

In addition, portfolio managers may be given the option of participating in the Sub-Adviser's Long-Term Incentive Plan. The level of participation for eligible employees may be dependent on overall level of compensation, among other considerations. Participation in this program is not based on or related to the performance of any individual strategies or any particular client accounts.

As of December 31, 2023, none of the members of the Dimensional investment team beneficially owned any shares of the M International Equity Fund.

DSM Capital Partners LLC

DSM Capital Partners LLC ("DSM"), Sub-Adviser to the M Large Cap Growth Fund, is located at 7111 Fairway Drive, Suite 350, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418. DSM is owned and controlled by its co-founders, Stephen E. Memishian and Daniel B. Strickberger.

As of December 31, 2023, each portfolio manager is responsible for advising the following types of accounts:

	Registered Investment Companies			Other Pool Com			Separately Acco	Managed		
		Total Assets			Total Assets				To	tal Assets
	Number	of Accounts		Number	of Accounts		Number	of	Accounts	
	of		Managed		of		Managed	of	Managed	
	Accounts		(in n	nillions)	Accounts		(in millions)	Accounts	(in	millions)
Daniel B. Strickberger		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Justin T. Burk, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
David M. McVey, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Steve D. Tish, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Eric F. Woodworth, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Hannah Chiang		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Shirley Hu Anderson, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Takamune Fujikawa, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
Giles Evans, CFA		3	\$	430.02	11	\$	914.55	534	\$	5,336.55
								3*	\$	672.69*

*These accounts are subject to a performance-based advisory fee.

Conflicts of Interest

As is typical for many investment advisers, potential conflicts of interest may arise related to DSM's management of accounts, including the Fund, where not all accounts are able to participate in a desired IPO, or other limited opportunity, related to use of soft dollars and other brokerage practices, related to the voting of proxies, employee personal securities trading, related to the side-by-side management of accounts with performance-based fees, and related to a variety of other circumstances.

When evaluating broker-dealers, DSM may not always select the broker-dealer with the lowest commission rate. The primary criteria considered in selecting a broker-dealer is the ability of the broker-dealer, in DSM' opinion, to secure execution at the best security price available with respect to each transaction in light of the overall quality of brokerage and research services provided to DSM on behalf of its clients.

In all cases, however, DSM believes it has written policies and procedures in place reasonably designed to prevent violations of the federal securities laws and to prevent or disclose material conflicts of interest. Please see DSM's Form ADV, Part 2A for a complete description of its conflicts and some of its policies and procedures in this regard.

Compensation

DSM's investment professionals receive a base salary commensurate with their level of experience. DSM's goal is to maintain base salaries and bonus compensation competitive with the broad investment industry (including alternative investment firms). Bonus compensation, which is a multiple of base salary, is based on an employee's long-term performance. Each individual's contribution to fundamental research, valuation work and portfolio management is considered, both within and beyond the portfolio. Collaboration is expected and rewarded at DSM. Importantly, the entire investment team, as well as other employees of the firm, are also shareholders in DSM. This compensation and ownership structure provides incentive to attract and retain highly qualified people, as each member of the firm has the opportunity to share directly in the accomplishments of the business.

Portfolio managers/research analysts, along with all other DSM employees, are reviewed on an annual basis. DSM's partners are responsible for setting base salaries, bonus compensation and share ownership amounts.

As of December 31, 2023, none of the members of the DSM investment team beneficially owned any shares of the M Large Cap Growth Fund.

Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC

Frontier Capital Management Company LLC ("Frontier"), Sub-Adviser to the M Capital Appreciation Fund, is located at 99 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110. Frontier is 21% owned by active Frontier employees and 79% is indirectly owned by Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. ("AMG"), an asset management holding company located at 777 South Flagler Drive, West Palm Beach, FL 33401. As of December 31, 2023, AMG had 38 advisory affiliates that collectively manage approximately \$673 billion in assets.

As of December 31, 2023, each portfolio manager is responsible for advising the following types of accounts:

	U	Registered Investment Companies			Other Pooled Investment Companies				-		/ Managed		
			Tot	al Assets			Tota	al Assets			To	Total Assets	
	Number		of A	Accounts	Number		of A	Accounts	Number		of	Accounts	
	of		Managed		of		Managed		of		Managed		
	Accounts		(in	millions)	Accounts		(in	millions)	Accounts		(in	millions)	
Andrew B. Bennett, CFA		1	\$	288		1	\$	114		10	\$	1,134	
Peter G. Kuechle		1	\$	288		1	\$	114		10	\$	1,134	

As of December 31, 2023, Mr. Bennett and Mr. Kuechle did not manage any accounts for which the advisory fee was based on performance.

Conflicts of Interest

In connection with its management of clients' accounts, Frontier is subject to a number of actual or apparent conflicts of interest. These conflicts may arise when a portfolio manager has day-to-day management responsibilities with respect to more than one fund or other account. A portfolio manager potentially could give favorable treatment to some accounts for a variety of reasons, including favoring larger accounts, accounts that have a different advisory fee arrangement (including any accounts that pay performance-based fees) or accounts in which the portfolio manager has a personal investment. In addition, conflicts may arise relating to the allocation of investments among accounts with similar investment objectives but managed by different portfolio managers.

Frontier's portfolio managers typically manage multiple accounts. Generally, however, accounts within a particular investment strategy (*e.g.*, capital appreciation) with similar objectives are managed similarly. Accordingly, portfolio holdings and industry and sector exposure tend to be similar across a group of accounts in the same strategy with similar objectives, which tend to minimize the potential for conflicts of interest.

Frontier has adopted trade allocation and aggregation policies that seek to treat all clients fairly and equitably. These policies address the allocation of limited investment opportunities, such as IPOs, and the allocation of transactions and aggregations of orders across multiple accounts. Investment personnel of the firm or its affiliates may be permitted to be commercially or professionally involved with an issuer of securities. Any potential conflicts of interest from such involvement would be monitored for compliance with the firm's Code of Ethics.

Compensation

Frontier's portfolio manager compensation structure is designed to align the interest of portfolio managers with those of the shareholders whose assets they manage. Frontier's portfolio manager compensation program consists of a base salary, annual bonus, and participation in company-funded retirement plans. In addition, all of Frontier's portfolio managers are partners at Frontier, which entitles them to share in the firm's profits and the long-term growth of the firm. The annual bonus is variable and based partially or primarily upon management-fee revenues generated from client accounts.

As of December 31, 2023, Mr. Bennett and Mr. Kuechle did not beneficially own any shares of the M Capital Appreciation Fund.

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC ("Brandywine"), Sub-Adviser to the M Large Cap Value Fund, is located at 1735 Market Street, Suite 1800, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103. Brandywine is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. ("Franklin Resources"), a holding company with subsidiaries operating under its Franklin Templeton and/or subsidiary brand names, located at One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA 94403. As of December 31, 2023, Franklin Resources had 304 advisory affiliates that collectively manage approximately \$1,455.5 billion in assets. As of December 31, 2023, each portfolio manager is responsible for advising the following types of accounts*:

	U	nvestment anies	Other Poo Con		Investment ies	Separately Managed Accounts			
			Total Assets		Total Assets			Total Assets	
	Number		of Accounts	Number		of Accounts	Number	of Accounts	
	of		Managed	of		Managed	of	Managed	
	Accounts		(in millions)	Accounts	(in millions)		Accounts	(in millions)	
Joseph J. Kirby	6	,	\$ 4,847	3	\$	62	4	\$ 10	
Henry F. Otto	8		\$ 5,936	8	\$	260	42*	\$ 1,943*	
Steven M. Tonkovich	8		\$ 5,936	8	\$	260	42*	\$ 1,943*	

*Two of these accounts, which have a combined market value of \$1,030 million, are subject to a performance-based advisory fee.

Brandywine utilizes a team-based approach to portfolio management, and each of the portfolio managers listed are jointly and primarily responsible for the management of the accounts listed in each category.

Conflicts of Interest

Brandywine maintains policies and procedures reasonably designed to detect and minimize material conflicts of interest inherent in circumstances when a portfolio manager has day-to-day portfolio management responsibilities for multiple portfolios. Nevertheless, no set of policies and procedures can possibly anticipate or relieve all potential conflicts of interest. These conflicts may be real, potential, or perceived; certain of these conflicts are described in detail below.

Allocation of Limited Investment Opportunities. If a portfolio manager identifies a limited investment opportunity (including initial public offerings) that may be suitable for multiple portfolios, the investment opportunity may be allocated among these several portfolios, which may limit a portfolio's ability to take full advantage of the investment opportunity, due to liquidity constraints or other factors.

Brandywine has adopted trade allocation procedures designed to ensure that allocations of limited investment opportunities are conducted in a fair and equitable manner between portfolios. Nevertheless, investment opportunities may be allocated differently among portfolios due to the particular characteristics of a portfolio, such as the size of the portfolio, cash position, investment guidelines and restrictions or its sector/ country/region exposure or other risk controls, market restrictions or for other reasons.

Similar Investment Strategies. Brandywine and its portfolio management team may manage multiple portfolios with similar investment strategies. Investment decisions for each portfolio are generally made based on each portfolio's investment objectives and guidelines, cash availability, and current holdings. Purchases or sales of securities for the portfolios may be appropriate for other portfolios with like objectives and may be bought or sold in different amounts and at different times in multiple portfolios. Purchase and sale orders for a portfolio may be combined with those of other portfolios in the interest of achieving the most favorable net results for all portfolios.

Differences in Financial Incentives. A conflict of interest may arise where the financial or other benefits available to a portfolio manager or an investment adviser differ among the portfolios under management. For example, when the structure of an investment adviser's management fee differs among the portfolios under its management (such as where certain portfolios pay higher management fees or performance-based management fees), a portfolio manager might be motivated to favor certain portfolios over others. Performance-based fees could also create an incentive for an investment adviser to make investments that are riskier or more speculative. In addition, a portfolio manager might be motivated to favor portfolios in which he or she or the investment adviser and/or its affiliates have a financial interest. Similarly, the desire to maintain or raise assets under management or to enhance the portfolio manager 's performance record in a particular investment strategy or to derive other rewards, financial or otherwise, could influence a portfolio manager to lend preferential treatment to those portfolios that could most significantly benefit the portfolio manager.
To manage conflicts that may arise from management of portfolios with performance-based fees, Brandywine has developed trade allocation procedures as described above and Brandywine periodically reviews the performance and trading in portfolios with like strategies to seek to ensure that no portfolio or group of portfolios receives preference in the trading process.

Personal Account Trading. Brandywine may, from time to time, recommend to clients that they buy or sell securities in which employees have a financial interest. These types of transactions may present a conflict of interest in that employees might benefit from market activity by a client in a security held by an employee. In order to prevent conflicts of interest between Brandywine and its client, employee trading is monitored under the Code of Ethics (the "Brandywine Code"). The Brandywine Code includes policies and procedures (a) restricting personal trading, (b) requiring the pre-clearance of most types of personal securities transactions, (c) requiring the reporting to Brandywine of all required personal securities holdings and transactions, and (d) mandating blackout periods during which employees are prohibited from making personal transactions in certain securities.

Brandywine and its employees may also invest in mutual funds and other pooled investment vehicles, including private investment vehicles that are managed by Brandywine. This may result in a potential conflict of interest since Brandywine employees have knowledge of such funds' investment holdings, which is non-public information.

Broker Selection and Soft Dollar Usage. Investment professionals may be able to influence the selection of broker-dealers that are used to execute securities transactions for the portfolios they manage. In addition to executing trades, some brokers and dealers provide brokerage and research services, which may result in the payment of higher brokerage commissions than might otherwise be available and may provide an incentive to increase trading with such brokers. All soft dollar arrangements in which Brandywine is involved are subject to Brandywine's policy of seeking best execution and are structured to comply with the safe harbor of Section 28(e) of the 1934 Act, and the rules and interpretations thereof as issued by the SEC. Nonetheless, the research services obtained from brokers and dealers may be used to service portfolios other than those paying commissions to the broker-dealers providing the research services, and also may benefit some portfolios more than others.

Compensation

All portfolio managers receive a competitive base salary. In addition, from the firm's profits, a bonus is paid quarterly and based in part on the performance of the portfolio managers' investment strategies relative to a relevant peer-group universe over one-quarter, one-, three- and five-year time periods. More subjective measurements of an individual's contributions to the success of their product group and to the overall success of the firm are also considered as part of the individual allocation decision. After this performance-based incentive compensation is allocated, profits associated with individual product groups are allocated as follows: a majority is retained within the product group and the remainder is allocated to a pool shared by all product groups. Brandywine believes this system achieves the goal of retaining top-quality investment professionals, as it provides extremely competitive compensation with entrepreneurial potential, and of fostering excellent performance, growth, and teamwork.

As of December 31, 2023, Henry F. Otto, Steven M. Tonkovich, and Joseph J. Kirby did not beneficially own any shares of the M Large Cap Value Fund.

Sub-Advisory Fees

As compensation for their services, each Sub-Adviser receives a fee (paid by the Adviser) based on the average daily net assets of the applicable Fund at the following annual rates:

Fund	Sub-Advisory Fee
M International Equity Fund*	0.25% on the first \$100 million
	0.20% on amounts thereafter
M Large Cap Growth Fund	0.50% on the first \$50 million
	0.45% on the next \$50 million
	0.40% on amounts thereafter
M Capital Appreciation Fund**	0.70% on the first \$125 million
	0.60% on amounts thereafter
M Large Cap Value Fund	0.28%

* The Sub-Adviser shall not receive any sub-advisory fee for its sub-advisory services to the M International Equity Fund with respect to assets of the M International Equity Fund invested in any other mutual fund advised by the Sub-Adviser, nor shall such assets count towards the application of the \$100 million breakpoint. The Sub-Adviser and the Adviser acknowledge that, as a shareholder of any mutual fund advised by the Sub-Adviser, the M International Equity Fund will be subject to the fees of that fund as outlined in such fund's currently effective registration statement. Prior to March 1, 2021, the fee payable to the Sub-Adviser for the Fund was 0.32% on the first \$100 million and 0.27% on the amounts thereafter on the Fund's average daily net assets. ** Prior to May 1, 2023, the fee payable to the Sub-Adviser for the Fund was 0.75% on the first \$125 million and 0.65% on amounts thereafter on the Fund's average daily net assets.

Since they are paid by the Adviser, the sub-advisory fees form a portion of, and are not in addition to, the Advisory fees described in the Prospectus and above. For the years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively, the Adviser paid the Sub-Advisers the following sub-advisory fees:

Sub-Adviser	2023		2023 2022		2021	
Dimensional	\$	363,050	\$	354,871	\$	388,409
DSM	\$	951,645	\$	956,198	\$	1,117,705
Frontier	\$	1,392,379	\$	1,418,840	\$	1,614,095
Brandywine	\$	367,853	\$	363,993	\$	344,013

Change of Sub-Advisers

The Corporation and the Adviser have received an exemptive order from the SEC that permits the Adviser to amend existing sub-advisory agreements, with the approval of the Corporation's Board of Directors. The exemption also permits the Adviser to enter into new sub-advisory agreements with Sub-Advisers that are not affiliated with the Adviser when approved by the Corporation's Board of Directors without shareholder approval, subject to limitations on fee rate increases. Shareholders of the Funds will be notified of any Sub-Adviser changes within 90 days of such change.

Distributor

M Holdings Securities, Inc. acts as the distributor (the "Distributor") for each of the Funds. The Distributor is a wholly-owned subsidiary of M Financial Group. No fees are due the Distributor for these services. The Distributor conducts a continuous offering and is not obligated to sell a specific number of shares. The principal executive offices of the Distributor are in the same offices as the Corporation located at M Financial Plaza, Portland, OR. The Distributor is registered with the SEC as a broker-dealer under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940; and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

Custodian and Transfer Agent

Pursuant to a Custodian Agreement and a Transfer Agency and Service agreement with the Corporation, State Street Bank and Trust Company ("State Street"), 1 Congress Street, Boston, MA, 02114 holds the cash and portfolio securities of the Corporation as custodian and acts as the Corporation's transfer agent.

State Street is responsible for holding all securities and cash of each Fund, receiving and paying for securities purchased, delivering against payment securities sold, and receiving and collecting income from investments, making all payments covering expenses of the Corporation, all as directed by persons authorized by the Corporation. State Street does not exercise any supervisory function in such matters as the purchase and sale of portfolio securities, payment of dividends, or payment of expenses of the Funds or the Corporation. Portfolio securities of the Funds purchased domestically are maintained in the custody of State Street and may be entered into the Federal Reserve, Depository Trust Company, or Participant's Trust Company book entry systems. Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement and Rule 17f-5 under the 1940 Act, State Street acts as the Corporation's global custody manager. Portfolio securities purchased outside the United States will be maintained in the custody of various other custodians or subcustodians, including foreign banks and foreign securities depositories, which are selected and overseen by State Street in accordance with regulations under the 1940 Act.

Administrator

Pursuant to the Corporation's Administration Agreement with State Street, State Street provides certain administrative services to the Corporation, such as calculating each Fund's net asset value and standardized performance information; preparing annual and semi-annual reports to shareholders and the SEC; preparing various materials for filing with the SEC; preparing each Fund's tax returns; monitoring compliance; and performing other administrative duties.

For the years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the Corporation incurred the following custody, fund accounting, transfer agency and administration fees payable to State Street:

Fund	2023	2022	2021
M International Equity Fund	\$ 468,584	\$ 481,601	\$ 416,597
M Large Cap Growth Fund	\$ 225,154	\$ 221,871	\$ 248,752
M Capital Appreciation Fund	\$ 228,654	\$ 218,806	\$ 256,871
M Large Cap Value Fund	\$ 164,904	\$ 164,072	\$ 162,873

Securities Lending

The Funds participate in a securities lending program under the terms of a Securities Lending Agency Agreement with State Street Bank and Trust Company, which serves as the Funds' securities lending agent. Each Fund may loan its portfolio securities in an amount up to 33 1/3% of its total assets. The Funds receive cash (U.S. currency) and non-cash (U.S. Treasuries and Agencies) as collateral against the loaned securities. Such collateral is invested by the securities lending agent in a money market mutual fund that meets the quality and diversification requirements in accordance with Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act. All collateral received will be in an amount at least equal to 102% (for loans of U.S. securities) or 105% (for loans of non-U.S. securities) of the market value of the loaned securities at the inception of each loan. The market value of the loaned securities is determined each day at the close of business of the Funds and any change in the amount of collateral is delivered to or paid by the Fund the next day. The collateral value does not include the calculated mark, which is the amount charged/returned to the borrower daily to maintain 102%/105% of market value. There is a day lag in receiving the mark, which may at times result in a collateral percentage above or below 102%/105%.

The collateral received is recorded on a lending Fund's statement of assets and liabilities, along with the related obligation to return the collateral. A Fund may also record realized gain or loss on securities deemed sold due to a borrower's inability to return securities on loan. Upon an event of default under the Securities Agency Lending Agreement, there is a risk of delay in the recovery of the securities or loss of rights in the collateral. If the borrower fails to return loaned securities and cash collateral is insufficient to cover the value of loaned securities (provided that the insufficiency is not due to investment losses), the securities lending agent has agreed, at its option, to pay the amount of any shortfall in collateral to the Funds; or to replace the securities. Any dividends or interest payable by the issuers of the loaned portfolio securities, during the time that the securities are on loan, are paid to the borrowers of those securities. Dividend or interest payments that are made to borrowers of the loaned securities are reimbursed by the borrowers to the Funds. Such reimbursement amounts do not comprise qualified dividend income under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Income generated from the investment of cash collateral, less negotiated rebate fees paid to the borrower through the securities lending agent, is the source of the Fund's securities lending income, 70% of which was paid to the Fund, 30% of which was paid to the custodian as securities lending agent. Beginning February 1, 2024, 75% is paid to the Fund and 25% is paid to the custodian as securities lending agent.

The table below sets forth, for the Funds' most recently completed fiscal year, each Fund's gross income received from securities lending activities, the fees and/or other compensation paid by the Fund for securities lending activities, and the net income earned by the Fund for securities lending activities.

						M Capital		
		nternational		A Large Cap	A	Appreciation		I Large Cap
Security/Strategy	E	quity Fund		Growth Fund		Fund		Value Fund
Gross income from securities lending activities: \$	\$	306,502	\$	0	\$	198,619	\$	2,646
Fees and/or compensation for securities lending activities and related								
services								
Fees paid to securities lending agent from a revenue split:	\$	18,854	\$	0	\$	34,736	\$	366
Fees paid for any cash collateral management service that are not								
included in the revenue split:	\$	1,840	\$	0	\$	967	\$	12
Administrative fees not included in revenue split:	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0
Indemnification fee not included in revenue split:	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0
Rebates (paid to borrower):	\$	241,594	\$	0	\$	81,850	\$	1,413
Other Fees not included in revenue split:	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0
Aggregate fees/compensation for securities lending activities:	\$	262,288	\$	0	\$	117,553	\$	1,790
Net income from securities lending activities:	\$	44,214	\$	0	\$	81,066	\$	856
			-		-		_	

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Through March 13, 2023, BBD, LLP, 1835 Market Street, Suite 300, Philadelphia, PA, 19103, served as the Funds' independent registered public accounting firm. As of March 13, 2023, Cohen & Company, Ltd., 1835 Market Street, Suite 310, Philadelphia, PA, 19103, serves as the Funds' independent registered public accounting firm.

Legal Counsel

Dechert LLP, 1900 K Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20006, serves as counsel to the Corporation.

Brokerage Allocation and Other Practices

The Sub-Advisers are responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities for the Funds, the selection of brokers and dealers to effect the transactions and the negotiation of brokerage commissions, if any. Purchases and sales of securities on a securities exchange are effected through brokers who charge a negotiated commission for their services. Orders may be directed to any broker including, to the extent and in the manner permitted by applicable law, affiliates of the Adviser or the Sub-Advisers. Purchases and sales of certain portfolio securities on behalf of a Fund are frequently placed by a Sub-Adviser with the issuer or a primary or secondary market-maker for these securities on a net basis, without any brokerage commission being paid by the Fund. Trading does, however, involve transaction costs. Transactions with dealers serving as market-makers reflect the spread between the bid and asked prices. Purchases of underwritten issues may be made that will include an underwriting fee paid to the underwriter.

In placing orders for portfolio securities of a Fund, its Sub-Adviser is required to give primary consideration to obtaining the most favorable price and efficient execution. This means that the Sub-Adviser will seek to execute each transaction at a price and commission, if any, which provide the most favorable total cost or proceeds reasonably attainable in the circumstances. While the Sub-Adviser generally seeks reasonably competitive spreads or commissions, a Fund will not necessarily be paying the lowest spread or commission available. Within the framework of this policy, the Sub-Advisers may consider such factors as (1) the market impact of a trade, (2) the execution capabilities of the broker or dealer, (3) the size of the transaction, (4) the difficulty of executing the transaction, (5) the operational facilities of the broker or dealer, and (6) the risk to the broker or dealer of positioning a block of securities. In addition, the Sub-Advisers may consider research and investment services provided by brokers or dealers who effect or are parties to portfolio transactions of the Funds, the Sub-Advisers and their affiliates, or other clients of the Sub-Advisers or their affiliates. Such research and investment services include statistical and economic data and research reports on particular companies and industries. Such services are used by the Sub-Advisers in connection with all of their investment activities, and some of such services obtained in connection with the execution of transactions of such other accounts, whose aggregate assets are far larger than those of the Funds, and the services furnished by such brokers may be used by the Sub-Advisers in providing investment sub-advisory services to the Funds.

On occasions when the Sub-Adviser deems the purchase or sale of a security to be in the best interest of a Fund as well as its other advisory clients (including any other fund or other investment company or advisory account for which the Sub-Adviser or an affiliate acts as investment adviser), the Sub-Adviser, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, may aggregate the securities to be sold or purchased for the Fund with those to be sold or purchased for such other customers in order to obtain the best net price and most favorable execution. In such event, allocation of the securities so purchased or sold, as well as the expenses incurred in the transaction, will be made by the Sub-Adviser in the manner it considers to be most equitable and consistent with its fiduciary obligations to the Fund and such other customers. In some instances, this procedure may adversely affect the price and size of the position obtainable for a Fund.

Commission rates are established pursuant to negotiations with the broker based on the quality and quantity of execution services provided by the broker in the light of generally prevailing rates. The allocation of orders among brokers and the commission rates paid are reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors.

The Funds paid the following brokerage commissions for the years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively:

Fund	2023		023 2022		2021	
M International Equity Fund	\$	20,383	\$	17,588	\$	10,920
M Large Cap Growth Fund	\$	45,592	\$	46,210	\$	49,840
M Capital Appreciation Fund	\$	118,887	\$	120,418	\$	144,492
M Large Cap Value Fund	\$	36,009	\$	29,390	\$	33,526

As of December 31, 2023, the Funds owned securities of their "regular brokers or dealers" or their parents, as defined in Rule 10b-1 under the 1940 Act as follows:

	Value
M International Equity Fund	
ABN Amro Bank NV, CVA	\$ 48,984
BNP Paribas Securities Corp.	\$ 307,755
Canaccord Genuity LLC	\$ 11,385
Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc.	\$ 83,590
Nomura Holdings, Inc.	\$ 140,421
Societe Generale SA	\$ 129,721
UBS Group AG	\$ 460,672
M Large Cap Growth Fund	
JP Morgan Chase & Co	\$ 6,906,060
Morgan Stanley	\$ 2,182,050
M Capital Appreciation Fund	
Raymond James Financial, Inc.	\$ 1,753,337
M Large Cap Value Fund	
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 2,178,449
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.	\$ 603,780
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	\$ 1,774,542
Stifel Financial Corp.	\$ 96,810

Capital Stock and Other Securities

The Corporation issues a separate class of shares for each Fund representing fractional undivided interests in that Fund. The Board of Directors has authority to divide or combine the shares of any Fund into greater or lesser numbers without thereby changing the proportionate beneficial interests in the Fund.

Each issued and outstanding share is entitled to participate equally in dividends and distributions declared for the respective class and, upon liquidation or dissolution, in net assets allocated to such class remaining after satisfaction of outstanding liabilities. The shares of each class, when issued, will be fully paid and nonassessable and have no preemptive or conversion rights.

Rule 18f-2 under the 1940 Act provides that any matter required to be submitted by the provisions of the 1940 Act, applicable state law or otherwise to the holders of the outstanding voting securities of an investment company, such as the Corporation, shall not be deemed to have been effectively acted upon unless approved by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of each class or series affected by such matter. Rule 18f-2 further provides that a class or series shall be deemed to be affected by a matter unless the interests of each class or series in the matter are substantially identical or the matter does not affect any interest of such class or series. However, Rule 18f-2 exempts the selection of independent public accountants, the approval of principal underwriting contracts and the election of Directors from the separate voting requirements of Rule 18f-2.

Under normal circumstances, the Corporation will redeem shares of the Funds in cash within seven days. However, the right of a shareholder to redeem shares and the date of payment by the Corporation may be suspended for more than seven days for any period during which the NYSE is closed, other than the customary weekends or holidays, or when trading on the NYSE is restricted as determined by the SEC; or during any emergency, as determined by the SEC, as a result of which it is not reasonably practicable for a Fund to dispose of securities owned by it or fairly to determine the value of its net assets; or for such other period as the SEC may by rule, regulation or order permit.

Under Maryland law, the Corporation is not required to hold annual shareholder meetings and does not intend to do so.

Control Persons and Principal Shareholders

Shares of the Funds will be owned by insurance companies as depositors of separate accounts, which are used primarily to fund variable annuity contracts and variable life insurance contracts. Persons or companies owning more than 25% of the outstanding shares of a Fund are presumed to "control" the Fund within the meaning of the 1940 Act. As a result, those persons or organizations could have the ability to take action with respect to a Fund without the consent or approval of other stockholders. As of March 28, 2024, John Hancock Variable Life Insurance Co. and Pacific Life Insurance Co. may each be deemed a control person of certain Funds in which their separate accounts hold more than 25% of the shares of such Funds reflected below:

	M International Equity Fund	M Large Cap Growth Fund	M Capital Appreciation Fund	M Large Cap Value Fund
Pacific Life Insurance Co.	46.2%	35.9%	39.3%	35.5%
John Hancock Variable Life Insurance				
Co.	37.1%	49.2%	45.1%	50.1%

As of March 28, 2024, the following stockholders may be deemed a principal shareholder of certain Funds in which their separate accounts hold more than 5% of the shares of such Funds reflected below:

	M International Equity Fund	M Large Cap Growth Fund	M Capital Appreciation Fund	M Large Cap Value Fund	
Pruco Life Insurance Co.	5.7%	X	X	Х	
Voya America Equities, Inc.	Х	Х	6.3%	Х	

The addresses of each control person or beneficial owner of the Funds' shares are as follows:

Pacific Life Insurance Co., Newport Beach, CA Pruco Life Insurance Co., Newark, NJ John Hancock Variable Life Insurance Company, Boston, MA Voya America Equities, Inc., Denver, CO

Purchase, Redemption and Pricing of Shares

Determination of Net Asset Value

The net asset value per share, in accordance with procedures adopted by the Board of Directors, is calculated by determining the net worth of each Fund (assets, including securities at market value or amortized cost value, minus liabilities) divided by the number of that Fund's outstanding shares. All securities are valued as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE. Each Fund will compute its net asset value once daily as of the close of such trading (usually 4:00 p.m., Eastern time). In addition, the Funds may compute their net asset value as of any time permitted pursuant to any exemption, order or statement of the SEC or its staff. Investments for which market quotations are believed to be inaccurately stated, considered unreliable or otherwise determined to no longer have a readily available market quotation are valued at fair value pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the 1940 Act. Rule 2a-5 under the 1940 Act requires the fair valuation of all portfolio investments for which market quotations are not readily available. Pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the 1940 Act, the Board of Directors has appointed the Adviser as its valuation designee ("Valuation Designee") for all portfolio investments, subject to its oversight. The Adviser shall carry out its designated responsibilities as Valuation Designee through its Pricing Committee. Valuing a Fund's assets using fair value pricing introduces an element of subjectivity to the pricing of securities. As a result, the price of a security determined through fair valuation techniques may differ from the price quoted or published by other sources and may differ from current market valuations. It is possible that these valuations could be materially different from the value the Fund realizes upon the sale of an instrument.

Portfolio assets of the Funds are valued as follows:

(a) securities and other investments traded on any U.S. exchange are valued at the last sale price on that exchange; if no sale occurs, securities traded on a U.S. exchange are valued at the most recent bid prices;

(b) securities and other investments traded on the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation system ("NASDAQ") are valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price; if no sale occurs, securities traded on NASDAQ are valued at the most recent bid prices;

(c) securities mainly traded on a non-U.S. exchange are generally valued according to the latest closing values on that exchange prior to the closing of the NYSE; however, if an event which may change the value of a security occurs after the time that the closing value on the non-U.S. exchange was determined, the value of the security shall be determined by the Adviser as Valuation Designee through its Pricing Committee, using the fair valuation procedures adopted by the Board of Directors; the Board of Directors has approved the use of an independent fair value service for foreign securities, which may provide a fair value price on trading days when the S&P 500 Index moves more than 1%; the use of a fair value price may cause the value of the security on the books of the Fund to be significantly different from the closing value on the non-U.S. exchange and may affect the calculation of a Fund's NAV;

(d) over-the-counter securities not quoted on NASDAQ are valued at the last sale price on the valuation day or, if no sale occurs, at the most recent bid prices;

(e) debt securities and other fixed-income investments of the Funds with a remaining maturity of 61 days or more are valued on the basis of dealersupplied quotations or by a pricing service selected by the Sub-Adviser and approved by the Board of Directors if those prices are deemed by the Sub-Adviser to be representative of market values at the close of business of the NYSE;

(f) all other securities and other assets, including those for which a pricing service supplies no quotations or quotations are not deemed by the Sub-Adviser to be representative of market values, or for which market quotations are not readily available, but excluding debt securities with remaining maturities of 60 days or less, are valued at fair value as determined in good faith pursuant to procedures established by the Board of Directors; and

(g) debt securities with a remaining maturity of 60 days or less will be valued at their amortized cost, which approximates market value.

Portfolio securities traded on more than one U.S. national securities exchange or foreign securities exchange are valued at the last sale price on each business day at the close of the exchange representing the principal market for such securities. The value of all assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies will be converted into U.S. dollar values at the daily exchange rates provided by recognized independent pricing agents or as determined in good faith by or under procedures established by the Board of Directors.

Trading in securities on European and Asian securities exchanges and on over-the-counter markets is normally completed well before the close of business in the U.S. on each business day. In addition, European or Asian securities trading generally or in a particular country or countries may not take place on all business days. Furthermore, trading takes place in Japanese markets on certain Saturdays and in various foreign markets on days that are not business days for the Corporation and days on which a Fund's net asset value is not calculated. Such calculation does not take place contemporaneously with the determination of the prices of a majority of the portfolio securities used in such calculation. Events affecting the values of portfolio securities that occur between the closing of the exchange they principally trade on and the close of regular trading on the NYSE may be reflected in a Fund's calculation of net asset value.

Under the amortized cost method of valuation, securities are valued at cost on the date of their acquisition, and thereafter a constant accretion of any discount or amortization of any premium to maturity is assumed, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the security. While this method provides certainty in valuation, it may result in periods in which value as determined by amortized cost is higher or lower than the price a Fund would receive if it sold the security. During such periods, the quoted yield to investors may differ somewhat from that obtained by a similar fund or portfolio which uses available market quotations to value all of its portfolio securities.

Federal Tax Status of the Funds

The following discussion of the U.S. federal tax status of the Funds is a general and abbreviated summary based on tax laws and regulations in effect on the date of this Statement of Additional Information. Tax law is subject to change by legislative, administrative or judicial action, potentially with retroactive effect.

Qualification as Regulated Investment Company

Each Fund is treated as a separate corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Corporation has caused each Fund to elect to be treated as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under Subchapter M of Chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and intends for each Fund to qualify for taxation as a RIC each year. If a Fund: (1) continues to qualify as a RIC, and (2) timely distributes to its shareholders an amount that equals or exceeds the sum of (i) 90% of its investment company taxable income (including for this purpose its net ordinary investment income and realized net short-term capital gains) in excess of realized net long-term capital losses and (ii) 90% of its investment company taxable income tax on the portion of its investment company taxable income and net capital gain (i.e., realized net long-term capital gain in excess of realized net short-term capital loss) that it timely distributes to shareholders (or is treated as having distributed to shareholders). The Corporation expects that each Fund will satisfy these requirements, and each Fund generally will endeavor to timely distribute (or treat as deemed distributed) to shareholders all of its investment company taxable income and its net capital gain, if any, for each taxable year so that it will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its earnings.

A Fund must meet several requirements to maintain its status as a RIC. These requirements include the following: (1) at least 90% of its gross income for each taxable year must be derived from dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of securities or foreign currencies, net income from a qualified publicly traded partnership, and other income (including gains from options, futures or forward contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in such securities or currencies; and (2) at the close of each quarter of the Fund's taxable year, (a) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets must consist of cash, cash items, securities of other RICs, U.S. Government securities and other securities (if such other securities of the issuer), and (b) the Fund must not invest more than 25% of its total assets in (i) the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. Government securities or the securities of other RICs), (ii) the securities of any two or more issuers that are controlled by the Fund that are engaged in the same or similar trades or businesses or related trades or businesses (other than securities of other RICs), or (iii) the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships.

Distributions to Avoid Federal Excise Tax

A RIC will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax on certain undistributed income unless it distributes, in a timely manner, an amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of its ordinary taxable income for the year, (2) 98.2% of its capital gain net income for the 12 months ended on October 31 of that calendar year, and (3) any ordinary income or capital gain net income that it recognized in preceding years, but was not distributed during such years, and on which no U.S. federal income tax was paid (the "excise tax avoidance requirements"). However, the excise tax does not apply to a RIC whose only shareholders during the year are segregated asset accounts of life insurance companies supporting variable life insurance contracts or variable annuity contracts or certain qualified trusts. For purposes of making such a determination, parties that contributed in aggregate \$250,000 or less in seed money to the Fund are not taken into account. In order to avoid this nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax, the Corporation intends that each of the Funds will qualify for this exception each year or will make sufficient distributions to satisfy the excise tax avoidance requirements each year.

Section 817(h) Diversification Requirements

Each Fund also intends to comply with Section 817(h) of the Code and regulations issued thereunder, which impose certain investment diversification requirements on life insurance companies' separate accounts that are used to support variable life insurance contracts and variable annuity contracts. A separate account may meet these requirements by investing solely in shares of a RIC registered under the 1940 Act as an open-end management investment company (such as the Funds) provided that such RIC satisfies the diversification requirements (as well as certain other requirements) of Section 817(h) of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder. These requirements are in addition to the diversification requirements of subchapter M and of the 1940 Act, and may affect the securities in which a Fund may invest. In order to comply with future requirements of Section 817(h) (or related provisions of the Code) or the regulations issued thereunder, a Fund may be required, for example, to alter its investment objectives.

The Section 817(h) requirements place certain limitations on the assets of each separate account (or underlying RIC) that may be invested in securities of a single issuer. Specifically, the regulations provide that, except as permitted by a "safe harbor" described below, as of the end of each calendar quarter, or within 30 days thereafter:

- No more than 55% of a Fund's total assets may be represented by any one investment
- No more than 70% of a Fund's total assets may be represented by any two investments
- No more than 80% of a Fund's total assets may be represented by any three investments
- No more than 90% of a Fund's total assets may be represented by any four investments

Section 817(h) provides, as a safe harbor, that a separate account (or underlying RIC) will be treated as being adequately diversified if the diversification requirements under Subchapter M are satisfied and no more than 55% of the value of the account's total assets are cash and cash items, government securities and securities of other RICs. For purposes of Section 817(h), all securities of the same issuer, all interests in the same real property project, and all interests in the same commodity are treated as a single investment. In addition, each U.S. Government agency or instrumentality is treated as a separate issuer, while the securities of a particular foreign government and its agencies, instrumentalities, and political subdivisions are considered securities issued by the same issuer.

Compliance with Applicable Requirements

If for any taxable year a Fund fails to qualify as a RIC or fails to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, then all of its taxable income becomes subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates (without any deduction for distributions to its shareholders). In addition, if for any taxable year a Fund fails to qualify as a RIC, owners of variable life insurance contracts and variable annuity contracts who have indirectly invested in the Fund might be taxed currently on the investment earnings under their contracts and thereby lose the benefit of tax deferral. Likewise, if a Fund fails to comply with the diversification (or other) requirements of section 817(h) of the Code and the regulations thereunder, owners of variable life insurance contracts and variable annuity contracts who have indirectly invested in the Fund would be taxed on the investment earnings under their contracts and variable annuity contracts who have indirectly invested in the Fund would be taxed on the investment earnings under their contracts and thereby lose the benefit of tax deferral. Accordingly, compliance with the above requirements is carefully monitored by the Funds' Advisers and Sub-Advisers and each Fund intends to comply with these requirements as they exist or as they may be modified from time to time. Compliance with the tax requirements described above may result in lower total return for a Fund than would otherwise be the case, since, to comply with the above requirements, the investments utilized (and the time at which such investments are entered into and closed out) may be different from what the Fund's Adviser and Sub-Advisers might otherwise select.

Investments in Foreign Securities

Investment income received from sources within foreign countries, or capital gains earned by a Fund investing in securities of Foreign Issuers, may be subject to foreign income taxes withheld at the source. In this regard, withholding tax rates in countries with which the United States does not have a tax treaty are often as high as 30% or more. The United States has entered into tax treaties with many foreign countries that may entitle a Fund to a reduced rate of tax or an exemption from tax on this related income and gains. The effective rate of foreign tax cannot be determined at this time since the amount of a Fund's assets to be invested within various countries is not now known. The Corporation intends that each Fund will operate so as to qualify for applicable treaty-reduced rates of tax.

A Fund may purchase shares in a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC"). In such event, the Fund may be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its allocable share of a portion of any "excess distribution" received on, or any gain from the disposition of, such shares. Additional charges in the nature of interest generally will be imposed on the Fund in respect of deferred taxes arising from any such excess distribution or gain. This additional tax and interest may apply even if the Fund makes a distribution in an amount equal to any "excess distribution" or gain from the disposition of such shares as a taxable dividend by the Fund to its shareholders. If the Fund elects to treat a PFIC as a "qualified electing fund" under the Code (a "QEF"), in lieu of the foregoing requirements, the Fund will be required to include in income each year its proportionate share of the ordinary earnings and net capital gain of the QEF, even if such income is not distributed by the QEF. Alternatively, the Fund may elect mark-to-market treatment for a PFIC; in this case, the Fund will recognize as ordinary income its allocable share of any increase in the value of such shares, and as ordinary loss its allocable share of any decrease in such value to the extent that any such decrease does not exceed prior increases included in the Fund's income. Under either election, the Fund may be required to recognize in a year income in excess of distributions from PFICs and proceeds from dispositions of PFIC shares during that year, and the Fund must distribute such income to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement and avoid the 4% excise tax described above, if possible.

Foreign exchange gains and losses realized by a Fund in connection with certain transactions involving non-dollar debt securities, certain foreign currency futures contracts, foreign currency options contracts, foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currencies, or payables or receivables denominated in a foreign currency are subject to Code provisions that generally treat such gains and losses as ordinary income and losses and may affect the amount, timing and character of distributions to shareholders. Any such transactions that are not directly related to a Fund's investment in securities (possibly including speculative currency positions or currency derivatives not used for hedging purposes) could, under future Treasury regulations, produce income not among the types of "qualifying income" from which the Fund must derive at least 90% of its annual gross income.

Investments with Original Issue Discount

Each Fund that invests in certain payment-in-kind instruments, zero coupon securities or certain deferred interest securities (and, in general, any other securities with original issue discount or with market discount if the Fund elects to include market discount in current income) must accrue income on such investments prior to the receipt of the corresponding cash. However, because each Fund must meet the 90% distribution requirement to qualify as a RIC, a Fund may have to dispose of its portfolio investments under disadvantageous circumstances to generate cash, or may have to leverage itself by borrowing the cash, to satisfy distribution requirements.

Options, Futures, and Swaps

A Fund's transactions in options contracts and futures contracts are subject to special provisions of the Code that, among other things, may affect the character of gains and losses realized by the Fund (this is, may affect whether gains or losses are ordinary or capital), accelerate recognition of income to the Fund and defer losses of the Fund. These rules (1) could affect the character amount and timing of distributions to shareholders of a Fund, (2) could require the Fund to "mark to market" certain types of the positions in its portfolio (that is, treat them as if they were closed out) and (3) may cause the Fund to recognize income without receiving cash with which to make distributions in amounts necessary to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement and the excise tax avoidance requirements described above. To mitigate the effect of these rules and prevent disqualification of a Fund as a RIC, the Corporation seeks to monitor transactions of each Fund, seeks to make the appropriate tax elections on behalf of each Fund and seeks to make the appropriate entries in each Fund's books and records when the Fund acquires any option, futures contract or hedged investment.

The U.S. federal income tax rules applicable to interest rate swaps, caps and floors are unclear in certain respects, and a Fund may be required to account for these transactions in a manner that, in certain circumstances, may limit the degree to which it may utilize these transactions.

Certain Fund Distributions

A Fund that receives dividend income from U.S. sources may annually report certain amounts of its dividends paid as eligible for the dividends received deduction, and a Fund that incurs foreign taxes may be eligible to elect to pass-through allowable foreign tax credits. The benefits, which may be potentially material, of these reports and elections will inure only to the insurance company that issued the variable contract and will not be shared with the contract holders.

Investor Taxation

Under current law, owners of variable life insurance contracts and variable annuity contracts who are indirectly invested in a Fund generally are not subject to U.S. federal income tax on Fund earnings or distributions or on gains realized upon the sale or redemption of Fund Shares until amounts are withdrawn from their contracts. For information concerning the U.S. federal income tax consequences to the owners of variable life insurance contracts and variable annuity contracts, see the prospectuses for such contracts.

Other Information

Financial Statements

Cohen & Company, Ltd. acts as the Funds' independent registered public accounting firm. Fiscal years prior to December 31, 2023 were audited by BBD, LLP, the Funds' previous independent registered public accounting firm. The 2023 Financial Statements for the Funds, which are contained in the <u>Corporation's Annual Report to Shareholders</u>, are incorporated by reference in this SAI.

Corporation Name

The Corporation's Articles of Incorporation acknowledge that the Corporation adopted its name through permission of M Life Insurance Company ("M Financial Re"), an affiliate of the Adviser. If the investment adviser to the Corporation is not the Adviser or another affiliate of M Financial Re, the Corporation will eliminate the name "M" from its name upon written request of M Financial Re.

Other Information

The Prospectus and this SAI do not contain all the information included in the registration statement filed with the SEC under the 1933 Act with respect to the securities offered by the Prospectus. Certain portions of the registration statement have been omitted from the Prospectus and this SAI pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. The registration statement, including exhibits, may be obtained on the EDGAR Database on the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov. Alternatively, this information may be obtained, upon payment of a duplicating fee by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.

Statements contained in the Prospectus or in this SAI as to the contents of any contract or other document referred to are not necessarily complete, and, in each instance, reference is made to the copy of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which the Prospectus and this SAI are parts, each such statement being qualified in all respects by such reference.

Appendix A

DESCRIPTION OF PROXY VOTING PROCEDURES

M Fund, Inc. (the "Company")

Proxy Voting Policies

Reliance on Sub-Advisers. The sub-advisers ("Sub-Advisers") to the various series (the "Funds") of the Company are responsible for the day-to-day purchases and sales of portfolio securities for the Funds. As a result, each Sub-Adviser will generally possess the best knowledge regarding the issuers of the securities held by the Fund that it manages, and is therefore in the best position to decide how to vote and should be responsible for voting proxies on such securities. For similar reasons, it is the policy of the Company that a Sub-Adviser should follow its own policies and procedures for voting securities ("Sub-Adviser Policies") for the Fund that it manages.

General Requirements for Sub-Adviser Policies. In light of the Company's policy to rely on the Sub-Adviser Policies, the Company generally does not have specific requirements for the content of Sub-Adviser Policies. However, the Company will review the Sub-Adviser Policies to confirm that, under such Sub-Adviser Policies, proxies must be voted consistent with the best interests of each Fund as reasonably determined by the Sub-Adviser and that the Sub-Adviser has procedures in place that are reasonably designed to represent that proxies for the Fund(s) that it manages will be so voted.

Compliance with Rules and Regulations. Of course, it is the Company's policy to comply with all applicable laws and regulations with respect to proxy voting. To this end, the Company will request such information from the Sub-Advisers as is reasonably necessary to report all information regarding proxy voting that is required in filings with the SEC or that it is necessary so that reports may be made periodically to the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company will also have standing instructions to the Sub-Advisers to inform the Company of (a) any deviations from its policies or exceptions made in actually voting, and (b) any material changes to its policies.

PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS LP DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS LTD. DFA AUSTRALIA LIMITED DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS PTE. LTD. DIMENSIONAL JAPAN LTD. DIMENSIONAL IRELAND LIMITED

Introduction

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP ("Dimensional") is an investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"). Dimensional is the parent or indirect parent company of Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd. ("Dimensional UK"), DFA Australia Limited ("Dimensional Australia"), Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd. ("Dimensional Japan Ltd. ("Dimensional Japan") and Dimensional Ireland Limited ("Dimensional Ireland") (each, an "Advisor", and collectively referred to as the "Advisors"). Dimensional UK and Dimensional Australia are also registered as investment advisers under the Advisers Act.

The Advisors provide investment advisory or subadvisory services to various types of clients, including registered funds, unregistered commingled funds, defined contribution plans (including employee benefit plans subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and the regulations promulgated thereunder ("ERISA")), private and public pension funds, foundations, endowment funds and other types of investors. These clients frequently give the Advisors the authority and discretion to vote proxies relating to the underlying securities beneficially held by such clients. Also, a client may, at times, ask an Advisor to share its proxy voting policies, procedures, and guidelines without the client delegating full voting discretion to the Advisor. Depending on the client, an Advisor's duties may include making decisions regarding whether and how to vote proxies as part of an investment manager's fiduciary duty under ERISA.¹ The scope and any limitations of an Advisor's proxy voting authority generally will be described in the written contract between the Advisor and its client or with respect to an Advisor-sponsored fund, the offering documents of the fund.

The following Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures (the "Policy") address the Advisors' objectives for voting proxies received by the Advisors on behalf of client accounts or funds to the extent that relationships with such clients are subject to the Advisers Act or ERISA or the clients are registered investment companies under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, including The DFA Investment Trust Company, DFA Investment Dimensional Investment Group Inc., Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund, and Dimensional ETF Trust (together, the "Dimensional Investment Companies") and the portfolios, funds and exchange-traded funds of the Dimensional Investment Companies are each a "Dimensional Fund" and together, the "Dimensional Funds"). The Advisors believe that this Policy is reasonably designed to meet their goal of seeking to vote (or refrain from voting) proxies in a manner consistent with applicable legal and fiduciary standards and in the best interests of clients, as understood by the Advisors at the time of the vote.

Exhibit A to this Policy includes a summary of the Advisors' current Proxy Voting Guidelines and will change from time to time (the "Guidelines") and includes three implementations, one standard implementation, one for the portfolios and accounts that incorporate social considerations in their investment guidelines, and one for the portfolios and accounts that incorporate sustainability considerations in their investment guidelines. A separate account client may select one of the three implementations to be used for their account or, in certain circumstances, individualize their proxy voting guidelines. The Investment Committee of Dimensional has determined that, in general, voting proxies pursuant to the Guidelines should be in the best interests of clients and the Advisors understand the Guidelines to be consistent with applicable legal standards. Therefore, an Advisor will usually instruct voting of proxies in accordance with the Guidelines.

¹ If the client is subject to ERISA, an Advisor's proxy voting activities are subject to any applicable provisions under ERISA and/or guidance from the U.S. Department of Labor.

The Guidelines provide a framework for analysis and decision making but do not address all potential issues. In order to be able to address all the relevant facts and circumstances related to a proxy vote, the Advisors reserve the right to instruct votes that deviate from the Guidelines if, after a review of the matter, an Advisor believes that a client's best interests would be served by, or applicable legal and fiduciary standards require, such a vote. In such circumstance, the analysis will be documented in writing and periodically presented to the Investment Stewardship Committee for review. To the extent that the Guidelines do not cover potential voting issues, an Advisor may consider the spirit of the Guidelines and applicable legal standards and instruct the vote on such issues in a manner that the Advisor believes would be in the best interests of the client.

A client's investment strategy can impact voting determinations. For example, the Advisors consider social issues when voting proxies for portfolios and accounts that incorporate social considerations in their design and consider sustainability issues when voting proxies for portfolios and accounts that consider sustainability considerations in their design. The Advisors may also take social or sustainability issues into account when voting proxies for portfolios and accounts that do not incorporate social or sustainability considerations in their design in their design if the Advisors believe that doing so is in the best interest of the relevant client(s) and otherwise consistent with applicable laws and the Advisors' duties, such as where material environmental or social risks may have economic ramifications for shareholders.

Proxy Advisory Firms

The Advisors have retained certain third-party proxy service providers ("Proxy Advisory Firms") to provide information on shareholder meeting dates and proxy materials, translate proxy materials printed in a foreign language, provide research on proxy proposals, operationally process votes in accordance with the Guidelines on behalf of the clients for whom the Advisors have proxy voting responsibility, and provide reports concerning the proxies voted ("Proxy Voting Services"). Although the Advisors retain third-party service providers for Proxy Voting Services, the Advisors remain responsible for proxy voting decisions and making such decisions in accordance with their fiduciary duties. The Advisors have designed policies and procedures to prudently select, oversee and evaluate the Proxy Advisory Firms consistent with their fiduciary duties, including with respect to the matters described below, which Proxy Advisory Firms have been engaged to provide Proxy Voting Services to support the Advisors' voting in accordance with this Policy. In the event that the Guidelines are not implemented precisely as the Advisors intend because of the actions or omissions of any Proxy Advisory Firms, custodians or sub-custodians or other agents, or any such persons experience any irregularities (e.g., misvotes or missed votes), then such instances will not necessarily be deemed by the Advisors as a breach of this Policy.

Prior to the selection of any new Proxy Advisory Firms and annually thereafter or more frequently if deemed necessary by Dimensional, the Investment Stewardship Committee will consider whether the Proxy Advisory Firm: (a) has the capacity and competency to timely and adequately analyze proxy issues and provide the Proxy Voting Services the Proxy Advisory Firm has been engaged to provide and (b) can make its recommendations in an impartial manner, in consideration of the best interests of the Advisors' clients, and consistent with the Advisors' voting policies and fiduciary duties. In conducting such a review of a Proxy Advisory Firm, Dimensional may consider the following, depending on the Proxy Voting Services the Proxy Advisory Firm has been engaged to provide:

- periodic sampling of certain votes pre-populated by the Proxy Advisory Firm's systems as well as votes cast by the Proxy Advisory Firm to review that the Guidelines adopted by the Advisors are being followed;
- (ii) onsite visits to the Proxy Advisory Firm office and/or discussions with the Proxy Advisory Firm to determine whether the Proxy Advisory Firm continues to have the capacity and competency to carry out its proxy obligations to the Advisors;
- (iii) a review of those aspects of the Proxy Advisory Firm's policies, procedures, and methodologies for formulating voting recommendations that the Advisors consider material to the Proxy Voting Services provided to the Advisors, including: (a) those relating to the Proxy Advisory Firm's efforts to identify, address, mitigate and disclose actual or potential conflicts of interest, (b) the Proxy Advisory Firm's efforts to obtain current, accurate, and complete information in creating recommendations and research, and (c) the Proxy Advisory Firm's ability to provide services consistent with ERISA;

- (iv) a requirement that the Proxy Advisory Firm notify the Advisors if there is a substantive change in the Proxy Advisory Firm's policies and procedures described in (iii) above or otherwise to its business practices;
- (v) a review of how and when the Proxy Advisory Firm engages with, and receives and incorporates input from, portfolio companies, the Proxy Advisory Firm's clients and other third-party information sources as well as how and when the Proxy Advisory Firm makes available from portfolio companies, or other sources, additional information about a matter to be voted;
- (vi) an assessment of how the Proxy Advisory Firm considers factors unique to a specific issuer or proposal when evaluating a matter subject to a shareholder vote;
- (vii) in case of an error made by the Proxy Advisory Firm, a discussion of the error with the Proxy Advisory Firm and determination of whether
 (a) the error affected the Proxy Advisory Firm's Proxy Voting Services and (b) appropriate corrective and preventive action is being taken; and
- (viii) an assessment of whether the Proxy Advisory Firm appropriately updates its methodologies, guidelines, and voting recommendations, including to address any deficiencies, on an ongoing basis and incorporates input from issuers and Proxy Advisory Firm clients in the update process.

In evaluating Proxy Advisory Firm's staffing, personnel, and/or technology and other factors in its discretion.

Procedures for Voting Proxies

The Investment Committee at Dimensional is generally responsible for overseeing each Advisor's proxy voting process. The Investment Committee has formed the Investment Stewardship Committee composed of certain officers, directors and other personnel of the Advisors and has delegated to its members authority to (i) oversee the voting of proxies and the Proxy Advisory Firms, (ii) make determinations as to how to instruct the vote on certain specific proxies, (iii) verify ongoing compliance with this Policy, (iv) receive reports on the review of the Proxy Advisory Firms as described above, and (v) review this Policy from time to time and recommend changes to the Investment Committee. The Investment Stewardship Committee may designate one or more of its members to oversee specific, ongoing compliance with respect to this Policy and may designate personnel of each Advisor to instruct the vote on proxies on behalf of an Advisor's clients, such as authorized traders of the Advisors (collectively, "Authorized Persons"). The Investment Stewardship Committee will review this policy no less frequently than annually and may recommend changes to this Policy to seek to act in a manner consistent with the best interests of the clients.

Generally, the Advisors analyze relevant proxy materials on behalf of their clients and seek to instruct the vote (or refrain from voting) proxies in accordance with this Policy and the Guidelines. A client may direct an Advisor to vote for such client's account differently than what would occur in applying the Policy and the Guidelines. An Advisor may also agree to follow a client's individualized proxy voting guidelines or otherwise agree with a client on particular voting considerations.

Each Advisor seeks to vote (or refrain from voting) proxies for its clients in a manner that the Advisor determines is in the best interests of its clients and which seeks to maximize the value of the client's investments, subject to the standards of legal and regulatory regimes, applicable to the Advisor or the client, and any particular investment or voting guidelines of specific funds or accounts. When voting (or electing to refrain from voting) proxies for clients subject to ERISA, each Advisor shall seek to consider those factors that may affect the economic value of the ERISA client's investment and not subordinate the interests of the client's participants and beneficiaries on their retirement income or financial benefits under the plan to any other objectives. In some cases, the Advisor may determine that it is in the best interests of clients to refrain from exercising the clients' proxy voting rights. The Advisor may determine that voting is not in the best interests of a client and refrain from voting if the costs, including the opportunity costs, of voting would, in the view of the Advisor, exceed the expected benefits of voting to the client.² For securities on loan and when the Advisor or an affiliate of the Advisor has agreed to monitor the securities lending program of the client account, the Advisor will balance the revenue-producing value of loans against the difficult-to-assess value of casting votes. It is generally the Advisors' belief that the expected value of casting a vote generally will be less than the securities lending income, either because the votes will not have significant economic consequences or because the outcome of the vote would not be affected by an Advisor recalling loaned securities for voting. In certain countries, such as the United States, the specific terms of the proposals to be voted on by shareholders will generally not be known until after the record date, which determines the shares eligible to be voted. In this situation, the Advisor may not be aware of the subject of a proxy in time to make a decision as to whether the materiality of the voting proposals warrants recalling a security on loan to vote. In addition, because specific record dates may not be known, if the Advisor were to seek to recall securities on loan, the Advisor would need to estimate the record date which would result in the securities being recalled for a longer period of time than otherwise required and may create a greater potential loss of income. Each Advisor does intend to recall securities on loan if, based upon information in the Advisor's possession, it determines that voting the securities is likely to materially affect the value of a client's investment and that it is in the client's best interests to do so.

² If a client does not share with its Advisor information regarding the cost of voting proxies so that the Advisor can perform a cost-benefit analysis, the Advisor will decide whether to vote proxies considering only the information on difficulties and costs that it has available.

In cases where an Advisor does not receive a solicitation or enough information within a sufficient time (as reasonably determined by the Advisor) prior to the proxy-voting deadline, the Advisor or its service provider may be unable to vote. As part of the vote execution services provided to the Advisors, a Proxy Advisory Firm pre-populates votes in accordance with the Policy and Guidelines. Such votes are automatically submitted unless modified by an Authorized Person prior to submission. The Advisors conduct sampling of select pre-populated votes prior to the final vote submission. For votes on certain issues, the Advisors conduct additional reviews as part of the voting process. If an Advisor becomes aware that a portfolio company or shareholder proponent of a proposal has filed or intends to file additional soliciting material after a Proxy Advisory Firm has pre-populated votes, and the company or proponent makes this material available within a sufficient time (as reasonably determined by the Advisor) prior to the proxy-voting deadline, the Advisor will assess whether the material could reasonably be expected to impact the Advisor's vote determination and will seek to review and consider any impactful material prior to the proxy-voting deadline.

The Advisors from time to time discuss governance matters with portfolio companies to represent client interests; however, regardless of such conversations, the Advisors acquire securities on behalf of their clients solely for the purpose of investment and not with the purpose or intended effect of changing or influencing the control of any portfolio company. The Advisors do not intend to engage in shareholder activism with respect to a pending vote or matter that an Advisor reasonably expects to be the subject of a shareholder vote in the foreseeable future. If an issuer's management, shareholders or proxy solicitors contact an Advisor with respect to a pending vote, a member of the Investment Stewardship Committee (or its delegee) may listen to such party and discuss this Policy with such party.

International Proxy Voting

While the Advisors utilize the Policy and Guidelines for both their international and domestic portfolios and clients, there are some significant differences between voting U.S. company proxies and voting non-U.S. company proxies. For U.S. companies, it is usually relatively easy to vote proxies, as the proxies are typically received automatically and may be voted by mail or electronically. In most cases, the officers of a U.S. company soliciting a proxy act as proxies for the company's shareholders.

With respect to non-U.S. companies, however, it may be both difficult and costly to vote proxies due to local regulations, customs or other requirements or restrictions, and such circumstances and expected costs may outweigh any anticipated economic benefit of voting. The major difficulties and costs may include: (i) appointing a proxy; (ii) obtaining reliable information about the time and location of a meeting; (iii) obtaining relevant information about voting procedures for foreign shareholders; (iv) restrictions on trading securities that are subject to proxy votes (share-blocking periods); (v) arranging for a proxy to vote locally in person; (vi) fees charged by custody banks for providing certain services with regard to voting proxies; and (vii) foregone income from securities lending programs. The Advisors do not intend to vote proxies of non-U.S. companies if they determine that the expected costs of voting outweigh any anticipated economic benefit to the client of voting. The Advisors intend to make their determination on whether to vote proxies of non-U.S. companies on a client by client basis. In doing so, the Advisors evaluate market requirements and impediments for voting proxies of companies in each country. The Advisors periodically review voting logistics, including costs and other voting difficulties, on a client by client and country by country basis, in order to determine if there have been any material changes that would affect the Advisors' determinations and procedures.³ In the event an Advisor is made aware of and believes that an issue to be voted is likely to materially affect the economic value of a portfolio, that its client's vote is reasonably likely to be determinative of the outcome of the contest, and that the expected benefits to the client of voting the proxies exceed the expected costs, the Advisor will seek to make reasonable efforts to vote such proxies.

³ If a client does not share with its Advisor information regarding the cost of voting proxies for certain non-U.S. companies or in certain countries so that the Advisor can perform a cost-benefit analysis, the Advisor will decide whether to vote proxies considering only the information on difficulties and costs that it has available.

Fixed Income Securities

Holders of fixed income securities are generally not entitled to an annual vote and therefore do not have such a mechanism to influence an issuer's governance. From time-to-time holders of fixed income securities can receive proxy ballots or corporate action-consents at the discretion of the issuer/custodian. When processed as proxy ballots, Proxy Advisory Firms generally do not provide a voting recommendation on such matters and the service provider's role is limited to election processing and recordkeeping. In such circumstances the Advisor's fixed income portfolio management team is generally responsible for providing recommendations on how to vote proxy ballots and corporation action-consents and they may consult with members of the Investment Stewardship Group, with the aim of applying the same general principles as are set out in the Guidelines.

Conflicts of Interest

Occasions may arise where an Authorized Person, one or more members of the Investment Stewardship Committee, an Advisor, or an affiliated person of an Advisor has a potential conflict of interest in connection with the proxy voting process. A conflict of interest may exist, for example, if an Advisor is actively soliciting investment advisory business from the company soliciting the proxy. Proxies that the Advisors receive on behalf of their clients generally will be voted in accordance with predetermined guidelines or procedures (or a client's predetermined custom guidelines or procedures), and when proxies are voted consistently with such guidelines or procedures, the Advisors consider such votes not to be affected by any conflicts of interest.

In the limited instances where (i) an Authorized Person is considering voting a proxy contrary to predetermined guidelines or procedures (or in cases for which the guidelines or procedures do not prescribe a particular vote and the proposed vote is contrary to the recommendation of the Proxy Advisory Firm primarily used by the Advisors to provide voting recommendations), and (ii) the Authorized Person or any member of the Investment Stewardship Committee believes a potential conflict of interest exists, the Authorized Person will disclose the potential conflict of interest exists, the member will disclose the conflict to the Investment Stewardship Committee who believes a potential conflict of interest exists, the member will disclose the conflict to the Investment Stewardship Committee. Such disclosure will describe the proposal to be voted upon and disclose any potential conflict of interest including but not limited to any potential personal conflict of interest (e.g., familial relationship with company management) the Authorized Person may have relating to the proxy vote, in which case the Authorized Person will remove himself or herself from the proxy voting process.

If the Investment Stewardship Committee member has actual knowledge of a conflict of interest and recommends a vote contrary to predetermined guidelines or procedures (or in the case where the guidelines or procedures do not prescribe a particular vote and the proposed vote is contrary to the recommendation of the Proxy Advisory Firm), the Investment Stewardship Committee member will bring the vote to the Investment Stewardship Committee, which will (a) determine how the vote should be cast, keeping in mind the principle of preserving shareholder value or (b) determine to abstain from voting, unless abstaining would be materially adverse to the client's interest. To the extent the Investment Stewardship Committee makes a determination regarding how to vote or to abstain for a proxy on behalf of a Dimensional Investment Company in the circumstances described in this paragraph, Dimensional will report annually on such determinations to the respective Board of Directors/Trustees of the Dimensional Investment Company. The Advisors will also consider, where appropriate, other disclosure to clients regarding potential conflicts of interest, dependent upon the agreement with the client.

Voting by Dimensional Funds that hold shares of other Dimensional Funds. To avoid certain potential conflicts of interest, Dimensional generally will employ mirror voting, if possible, when a Dimensional Fund invests in another Dimensional Fund in reliance on any one of Sections 12(d)(1)(E), 12(d)(1)(F) or 12(d)(1)(G) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, ("1940 Act"), related rules thereunder (including Rule 12d1-1 or Rule 12d1-4 under the 1940 Act), or pursuant to an SEC exemptive order thereunder, unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation. Mirror voting means that Dimensional Fund invests in an underlying Dimensional Fund in reliance on Section 12(d)(1)(G) of the 1940 Act, related rules thereunder (including Rule 12d1-4), or pursuant to an SEC exemptive order thereunder, and there are no other unaffiliated shareholders also invested in the underlying Dimensional Fund, Dimensional will vote in accordance with the recommendation of such Dimensional Investment Company's board of trustees or directors, unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation. Mirror so do the rustees in an underlying Dimensional will vote in accordance with the recommendation of such Dimensional Investment Company's board of trustees or directors, unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation. With respect to instances when a Dimensional Fund invests in an underlying Dimensional Fund in reliance on Sections 12(d)(1)(E) or 12(d)(1)(F) of the 1940 Act and there are no other unaffiliated shareholders also invested in the underlying Dimensional Fund in reliance on Sections 12(d)(1)(E) or 12(d)(1)(F) of the 1940 Act and there are no other unaffiliated shareholders also invested in the underlying Dimensional Fund, Dimensional will employ pass-through voting, unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulation. In "pass-through voting," the investing Dimensional Fund will solicit voting instructions from its shareholders as to how to vote on the underlying Dimensional Fun

Availability of Proxy Voting Information and Recordkeeping

Each Advisor will inform those clients for which it has voting authority how to obtain information from the Advisor about how it voted with respect to client securities. The Advisor will provide those clients with a summary of its proxy voting guidelines, process and policies and will inform the clients how they can obtain a copy of the complete Policy upon request. If an Advisor is registered under the Advisers Act, the Advisor will also: (i) include such information described in the preceding two sentences in Part 2A of its Form ADV and (ii) if and as required, seek to file on Form N-PX its proxy voting record in respect of certain votes no later than August 31 of each year, for the twelve-month period ending June 30 of the current year.

Recordkeeping

The Advisors will also keep records of the following items: (i) their proxy voting guidelines, policies and procedures and documentation of their annual reviews of such guidelines, policies and procedures; (ii) proxy statements received regarding client securities (unless such statements are available on the SEC's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval (EDGAR) system); (iii) records of votes they cast on behalf of clients, which may be maintained by a Proxy Advisory Firm if it undertakes to provide copies of those records promptly upon request; (iv) records of written client requests for proxy voting information and an Advisor's responses (whether a client's request was oral or in writing); (v) any documents prepared by an Advisor that were material to making a decision how to vote, or that memorialized the basis for the decision; (vi) a record of any testing conducted on any Proxy Advisory Firm's votes; and (vii) a copy of each version of the Proxy Advisory Firm's policies and procedures provided to the Advisors. The Advisors will maintain these records in an easily accessible place for at least *six years* from the end of the fiscal year during which the last entry was made on such records. For the first two years, each Advisor will store such records at one of its principal offices.

Disclosure by the Dimensional Investment Companies

Dimensional shall disclose in the statements of additional information of the Dimensional Investment Companies a summary of procedures which Dimensional uses to determine how to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities of the Dimensional Investment Companies. The disclosure will include a description of the procedures used when a vote presents a conflict of interest between shareholders and Dimensional, DFA Securities LLC ("DFAS") or an affiliate of Dimensional or DFAS.

The semi-annual reports of the Dimensional Investment Companies shall indicate that a description of the policies and procedures that the Dimensional Investment Companies use in voting proxies of portfolio securities is available: (i) without charge, upon request, by calling Dimensional collect; or (ii) on the SEC's website. Any requested description must be sent within three business days by a prompt method of delivery.

Dimensional, on behalf of each Dimensional Investment Company it advises, each applicable Advisor, and as otherwise as required, shall file its proxy voting record with the SEC on Form N-PX no later than August 31 of each year, for the twelve-month period ending June 30 of the current year. Such filings shall contain all information required to be disclosed on Form N-PX by each Dimensional Investment Company and each Advisor, as applicable.

Exhibit A

Summary of Proxy Voting Guidelines

General Approach to Corporate Governance and Proxy Voting

When voting (or refraining from voting) proxies, Dimensional⁴ seeks to act in the best interests of the funds and accounts Dimensional manages and consistent with applicable legal and fiduciary standards. Dimensional seeks to maximize shareholder value subject to the standards of legal and regulatory regimes (applicable to the Advisor or the client), listing requirements, corporate governance and stewardship codes, and the investment or voting guidelines of the fund or account. ⁵

Dimensional expects the members of a portfolio company's board to act in the interests of their shareholders. Each portfolio company's board should implement policies and adopt practices that align the interests of the board and management with those of its shareholders. Since a board's main responsibility is to oversee management and to manage and mitigate risk, it is important that board members have the experience and skills to carry out that responsibility.

This summary outlines Dimensional's global approach to key proxy voting issues and highlights particular considerations in specific markets.

Global Evaluation Framework

Dimensional's Global Evaluation Framework sets out Dimensional's general expectations for all portfolio companies. When implementing the principles contained in Dimensional's Global Evaluation Framework in a given market, in addition to the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, Dimensional will consider local market practices. Additionally, for portfolio companies in the United States, Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Japan, Australia and other select Asia markets, Dimensional will apply the market-specific considerations contained in the relevant subsection in these Guidelines.

Uncontested Director Elections

Dimensional may vote against individual directors, committee members, or the full board of a portfolio company, such as in the following situations:

- 1. There are problematic audit-related practices;
- 2. There are problematic compensation practices or persistent pay for performance misalignment;
- 3. There are problematic anti-takeover provisions;
- 4. There have been material failures of governance, risk oversight, or fiduciary responsibilities;
- 5. The board has failed to adequately respond to shareholder concerns;
- 6. The board has demonstrated a lack of accountability to shareholders;
- 7. There is an ineffective board refreshment $process^6$;

If a director is a member of multiple boards of various portfolio companies, and one of those boards has one of the issues listed in 1-7 above, Dimensional may vote against that director with respect to the board of the portfolio company with the issue as well as any other portfolio company boards.

⁴ "Dimensional" refers to any of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional Ireland Limited, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd. or Dimensional Japan Ltd.

⁵ For considerations in connection with ERISA-covered clients, see the Policy and its references to requirements under ERISA.

⁶ As used in these guidelines "board refreshment process" means the method for reviewing and establishing the composition of the board of the portfolio company (e.g., assessments or self-evaluation, succession planning, approach for searches for board members, criteria for qualification of board members).

A-8

Dimensional also considers the following when voting on directors of portfolio companies:

- 1. Board and committee independence;
- 2. Director attendance: Dimensional generally expects directors to attend at least 75% of board and committee meetings;
- 3. Director capacity to serve;
- 4. Board composition.

Board Refreshment

An effective board refreshment process for a portfolio company can include the alignment of directors' skills with business needs, assessment of individual director performance and feedback, and a search process for new directors that appropriately incorporates qualification criteria. Dimensional believes information about a portfolio company's assessment and refreshment process should be disclosed and should generally include:

- The processes and procedures by which the portfolio company identifies the key competencies that directors should possess in order to ensure the board is able to appropriately oversee the risks and opportunities associated with the portfolio company's strategy and operations;
- How the performance of individual directors and the board as a whole is assessed;
- The alignment between the skills and expertise of each board member and the key competencies identified in the board assessment process;
- Board refreshment mechanisms;
- Director recruitment policies and procedures; and
- · The extent to which diversity considerations are incorporated into board assessment and refreshment practices and director recruitment policies.

In evaluating a portfolio company's refreshment process, Dimensional may consider, among other information:

- Whether the portfolio company's board assessment process meets market best practices in terms of objectiveness, rigor, disclosure, and other criteria;
- · Whether the portfolio company has any mechanisms to encourage board refreshment; and
- · Whether the portfolio company has board entrenchment devices, such as a classified board or plurality vote standard.

An additional consideration that may lead Dimensional to scrutinize the effectiveness of a portfolio company's board refreshment process is a lack of gender, racial, or ethnic diversity on the board. In jurisdictions where gender, racial, or ethnic representation on a board is not mandated by law, Dimensional may consider whether a portfolio company seeks to follow market best practices as the portfolio company nominates new directors and assesses the performance of existing directors who have the diversity of backgrounds, experiences, and skill-sets needed to effectively oversee management and manage risk.

If Dimensional believes that a portfolio company's board assessment and refreshment process is not sufficiently rigorous, or if the portfolio company fails to disclose adequate information for Dimensional to assess the rigor of the process, Dimensional may vote against members of the Nominating Committee, or other relevant directors.

Bundled/Slate Director Elections

Dimensional generally opposes bundled director elections at portfolio companies; however, in markets where individual director elections are not an established practice, bundled elections are acceptable as long as the full list of candidates is disclosed in a timely manner.

Contested Director Elections

In the case of contested board elections at portfolio companies, Dimensional takes a case-by-case approach. With the goal of maximizing shareholder value, Dimensional considers the qualifications of the nominees, the likelihood that each side can accomplish their stated plans, the portfolio company's corporate governance practices, and the incumbent board's history of responsiveness to shareholders.

Board Size

Dimensional believes that portfolio company boards are responsible for determining an appropriate size of the board of directors within the confines of relevant corporate governance codes and best practice standards. However, Dimensional will generally oppose proposals to alter board structure or size in the context of a fight for control of the portfolio company or the board.

Auditors

Dimensional will typically support the ratification of auditors unless there are concerns with the auditor's independence, the accuracy of the auditor's report, the level of non-audit fees, or if lack of disclosure makes it difficult for us to assess these factors.

In addition to voting against the ratification of the auditors, Dimensional may also vote against or withhold votes from audit committee members at portfolio companies in instances of fraud, material weakness, or significant financial restatements.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Dimensional believes that the market for corporate control, which often results in acquisitions which increase shareholder value, should be able to function without undue restrictions. Takeover defenses such as shareholder rights plans (poison pills) can lead to entrenchment of management and reduced accountability at the board level. Dimensional will generally vote against the adoption of anti-takeover provisions. Dimensional may vote against directors at portfolio companies that adopt or maintain anti-takeover provisions without shareholder approval post-initial public offering ("IPO") or adopted such structures prior to, or in connection with, an IPO. Dimensional may vote against such directors not just at the portfolio company that adopted the anti-takeover provision, but at all other portfolio company boards they serve on.

Related-Party Transactions

Related-party transactions have played a significant role in several high-profile corporate scandals and failures. Dimensional believes related-party transactions should be minimized. When such transactions are determined to be fair to the portfolio company and its shareholders in accordance with the portfolio company's policies and governing law, they should be thoroughly disclosed in public filings.

Amendments to Articles of Association/Incorporation

Dimensional expects the details of proposed amendments to articles of association or incorporation, or similar portfolio company documents, to be clearly disclosed. Dimensional will typically support such amendments that are routine in nature or are required or prompted by regulatory changes. Dimensional may vote against amendments that negatively impact shareholder rights or diminish board oversight.

Equity Based Remuneration

Dimensional supports the adoption of equity plans that align the interests of the portfolio company board, management, and portfolio company employees with those of shareholders.

Dimensional will evaluate equity plans on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the potential dilution to shareholders, the portfolio company's historical use of equity, and the particular plan features.

Executive Remuneration

Dimensional supports remuneration for executives that is clearly linked to the portfolio company's performance. Remuneration should be designed to attract, retain and appropriately motivate and serve as a means to align the interests of executives with those of shareholders.

Dimensional expects portfolio companies to structure executive compensation in a manner that does not insulate management from the consequences of failures of risk oversight and management. Dimensional typically supports clawback provisions in executive compensation plans as a way to mitigate risk of excessive risk taking by executives at portfolio companies.

Dimensional supports remuneration plan metrics that are quantifiable and clearly tied to company strategy and the creation of shareholder value. The use of standard financial metrics, for example, metrics based on generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") or international financial reporting standards, when determining executive pay is generally considered by Dimensional to be preferable. The use of non-standard metrics, including those involving large non-GAAP adjustments, result in less transparency for investors and may lead to artificially high executive pay. In evaluating a portfolio company's executive compensation, Dimensional considers whether the portfolio company is disclosing what each metric is intended to capture, how performance is measured, what targets have been set, and performance against those targets. While environmental and social (E&S) issues may be material for shareholder value, Dimensional believes linking E&S metrics to executive pay in a quantifiable and transparent manner can present particular challenges. Dimensional will seek to focus on the rigor of E&S metrics and will seek to scrutinize payouts made under these metrics, particularly when there has been underperformance against other metrics tied to financial performance or shareholder value.

To the extent that remuneration is clearly excessive and not aligned with the portfolio company's performance or other factors, Dimensional would not support such remuneration. Additionally, Dimensional expects portfolio companies to strive to follow local market practices with regards to the specific elements of remuneration and the overall structure of the remuneration plan.

Therefore, Dimensional reviews proposals seeking approval of a portfolio company's executive remuneration plan closely, taking into account the quantum of pay, portfolio company performance, and the structure of the plan.

Director Remuneration

Dimensional will generally support director remuneration at portfolio companies that is reasonable in both size and composition relative to industry and market norms.

Mergers & Acquisitions (M&A)

Dimensional's primary consideration in evaluating mergers and acquisitions is maximizing shareholder value. Given that Dimensional believes market prices reflect future expected cash flows, an important consideration is the price reaction to the announcement, and the extent to which the deal represents a premium to the pre-announcement price. Dimensional will also consider the strategic rationale, potential conflicts of interest, and the possibility of competing offers.

Dimensional may vote against deals where there are concerns with the acquisition process or where there appear to be significant conflicts of interest.

Capitalization

Dimensional will vote case-by-case on proposals related to portfolio company share issuances, taking into account the purpose for which the shares will be used, the risk to shareholders of not approving the request, and the dilution to existing shareholders.

Unequal Voting Rights

Dimensional opposes the creation of share structures that provide for unequal voting rights, including dual class stock with unequal voting rights or mechanisms such as loyalty shares that may skew economic ownership and voting rights within the same class of shares, and will generally vote against proposals to create or continue such structures. On a case-by-case basis, Dimensional may also vote against directors at portfolio companies that adopt or maintain such structures without shareholder approval post-IPO or adopted such structures prior to, or in connection with, an IPO.

Say on Climate

Dimensional will generally vote against management and shareholder proposals to introduce say on climate votes, which propose that companies' climaterisk management plans are put to a recurring advisory shareholder vote. Dimensional believes that strategic planning, including mitigation of climate-related risks and oversight of opportunities presented by potential climate change is the responsibility of the portfolio company board and should not be delegated or transferred to shareholders. If a portfolio company's climate-risk management plan is put to a shareholder vote then Dimensional will generally vote against the plan, regardless of the level of detail contained in the plan, to indicate our opposition to the delegation of oversight implied by such votes If Dimensional observes that a portfolio company board is failing to adequately guard shareholder value through strategic planning, Dimensional may vote against directors.

Shareholder Proposals

Dimensional's goal when voting on portfolio company shareholder proposals is to support those proposals that protect or enhance shareholder value through improved board accountability, improved policies and procedures, or improved disclosure.

When evaluating environmental or social shareholder proposals, Dimensional will use research to consider whether the proposal addresses a material issue to the portfolio company, the portfolio company's current handling of the issue (both on an absolute basis and relative to market practices), the portfolio company's compliance with regulatory requirements, and the potential cost to the portfolio company of implementing the proposal.

Virtual Meetings

Dimensional does not oppose the use of virtual-only meetings if shareholders are provided with the same rights and opportunities as available during a physical meeting, including:

- The ability to see and hear portfolio company representatives;
- The ability to ask questions of portfolio company representatives; and
- The ability to see or hear questions submitted to portfolio company representatives by other shareholders, including those questions not answered by portfolio company representatives.

Disclosure of Vote Results

Dimensional expects detailed disclosure of voting results. In cases where vote results have not been disclosed within a reasonable time frame, Dimensional may vote against individual directors, committee members, or the full board of a portfolio company.

Voting Guidelines for Environmental and Social Matters

Dimensional believes that portfolio company boards are responsible for addressing material environmental and social risks within their duties. If a portfolio company is unresponsive to environmental or social risks that may have material economic ramifications for shareholders, Dimensional may vote against directors individually, committee members, or the entire board. Dimensional may communicate with portfolio companies to better understand the alignment of the interests of boards and management with those of shareholders on these topics.

Dimensional evaluates shareholder proposals on environmental or social issues by paying particular attention to the portfolio company's current handling of the issue, current disclosures, the financial materiality of the issue, market practices, and regulatory requirements. Dimensional may vote for proposals requesting disclosure of specific environmental and social data, such as information about board oversight, risk management policies and procedures, or performance against a specific metric, if Dimensional believes that the portfolio company's current disclosure is inadequate to allow shareholders to effectively assess the portfolio company's handling of a material issue.

Evaluating Disclosure of Material Environmental or Social Risks

Dimensional generally believes that information about the oversight and mitigation of material environmental or social risks should be disclosed by portfolio companies. Dimensional generally expects the disclosure regarding oversight and mitigation to include:

- A description of material risks.
- A description of the process for identifying and prioritizing such risks and how frequently it occurs.
- The policies and procedures governing the handling of each material risk.
- A description of the management-level roles/groups involved in oversight and mitigation of each material risk.
- A description of the metrics used to assess the effectiveness of mitigating each material risk, and the frequency at which performance against these
 metrics is assessed.
- A description of how the board is informed of material risks and the progress against relevant metrics.

In certain instances where Dimensional determines that disclosure by a portfolio company is insufficient for a shareholder to be able to adequately assess the relevant risks facing a portfolio company, Dimensional may, on a case-by-case basis, vote against individual directors, committee members, or the entire board, or may vote in favor of related shareholder proposals consistent with Dimensional's general approach to such proposals.

Political and Lobbying Activities

Dimensional expects boards of portfolio companies to exercise oversight of political and lobbying-related expenditures and ensure that such spending is in line with shareholder interests.

In evaluating a portfolio company's policies related to political and lobbying expenditure, Dimensional expects the following practices:

- The board to adopt policies and procedures to oversee political and lobbying expenditures;
- The details of the board oversight, including the policies and procedures governing such expenditures, to be disclosed publicly; and
- That board oversight of political and lobbying activities, such as spending, should include ensuring that the portfolio company's publicly stated positions are in alignment with its related activities and spending.

Human Capital Management

Dimensional expects boards of portfolio companies to exercise oversight of human capital management issues. Dimensional expects portfolio companies to disclose sufficient information for shareholders to understand the policies, procedures, and personnel a portfolio company has in place to address issues related to human capital management. This disclosure should include the portfolio company's human capital management goals in key areas, such as compensation, employee health and wellness, employee training and development, and workforce composition, as well as the metrics by which the portfolio company assesses performance against these goals.

Climate-Related Risks

Dimensional expects boards of portfolio companies to exercise oversight of climate-related risks that may have a material impact on the portfolio company. Climate-related risks may include physical risks from changing weather patterns and/or transitional risks from changes in regulation or consumer preferences. Dimensional expects portfolio companies to disclose information on their handling of these risks, to the extent those risks may have a material impact on the portfolio company. Disclosure should include:

- The specific risks identified.
- The potential impact these risks could have on the portfolio company's business, operations, or strategy.
- Whether the risks are overseen by a specific committee or the full board.
- · The frequency with which the board or responsible board committee receives updates on the risks and the types of information reviewed.
- The management-level roles/groups responsible for managing these risks.
- The metrics used to assess the handling of these risks, how they are calculated, and the reason for their selection, particularly when the metrics
 recommended by a recognized third-party framework, such as Task Force for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) or Sustainability
 Accounting Standards Board (SASB), are not being used.
- Targets used by the portfolio company to manage climate-related risks and performance against those targets.

Human Rights

Dimensional expects portfolio company boards to exercise oversight of human rights issues that could pose a material risk to the business, including forced labor, child labor, privacy, freedom of expression, and land and water rights. Dimensional expects portfolio companies to disclose information on their handling of these risks, to the extent those risks may have a material impact on the portfolio company. Disclosure should include:

- The specific risks identified
- The potential impact these risks could have on the portfolio company's business, operations, or strategy
- Whether the risks are overseen by a specific committee or the full board
- · The frequency with which the board or responsible board committee receives updates on the risks and the types of information reviewed

- Details on how the portfolio company monitors human rights throughout the organization and supply chain, including the scope and frequency of audits and how instances of non-compliance are resolved
- The policies governing human rights throughout the organization and supply chain and the extent to which the policy aligns with recognized global frameworks such as the UN's Guiding Principles on Human Rights and the OECD's Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises
- · Details of violations of the policy and corrective action taken

Cybersecurity

Dimensional expects portfolio company boards to exercise oversight of cybersecurity issues that could pose a material risk to the business. Dimensional expects portfolio companies to disclose information on their handling of these risks, to the extent those risks may have a material impact on the portfolio company. Disclosure should include:

- · Policies and procedures to manage cybersecurity risk and identify cybersecurity incidents
- The role of management in implementing cybersecurity policies and procedures
- The role of the board in overseeing cybersecurity risk and the process by which the board is informed of incidents.
- Material cybersecurity incidents and remedial actions taken.

Evaluation Framework for U.S. Listed Companies

Director Elections:

Uncontested Director Elections

Shareholders elect the board of a portfolio company to represent their interests and oversee management and expect boards to adopt policies and practices that align the interests of the board and management with those of shareholders and limit the potential for conflicts of interest.

One of the most important measures aimed at ensuring that portfolio company shareholders' interests are represented is an independent board of directors, made up of individuals with the diversity of backgrounds, experiences, and skill-sets needed to effectively oversee management and manage risk. Dimensional expects portfolio company boards to be majority independent and key committees to be fully independent.

Dimensional believes shareholders should have a say in who represents their interests and portfolio companies should be responsive to shareholder concerns. Dimensional may vote against or withhold votes from individual directors, committee members, or the full board, and may also vote against such directors when they serve on other portfolio company boards, in the following situations:

- The continued service of directors who failed to receive the support of a majority of shareholders (regardless of whether the portfolio company uses a majority or plurality vote standard).
- Failure to adequately respond to majority-supported shareholder proposals.

Contested Director Elections

In the case of contested board elections at portfolio companies, Dimensional takes a case-by-case approach. With the goal of maximizing shareholder value, Dimensional considers the qualifications of the nominees, the likelihood that each side can accomplish their stated plans, the portfolio company's corporate governance practices, the incumbent board's history of responsiveness to shareholders, and the market's reaction to the contest.

Board Structure and Composition:

Age and Term Limits

Dimensional believes it is the responsibility of a portfolio company's nominating committee to ensure that the portfolio company's board of directors is composed of individuals with the skills needed to effectively oversee management and will generally oppose proposals seeking to impose age or term limits for directors.

That said, portfolio companies should clearly disclose their director evaluation and board refreshment policies in their proxy. Lack of healthy turnover on the board of a portfolio company or lack of observable diversity on a portfolio company board may lead Dimensional to scrutinize the rigor of a portfolio company's board refreshment process.

CEO/Chair

Dimensional believes that the portfolio company boards are responsible for determining whether the separation of roles is appropriate and adequately protects the interests of shareholders.

At portfolio companies with a combined CEO/Chair, Dimensional expects the board to appoint a lead independent director with specific responsibilities, including the setting of meeting agendas, to seek to ensure the board is able to act independently.

Recent environmental, social, and governance controversies resulting from inadequate board oversight may be taken into account when voting on shareholder proposals seeking the separation of the roles of CEO and Chair at a portfolio company.

Governance Practices:

Classified Boards

Dimensional believes director votes are an important mechanism to increase board accountability to shareholders. Dimensional therefore advocates for boards at portfolio companies to give shareholders the right to vote on the entire slate of directors on an annual basis.

Dimensional will generally support proposals to declassify existing boards at portfolio companies and will generally oppose efforts by portfolio companies to adopt classified board structures, in which only part of the board is elected each year.

Dimensional will generally vote against or withhold votes from incumbent directors at portfolio companies that adopt a classified board without shareholder approval. Dimensional may also vote against or withhold votes from directors at portfolio companies that adopt classified boards prior to or in connection with an IPO, unless accompanied by a reasonable sunset provision.

Dual Classes of Stock

Dual class share structures are generally seen as detrimental to shareholder rights, as they are accompanied by unequal voting rights. Dimensional believes in the principle of one share, one vote.

Dimensional opposes the creation of dual-class share structures with unequal voting rights at portfolio companies and will generally vote against proposals to create or continue dual-class capital structures.

Dimensional will generally vote against or withhold votes from directors at portfolio companies that adopt a dual-class structure without shareholder approval after the portfolio company's IPO. Dimensional will generally vote against or withhold votes from directors for implementation of a dual-class structure prior to or in connection with an IPO, unless accompanied by a reasonable sunset provision.

Supermajority Vote Requirements

Dimensional believes that the affirmative vote of a majority of shareholders of a portfolio company should be sufficient to approve items such as bylaw amendments and mergers. Dimensional will generally vote against proposals seeking to implement a supermajority vote requirement and for shareholder proposals seeking the adoption of a majority vote standard.

Dimensional will generally vote against or withhold votes from incumbent directors at portfolio companies that adopt a supermajority vote requirement without shareholder approval. Dimensional may also vote against or withhold votes from directors at portfolio companies that adopt supermajority vote requirements prior to or in connection with an IPO, unless accompanied by a reasonable sunset provision.

Shareholder Rights Plans (Poison Pills)

Dimensional generally opposes poison pills. As a result, Dimensional may vote against the adoption of a pill and all directors at a portfolio company that put a pill in place without first obtaining shareholder approval. Votes against (or withheld votes from) directors may extend beyond the portfolio company that adopted the pill, to all boards the directors serve on. In considering a poison pill for approval, Dimensional may take into account the existence of 'qualified offer' and other shareholder-friendly provisions.

For pills designed to protect net operating losses, Dimensional may take into consideration a variety of factors, including but not limited to the size of the available operating losses and the likelihood that they will be utilized to offset gains.

Cumulative Voting

Under cumulative voting, each shareholder is entitled to the number of his or her shares multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. Shareholders have the flexibility to allocate their votes among directors in the proportion they see fit, including casting all their votes for one director. This is particularly impactful in the election of dissident candidates to the board in the event of a proxy contest.

Dimensional will typically support proposals that provide for cumulative voting and against proposals to eliminate cumulative voting unless the portfolio company has demonstrated that there are adequate safeguards in place, such as proxy access and majority voting.

Majority Voting

For the election of directors, portfolio companies may adopt either a majority or plurality vote standard. In a plurality vote standard, the directors with the most votes are elected. If the number of directors up for election is equal to the number of board seats, each director only needs to receive one vote in order to be elected. In a majority vote standard, in order to be elected, a director must receive the support of a majority of shares voted or present at the meeting.

Dimensional supports a majority (rather than plurality) voting standard for uncontested director elections at portfolio companies. The majority vote standard should be accompanied by a director resignation policy to address failed elections.

To account for contested director elections, portfolio companies with a majority vote standard should include a carve-out for plurality voting in situations where there are more nominees than seats.

<u>Right to Call Meetings and Act by Written Consent</u>

Dimensional will generally support the right of shareholders to call special meetings of a portfolio company board (if they own 25% of shares outstanding) and take action by written consent.

Proxy Access

Dimensional will typically support management and shareholder proposals for proxy access that allow a shareholder (or group of shareholders) holding three percent of voting power for three years to nominate up to 25 percent of a portfolio company board. Dimensional will typically vote against proposals that are more restrictive than these guidelines.

Amend Bylaws/Charters

Dimensional believes that shareholders should have the right to amend a portfolio company's bylaws. Dimensional will generally vote against or withhold votes from incumbent directors at portfolio companies that place substantial restrictions on shareholders' ability to amend bylaws through excessive ownership requirements for submitting proposals or restrictions on the types of issues that can be amended.

Exclusive Forum

Dimensional is generally supportive of management proposals at portfolio companies to adopt an exclusive forum for shareholder litigation.

Indemnification and Exculpation of Directors and Officers

Dimensional intends to evaluate proposals seeking to enact or expand indemnification or exculpation provisions on a case-by-case basis considering board rationale and specific provisions being proposed.

Advance Notice Provisions

Portfolio company bylaw amendments known as "advance notice provisions" set out the steps shareholders must follow when submitting an item for inclusion on the agenda of a shareholder meeting. These provisions may serve as an entrenchment device that can result in reduced accountability at the board level in cases where they impose onerous requirements on shareholders wishing to submit a nominee for the board of directors. When evaluating advanced notice provisions, whether for the submission of a shareholder candidate or the submission of other permissible proposals, Dimensional generally does not support provisions that:

- · Require shareholder-nominated candidates to disclose information that is not required for new board-nominated candidates
- Impose unduly burdensome disclosure requirements on shareholder proponents
- Significantly limit the time period shareholders have to submit proposals or nominees

Dimensional may vote against or withhold votes from directors who adopt such provisions without shareholder approval.

Executive and Director Compensation:

Equity-Based Compensation

Dimensional supports the adoption of equity plans that align the interests of portfolio company board, management, and portfolio company employees with those of shareholders.

Dimensional will evaluate equity plans on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the potential dilution to shareholders, the portfolio company's historical use of equity, and the particular plan features.

Dimensional will typically vote against plans that have features that have a negative impact on shareholders of portfolio companies. Such features include single-trigger or discretionary vesting, an overly broad definition of change in control, a lack of minimum vesting periods for grants, evergreen provisions, and the ability to reprice shares without shareholder approval.

Dimensional may also vote against equity plans if problematic equity grant practices have contributed to a pay for performance misalignment at the portfolio company.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

Dimensional will generally support qualified employee stock purchase plans (as defined by Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code), provided that the purchase price is no less than 85 percent of market value, the number of shares reserved for the plan is no more than ten percent of outstanding shares, and the offering period is no more than 27 months.

Advisory Votes on Executive Compensation (Say on Pay)

Dimensional supports reasonable compensation for executives that is clearly linked to the portfolio company's performance. Compensation should serve as a means to align the interests of executives with those of shareholders. To the extent that compensation is excessive, it represents a transfer to management of shareholder wealth. Therefore, Dimensional reviews proposals seeking approval of a portfolio company's executive compensation plan closely, taking into account the quantum of pay, portfolio company performance, and the structure of the plan.

Certain practices, such as:

- multi-year guaranteed bonuses
- excessive severance agreements (particularly those that vest without involuntary job loss or diminution of duties or those with excise-tax gross-ups)
- single, or the same, metrics used for both short-term and long-term executive compensation plans may encourage excessive risk-taking by
 executives at portfolio companies and are generally opposed by Dimensional.

At portfolio companies that have a history of problematic pay practices or excessive compensation, Dimensional will consider the portfolio company's responsiveness to shareholders' concerns and may vote against or withhold votes from members of the compensation committee if these concerns have not been addressed.

Frequency of Say on Pay

Executive compensation in the United States is typically composed of three parts: 1) base salary; 2) cash bonuses based on annual performance (short-term incentive awards); 3) and equity awards based on performance over a multi-year period (long-term incentive awards).

Dimensional supports triennial say on pay because it allows for a longer-term assessment of whether compensation was adequately linked to portfolio company performance. This is particularly important in situations where a portfolio company makes significant changes to their long-term incentive awards, as the effectiveness of such changes in aligning pay and performance cannot be determined in a single year.

If there are serious concerns about a portfolio company's compensation plan in a year where the plan is not on the ballot, Dimensional may vote against or withhold votes from members of the Compensation Committee.

Executive Severance Agreements (Golden Parachutes)

Dimensional analyzes golden parachute proposals on a case-by-case basis.

Dimensional expects payments to be reasonable on both an absolute basis and relative to the value of the transaction. Dimensional will typically vote against agreements with cash severance of more than 3x salary and bonus.

Dimensional expects vesting of equity to be contingent on both a change in control and a subsequent involuntary termination of the employee ("double-trigger change in control").

Corporate Actions:

Reincorporation

Dimensional will evaluate reincorporation proposals on a case-by-case basis.

Dimensional may vote against reincorporations if the move would result in a substantial diminution of shareholder rights at the portfolio company.

Capitalization:

Increase Authorized Shares

Dimensional will vote case-by-case on proposals seeking to increase common or preferred stock of a portfolio company, taking into account the purpose for which the shares will be used and the risk to shareholders of not approving the request.

Dimensional will typically vote against requests for common or preferred stock issuances that are excessively dilutive relative to common market practice.

Dimensional will typically vote against proposals at portfolio companies with multiple share classes to increase the number of shares of the class with superior voting rights.

Blank Check Preferred Stock

Blank check preferred stock is stock that can be issued at the discretion of the board, with the voting, conversion, distribution, and other rights determined by the board at the time of issue. Therefore, blank check preferred stock can potentially serve as means to entrench management and prevent takeovers at portfolio companies.

To mitigate concerns regarding what Dimensional believes is the inappropriate use of blank check preferred stock, Dimensional expects portfolio companies seeking approval for blank preferred stock to clearly state that the shares will not be used for anti-takeover purposes.

Share Repurchases

Dimensional will generally support open-market share repurchase plans that allow all shareholders to participate on equal terms. Portfolio companies that use metrics such as earnings per share (EPS) in their executive compensation plans should ensure that the impact of such repurchases are taken into account when determining payouts.

Shareholder Proposals:

Dimensional's goal when voting on portfolio company shareholder proposals is to support those proposals that protect or enhance shareholder value through improved board accountability, improved policies and procedures, or improved disclosure.

When evaluating environmental or social shareholder proposals, Dimensional will use research to consider whether the proposal addresses a material issue to the portfolio company, the portfolio company's current handling of the issue (both on an absolute basis and relative to market practices), the portfolio company's compliance with regulatory requirements, and the potential cost to the portfolio company of implementing the proposal.

In instances where a shareholder proposal is excluded from the meeting agenda but the SEC has declined to state a view on whether such proposal can be excluded, Dimensional expects the portfolio company to provide shareholders with substantive disclosure concerning this exclusion. If substantive disclosure is lacking, Dimensional may vote against or withhold votes from certain directors on a case-by-case basis.

Evaluation Framework for Europe, the Middle East, and Africa (EMEA) Listed Companies

Continental Europe:

Director Election Guidelines

- Portfolio company boards should be majority independent (excluding shareholder or employee representatives as provided by law); however, lower levels of board independence may be acceptable in controlled companies and in those markets where local best practice indicates that at least one-third of the board be independent.
- A majority of audit and remuneration committee members (excluding shareholder or employee representatives as provided by law) should be independent; the committees overall should be at least one-third independent.
- Executives should generally not serve on audit and remuneration committees.
- The CEO and board chair roles should generally be separate.

Remuneration Guidelines

Dimensional expects annual remuneration reports published by portfolio companies pursuant to the Shareholder Rights Directive II to disclose, at a minimum:

- The amount paid to executives;
- Alignment between pay and performance;
- · The targets used for variable incentive plans and the ex-post levels achieved; and
- The rationale for any discretion applied.

Other Market Specific Guidelines for Continental Europe

• In Austria, Germany, and the Netherlands, Dimensional will generally vote against the appointment of a former CEO as chairman of the board of directors or supervisory board of a portfolio company.

United Kingdom & Ireland:

Dimensional expects portfolio companies to follow the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code with regards to board and committee composition. When evaluating portfolio company boards Dimensional will also consider the recommendations of the FTSE Women Leaders and Parker Reviews with regards to female and minority representation on the board.

Dimensional also expects companies to align their remuneration with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code and to consider best practices such as those set forth in the Investment Association Principles of Remuneration.

South Africa:

Dimensional expects portfolio companies to follow the recommendations of the King Report on Corporate Governance (King Code IV) with regards to board and committee composition.

Turkey:

Dimensional expects the board of directors of a portfolio company to be at least one-third independent; at minimum two directors should be independent.

Dimensional expects the board of a portfolio company to establish an independent audit committee.

Dimensional expects the board of a portfolio company to establish a board committee with responsibility for compensation and nominating matters. This committee should be chaired by an independent director.

Framework for Evaluating Australia-Listed Companies

Uncontested Director Elections

Shareholders elect the board of a portfolio company to represent their interests and oversee management and expect portfolio company boards to adopt policies and practices that align the interests of the board and management with those of shareholders and limit the potential for conflicts of interest.

One of the most important measures aimed at ensuring that portfolio company shareholders' interests are represented is an independent board of directors, made up of individuals with the diversity of backgrounds, experiences, and skill-sets needed to effectively oversee management and manage risk. Dimensional expects portfolio company boards to be majority independent.

Dimensional believes that key audit and remuneration committees should be composed of independent directors. Dimensional will generally vote against executive directors of the portfolio company who serve on the audit committee or who serve on the remuneration committee if the remuneration committee is not majority independent.

Dimensional will consider the ASX Corporate Governance Council Principles and Recommendations (the "ASX Principles and Recommendations") with regards to female representation on the board when voting on directors.

CEO/Chair

Dimensional expects portfolio companies to follow the ASX Corporate Governance Council Principles and Recommendations and generally separate the CEO and board chair roles, with the board chair being an independent director.

Auditors

Australian law does not require the annual ratification of auditors; therefore, concerns with a portfolio company's audit practices will be reflected in votes against members of the audit committee.

Dimensional may vote against audit committee members at a portfolio company if there are concerns with the auditor's independence, the accuracy of the auditor's report, the level of non-audit fees, or if lack of disclosure makes it difficult to assess these factors.

Dimensional may also vote against audit committee members in instances of fraud or material failures in oversight of audit functions.

Share Issuances

Dimensional will evaluate requests for share issuances on a case-by-case basis, taking into account factors such as the impact on current shareholders and the rationale for the request.

When voting on approval of prior share distributions, Dimensional will generally support prior issuances that conform to the dilution guidelines set out in ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

Share Repurchase

Dimensional will evaluate requests for share repurchases on a case-by-case basis, taking into account factors such as the impact on current shareholders, the rationale for the request, and the portfolio company's history of repurchases. Dimensional expects repurchases to be made in arms-length transactions using independent third parties.

Dimensional may vote against portfolio company plans that do not include limitations on the portfolio company's ability to use the plan to repurchase shares from third parties at a premium and limitations on the use of share purchases as an anti-takeover device.

Constitution Amendments

Dimensional will evaluate requests for amendments to a portfolio company's constitution on a case-by-case basis. The primary consideration will be the impact on the rights of shareholders.

Non-Executive Director Remuneration

Dimensional will support non-executive director remuneration at portfolio companies that is reasonable in both size and composition relative to industry and market norms.

Dimensional will generally vote against components of non-executive director remuneration that are likely to impair a director's independence, such as options or performance-based remuneration.

Equity-Based Remuneration

Dimensional supports the adoption of equity plans that align the interests of the portfolio company board, management, and portfolio company employees with those of shareholders.

Companies should clearly disclose components of the plan, including vesting periods and performance hurdles.

Dimensional may vote against plans that are exceedingly dilutive to existing shareholders. Plans that permit retesting or repricing will generally be viewed unfavorably.

Framework for Evaluating Japan-Listed Securities

Uncontested Director Elections

Shareholders elect the board of a portfolio company to represent their interests and oversee management and expect portfolio company boards to adopt policies and practices that align the interests of the board and management with those of shareholders and limit the potential for conflicts of interest.

One of the most important measures aimed at ensuring that portfolio company shareholders' interests are represented is an independent board of directors, made up of individuals with the diversity of backgrounds, experiences, and skill sets needed to effectively oversee management and manage risk. With respect to gender diversity, Dimensional may consider local market practice, including requirements under the Japan Corporate Governance Code, and may vote against directors if the board does not meet established market norms.

At portfolio companies with a three-committee structure, Dimensional expects at least one-third of the board to be outsiders. Ideally, the board should be majority independent. At portfolio companies with a three-committee structure that have a controlling shareholder, at least two directors and at least one-third of the board should be independent outsiders.

At portfolio companies with an audit committee structure, Dimensional expects at least one-third of the board to be outsiders. Ideally, the audit committee should be entirely independent; at minimum, any outside directors who serve on the committee should be independent. At portfolio companies with an audit committee structure that have a controlling shareholder, at least two directors and at least one-third of the board should be independent outsiders.

At portfolio companies with a statutory auditor structure, Dimensional expects at least two directors and at least one-third of the board to be outsiders. At portfolio companies with a statutory auditor structure that have a controlling shareholder, at least two directors and at least one-third of the board should be independent outsiders.

Statutory Auditors

Statutory auditors are responsible for effectively overseeing management and ensuring that decisions made are in the best interest of shareholders. Dimensional may vote against statutory auditors who are remiss in their responsibilities.

When voting on outside statutory auditors, Dimensional expects nominees to be independent and to have the capacity to fulfill the requirements of their role as evidenced by attendance at meetings of the board of directors or board of statutory auditors.

Director and Statutory Auditor Compensation

Dimensional will support compensation for portfolio company directors and statutory auditors that is reasonable in both size and composition relative to industry and market norms.

When requesting an increase to the level of director fees, Dimensional expects portfolio companies to provide a specific reason for the increase. Dimensional will generally support an increase of director fees if it is in conjunction with the introduction of performance-based compensation, or where the ceiling for performance-based compensation is being increased. Dimensional will generally not support an increase in director fees if there is evidence that the directors have been remiss in effectively overseeing management or ensuring that decisions made are in the best interest of shareholders.

Dimensional will typically support an increase to the statutory auditor compensation ceiling unless there is evidence that the statutory auditors have been remiss in effectively overseeing management or ensuring that decisions made are in the best interest of shareholders.

Dimensional will generally support the granting of annual bonuses to portfolio company directors and statutory auditors unless there is evidence the board or the statutory auditors have been remiss in effectively overseeing management or ensuring that decisions made are in the best interest of shareholders.

Dimensional generally supports the granting of retirement benefits to portfolio company insiders, so long as the individual payments, and aggregate amount of such payments, is disclosed.

Dimensional will generally vote against the granting of retirement bonuses if there is evidence the portfolio company board or statutory auditors have been remiss in effectively overseeing management or ensuring that decisions made are in the best interest of shareholders.

Equity Based Compensation

Dimensional supports the adoption of equity plans that align the interests of the portfolio company board, management, and portfolio company employees with those of shareholders.

Dimensional will typically support stock option plans to portfolio company executives and employees if total dilution from the proposed plans and previous plans does not exceed 5 percent for mature companies or 10 percent for growth companies.

Dimensional will generally vote against stock plans if upper limit of options that can be issued per year is not disclosed.

For deep-discounted stock option plans, Dimensional typically expects portfolio companies to disclose specific performance hurdles.

Capital Allocation

Dimensional will typically support well-justified dividend payouts that do not negatively impact the portfolio company's overall financial health.

Share Repurchase

Dimensional is typically supportive of portfolio company boards having discretion over share repurchases absent concerns with the portfolio company's balance sheet management, capital efficiency, buyback and dividend payout history, board composition, or shareholding structure.

Dimensional will typically support proposed repurchases that do not have a negative impact on shareholder value.

For repurchases of more than 10 percent of issue share capital, Dimensional expects the portfolio company to provide a robust explanation for the request.

Cross-Shareholding

Dimensional generally believes that portfolio companies should not allocate significant portions of their net assets to investments in companies for noninvestment purposes. For example, in order to strengthen relationships with customers, suppliers, or borrowers. Such cross-shareholding, whether unilateral or reciprocal, can compromise director independence, entrench management, and reduce director accountability to uninterested shareholders. Dimensional may vote against certain directors at companies with excessive cross-shareholdings.

Shareholder Rights Plans (Poison Pills)

Dimensional believes the market for corporate control, which can result in acquisitions that are accretive to shareholders, should be able to function without undue restrictions. Takeover defenses such as poison pills can lead to entrenchment and reduced accountability at the board level.

Indemnification and Limitations on Liability

Dimensional generally supports limitations on liability for directors and statutory auditors in ordinary circumstances.

Limit Legal Liability of External Auditors

Dimensional generally opposes limitations on the liability of external auditors.

Increase in Authorized Capital

Dimensional will typically support requests for increases of less than 100 percent of currently authorized capital, so long as the increase does not leave the portfolio company with less than 30 percent of the proposed authorized capital outstanding.

For increases that exceed these guidelines, Dimensional expects portfolio companies to provide a robust explanation for the increase.

Dimensional will generally not support requests for increases that will be used as an anti-takeover device.

Expansion of Business Activities

For well performing portfolio companies seeking to expand their business into enterprises related to their core business, Dimensional will typically support management requests to amend the portfolio company's articles to expand the portfolio company's business activities.

Framework for Evaluating Securities in Other Select Asian Markets

Uncontested Director Elections

Dimensional expects portfolio companies to disclose biographical information about director candidates sufficient for shareholders to assess the candidate's independence and suitability for board service.

Dimensional expects that portfolio companies will at a minimum meet mandated regulatory or listing standards levels for board independence but should work towards meeting the applicable requirements of the relevant Corporate Governance code.

Dimensional maintains the following expectations for board independence at portfolio companies. The calculation of the level of independence will generally exclude shareholder or employee representatives as provided by law.

- All boards of directors of Malaysian portfolio companies should be at least 33% independent. Boards of directors of Malaysian "Large Companies" as defined by the Securities Commission Malaysia should be majority independent.
- Boards of directors of Indian and Singaporean portfolio companies should be at least 50% independent if the board chair is not independent. If the board chair is independent, the board of directors should be at least 33% independent.
- Boards of directors of Thai, Filipino, Hong Kong and mainland Chinese portfolio companies should be at least 33% independent.
- Boards of directors of Taiwanese portfolio companies should have no fewer than two independent directors and no less than 20% independence.
- Boards of Commissioners of Indonesian portfolio companies should be at least 30% independent, except for banks, insurance companies, and financial institutions which should be 50% independent.
- Boards of directors of South Korean portfolio companies should be at least 25% independent. The board of directors of Large Companies, as defined by the Commercial Act of South Korea, should be majority independent.

Director Remuneration

In most Asian markets, director remuneration generally consists of both fees and bonuses.

Dimensional will generally support the payment of fees for serving as a director, fees for attending meetings, and other market-permitted remuneration if the size of such fees and other director remuneration is reasonable relative to industry and market norms.

In the absence of specific proposals to approve director remuneration (including fees and bonuses), Dimensional may vote against the directors who receive such remuneration if concerns are identified.

Equity Based Remuneration

In most Asian markets, equity plans are developed and presented for shareholder approval as part of employee remuneration. Equity plans may consist of stock options, restricted shares, or performance shares.

When voting on stock-option plans, restricted share plans, and performance share plans, Dimensional will consider the extent to which the plan is performance based, the length of performance and vesting periods, and the treatment of equity upon a change in control.

For stock-option plans, if the plan provides for a discount to the market price, Dimensional will consider the reasonableness and rationale for such a discount in light of local market standards.

In instances where Dimensional has identified concerns with a portfolio company's equity plan or equity granting practices, Dimensional will generally oppose the extension of the plan to subsidiary or associate companies.
DSM CAPITAL PARTNERS LLC

PROXY VOTING

POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY

It is DSM's policy that all proxies be voted solely in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the securities. Proxies are an asset of a client that must be treated with the same care, diligence and loyalty as any asset belonging to a client. Towards that end, DSM is responsible for reviewing proxy proposals for all securities held in its model portfolio investment strategies and for making proxy voting decisions for its clients. DSM's Proxy Voting Policy is below in Exhibit A and it may be amended from time to time. The policy indicates criteria to be used when evaluating proxy issues and positions DSM typically takes on certain proxy proposals. While the policy provides general guidelines, DSM might need to materially deviate from the policy. Also, as a matter of policy, DSM votes proxies for pooled investment vehicles that it manages and for ERISA accounts that require the investment manager to vote proxies. However, clients may wish to vote their own proxies.

PROCEDURES

Proxy Voting Committee

DSM has a Proxy Voting Committee (the "Committee") comprised of Daniel Strickberger, Managing Partner and Chief Investment Officer, Meredith Meyer, Chief Operations Officer, Christopher Bertoni, Head Trader, Blair Barton, Senior Counsel, and Russell Katz, General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer. The Committee meets quarterly and as necessary to discuss proxy issues.

The Committee's role is to help administer and oversee the application of DSM's proxy voting policy. The Committee is responsible for (i) developing and implementing this policy and the procedures described herein; (ii) overseeing and administering proxy voting on behalf of clients; (iii) reviewing proxy voting activity annually and as needed; and (iv) engaging and reviewing the Third-Party Administrator (discussed below).

Procedures for Voting of Proxies

When reviewing a proxy proposal, DSM may consider information from any and all sources. DSM may engage with the issuer of a proxy to discuss specific items and to obtain additional information on the proxy issue. DSM may also engage with management of these securities on a range of environmental, social or governance issues throughout the year. For additional assistance in reviewing proxies, DSM has contracted with an independent third party (currently, Institutional Shareholder Services Inc.) (the "Third Party Administrator") to provide issue analysis and vote recommendations with respect to all proxy proposals. Please see below for additional information on the Third-Party Administrator.

Prior to a proxy voting deadline, a Portfolio Manager/Analyst at DSM will determine how to vote each proxy based on an analysis of the proposal. The Portfolio Manager/Analyst will then review the Policy in Exhibit A to assess whether their determination is consistent with the policy. If the Portfolio Manager/Analyst's determination is inconsistent with DSM's proxy voting policy, the proposal is to be brought to the attention of the Committee for resolution.

Portfolio Managers/Analysts are also responsible for assessing whether there are any material conflicts of interests with respect to a proxy issue. If no material conflicts of interests have been identified, DSM will vote proxies as directed by the Portfolio Manager/Analyst. If a material conflict exists, the conflict is to be brought to the attention of the Committee for resolution. DSM does not engage in any investment banking or corporate finance activities, nor does DSM produce research for publication. However, DSM personnel may have interests in securities, instruments, and companies that may be purchased or sold by DSM for its clients' accounts. The interests of DSM and/or its personnel may conflict with the interests of DSM clients in connection with a proxy issue. If a potential conflict does arise, again, it is to be brought to the attention of the Committee.

DSM is not an "activist" in corporate governance and it is not an automatic supporter of management. Rather, DSM generally believes that the management teams of the companies in its model portfolio investment strategies are seeking to serve their shareholders' interests. As such, DSM believes that managements' proxy voting proposals are typically in the clients' best interest. Therefore, it may be that DSM often votes with the recommendation of management.

Under current regulations, DSM is not required to vote every client proxy. There may be times when refraining from voting is in the client's best interest, such as when an analysis of a particular proxy reveals that the cost of voting may exceed the expected benefit to the client. DSM may also not vote proxies or vote with management when proxies are issued by companies that DSM has sold out of its model portfolio investment strategies. DSM may also not vote proxies or vote with management for securities that were selected/held by a client because of the client's other adviser and/or are unsupervised/non-managed assets as well as for money market securities. Proxies of issuers in certain countries could also cause issues for DSM. There may be administrative or operational issues that could cause DSM to determine that voting a proxy is not in the best interest of a client. In addition, DSM may receive the meeting notice without enough time to fully analyze the proxy or DSM may receive the proxy after the cut-off date. The market may require DSM to have a local agent with power of attorney to vote a proxy. In addition, proxy materials may not be in English. Furthermore, proxy voting in some countries require "Share Blocking". In such cases, a client's shares cannot be sold until the proxy meeting has occurred. DSM generally does not invest in mutual funds of its clients and therefore does not take any action on these proposals. These are just some examples in which DSM may not vote a proxy. In the event DSM votes a proxy in two different directions, such as when clients have different proxy voting policies, DSM shall maintain documentation to support the decision-making process.

Third Party Administrator

The Third-Party Administrator offers a U.S. policy, a European policy, a Canadian policy as well as specialty policies such as a Sustainability policy, a Faith-Based policy, a Taft-Hartley policy and a Public Fund policy, along with custom policies defined by its clients. On June 1, 2021, in an effort to better align its proxy voting policy with its role as a signatory to the Principles for Responsible Investing (PRI), DSM switched from the U.S. policy and the European policy to the Sustainability policy. A copy of all policies can be found at www.issgovernance.com.

As noted above, DSM has retained the Third-Party Administrator to analyze proxies' issues and to make vote recommendations. DSM reviews these recommendations in making its own proxy voting decisions. Each year, the Third-Party Administrator undertakes a process to update the policies that inform its proxy voting recommendations. Typically, the Third-Party Administrator has a policy formulation process that collects feedback from a diverse range of market participants through multiple channels: an annual policy survey of institutional investors and corporate issuers, roundtables with industry groups, and ongoing feedback during proxy season. The Third-Party Administrator uses this input to develop updates on important governance issues, which are then published for open review and comment. This information is also available at www.issgovernance.com.

The Third-Party Administrator will be responsible for executing proxy votes, reporting of proxy voting and recordkeeping. The Third-Party Administrator will coordinate with each client's custodian to help ensure that proxy materials reviewed by the custodians are processed in a timely fashion. In instances in which the Third-Party Administrator is unable to make a vote recommendation, DSM, based on such advice as it deems necessary, will determine the manner in which to vote such proxy.

The Committee will notify the Third-Party Administrator of any changes to the DSM policy or any deviations thereof. DSM periodically samples the voting activity by the Third-Party Administrator for compliance with DSM instructions and conducts sample reconciliations with client account holdings for accuracy. DSM also conducts an annual review of the Third-Party Administrator that is reasonably designed to assess the adequacy and quality of its staffing and personnel, and whether it has policies and procedures that enable it to make proxy voting recommendations based on current and accurate information and to identify and address conflicts of interest relating to its voting recommendations.

Recordkeeping

DSM is required to maintain in an easily accessible place for five years all records relating to proxy voting. These records include the following:

- a copy of its proxy voting policy;
- a copy of each proxy statement received on behalf of DSM's clients;
- a record of each vote cast on behalf of DSM's clients;
- a copy of all documents created by DSM's personnel that were material to making a decision on a vote or that memorializes the basis for the decision; and
- a copy of each written request by a client for information on how DSM voted proxies, as well as a copy of any written response.

DSM reserves the right to maintain certain proxy records with the Third-Party Administrator or any other entity in accordance with all applicable regulations.

Disclosure

Any client may obtain information about how DSM voted its proxies (but not the proxies of another client) and/or a copy of DSM's proxy voting policy, without cost, by calling 561-618-4000 or by writing to DSM at 7111 Fairway Drive, Suite 350, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418, Attn: Legal and Compliance. A client may also obtain information on how DSM voted proxies for the prior calendar year, at both the Firm and model portfolio investment strategy level, at https://dsmcapital.com/stewardship/.

Class Actions & Legal Proceedings

Generally, an investment adviser's ability, authority and responsibility does not include acting on a client's behalf in class actions and/or legal proceedings.

Exhibit A Proxy Voting Policy

MANAGEMENT PROPOSALS

Board of Directors

DSM considers director elections to be a very important voting decisions that shareholders make. Boards should be sufficiently independent from management so as to ensure that they are able and motivated to effectively supervise management's performance for the benefit of all shareholders, including in setting and monitoring the execution of corporate strategy, with appropriate use of shareholder capital, and in setting and monitoring executive compensation programs that support that strategy. The chair of the board should ideally be an independent director, and all boards should have an independent leadership position or a similar role in order to help provide appropriate counterbalance to executive management, as well as having sufficiently independent committees that focus on key governance concerns such as audit, compensation, and nomination of directors.

DSM will generally oppose non-independent director nominees if the board is not composed of a majority of independent directors and will typically vote against or withhold from non-independent directors who sit on key board committees. DSM will also generally vote against or withhold from the chair of the nominating committee, or other nominees on a case-by-case basis, if the board lacks at least one director of an underrepresented gender identity or where the board has no apparent racially or ethnically diverse members. The election of directors who have failed to attend a minimum of 75 percent of board and committee meetings held during the year will generally be opposed. Furthermore, DSM will generally vote against or withhold from a director nominee who serves on an excessive number of boards. A non-CEO director will typically be deemed "overboarded" if they sit on more than five public company boards while CEO directors will be considered as such if they typically serve on more than two public company boards besides their own.

In addition, DSM will generally vote against or withhold from directors individually, committee members, or potentially the entire board, for failure to adequately guard against or manage ESG risks or for lack of sustainability reporting in the company's public documents and/or website in conjunction with a failure to adequately manage or mitigate ESG risks. For companies that are significant greenhouse gas emitters, through their operations or value chain, DSM will generally vote against or withhold from the incumbent chair of the responsible committee (or other directors on a case-by-case basis) in cases where DSM determines that the company is not taking the minimum steps needed to be aligned with a Net Zero by 2050 trajectory.

DSM generally supports requests asking for the separation of the positions of chairman and CEO, and shareholder proposals calling for greater access to the board, affording shareholders the ability to nominate directors to corporate boards. DSM may generally vote against or withhold from directors at companies where problematic pay practices exist, and where boards have not been accountable or responsive to their shareholders.

Board Responsiveness

DSM will vote case-by-case on individual directors, committee members, or the entire board of directors as appropriate if the board fails to act on a shareholder proposal that received the support of a majority of the shares in the previous year. When evaluating board responsiveness issues, DSM takes into account other factors including the board's failure to act on takeover offers where the majority of shares are tendered; if at the previous board election, any director received more than 50 percent withhold/against votes of the shares cast and the company has failed to address the issue(s) that caused the high withhold/against vote; or if the board implements an advisory vote on executive compensation on a less frequent basis than the frequency that received the plurality of votes cast.

Auditors

While it is generally recognized that the company is in the best position to evaluate the competence of its outside accountants, DSM believes that outside accountants must ultimately be accountable to shareholders. Given the rash of accounting irregularities that were not detected by audit panels or auditors over the recent past, shareholder ratification is an essential step in restoring investor confidence. DSM will generally vote against the ratification of the auditor in cases where fees for non-audit services are excessive without adequate explanation.

Takeover Defenses / Shareholder Rights

Topics in this category include shareholders' ability to call a special meeting or act by written consent, the adoption or redemption of poison pills, unequal voting rights, fair price provisions, greenmail, supermajority vote requirements, and confidential voting. DSM will generally vote for management proposals allowing for the convening of shareholder meetings by electronic means, so long as they do not preclude in-person meetings. Companies are encouraged to disclose the circumstances under which virtual-only meetings would be held, and to allow for comparable rights and opportunities for shareholders to participate electronically as they would have during an in-person meeting. DSM generally opposes takeover defenses, as they limit shareholder value by eliminating the takeover or control premium for the company. As owners of the company, shareholders should be given the opportunity to decide on the merits of takeover offers. Further, takeover devices can be used to entrench a board that is unresponsive to shareholders on both governance and corporate social responsibility issues.

Capital Structures

Capital structure related topics include proposals for increases in authorized stock, stock splits and reverse stock splits, issuances of blank check preferred stock, debt restructurings, and share repurchase plans. DSM typically supports a one-share, one-vote policy and generally opposes mechanisms that skew voting rights. DSM typically supports capital requests that provide companies with adequate financing flexibility while protecting shareholders from excessive dilution of their economic and voting interests. Proposals to increase common stock are evaluated by DSM on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the company's past use of share authorizations and elements of the current request.

Executive and Director Compensation

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act requires advisory shareholder votes on executive compensation (Say on Pay), an advisory vote on the frequency of say on pay, as well as a shareholder advisory vote on golden parachute compensation. DSM will generally vote against Say on Pay proposals if there is an unmitigated misalignment between CEO pay and company performance, the company maintains problematic pay practices, and the board exhibits a significant level of poor communication and responsiveness to shareholders. DSM will vote case-by-case on certain equity-based compensation plans depending on a combination of certain plan features and equity grant practices, where positive factors may counterbalance negative factors, and vice versa, as evaluated using an "equity plan scorecard" approach.

Mergers and Corporate Restructurings

Mergers, acquisitions, spinoffs, re-incorporations, and other corporate restructuring plans are evaluated by DSM on a case-by-case basis, given the potential for significant impact on shareholder value and on shareholders' economic interests. In addition, these corporate actions can have a significant impact on community stakeholders and the workforce, and may affect the levels of employment, community lending, equal opportunity, and impact on the environment.

Miscellaneous Governance Provisions

DSM evaluates proposals that concern governance issues such as shareholder meeting adjournments, quorum requirements, corporate name changes, and bundled or conditional proposals on a case-by-case basis taking into account the impact on shareholder rights.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Shareholder Proposals on Corporate Governance and Executive Compensation

Shareholder proposals include, but are not limited to, board-related issues, shareholder rights and board accountability issues, as well as compensation matters. Each year, shareholders file numerous proposals that address key issues regarding corporate governance and executive compensation. DSM seeks to evaluates these proposals from the perspective that good corporate governance practices can have positive implications for a company and its ability to maximize shareholder value. Proposals that seek to improve a board's accountability to its shareholders and other stakeholders are generally supported.

Shareholder Proposals on Social and Environmental Topics

Shareholder proposals on social and environmental topics include, but are not limited to, workplace diversity and safety topics, codes of conduct, labor standards and human rights, the environment and energy, weapons, consumer welfare, and public safety. Socially responsible shareholder resolutions are receiving a great deal more attention from institutional shareholders than they have in the past. In addition to the moral and ethical considerations of these proposals, there is a growing recognition of their potential impact on the economic performance of the company. While focusing on value enhancement through risk mitigation and exposure to new sustainability-related opportunities, these proposals also seek standardized reporting on ESG issues, request information regarding an issuer's adoption of, or adherence to, relevant norms, standards, codes of conduct or universally recognized international initiatives to promote disclosure and transparency. DSM generally supports standards-based ESG shareholder proposals that enhance long-term shareholder value while aligning the interests of the company with those of society at large.

FRONTIER CAPITAL MANAGEMENT COMPANY, LLC PROXY VOTING STATEMENT AND GUIDELINES DECEMBER 2023

As an investment adviser and fiduciary of client assets, Frontier utilizes proxy voting policies and procedures intended to pursue its clients' best interest by protecting the value of clients' investments. Frontier recognizes that proxies have an economic value. In voting proxies, we seek to both maximize the long-term value of our clients' assets and to cast votes that we believe to be fair and in the best interest of the affected client(s). Proxies are considered client assets and are managed with the same care, skill and diligence as all other client assets. These written proxy policies and procedures are designed to reasonably ensure that Frontier votes proxies in the best interest of clients for whom Frontier has voting authority.

Frontier's authority to vote proxies does not extend to taking any legal action with regard to class action suits relating to securities purchased by Frontier for its clients. Frontier provides instructions to custodians and brokers regarding tender offers and rights offerings for securities in client accounts. However, Frontier does not provide legal advice to clients and, accordingly, does not determine whether a client should join, opt out of or otherwise submit a claim with respect to any legal proceedings, including bankruptcies or class actions, involving securities held or previously held by the client. Frontier generally does not have authority to submit claims or elections on behalf of clients in legal proceedings. Should a client, however, wish to retain legal counsel and/or take action regarding any class action suit proceeding, Frontier will provide the client or the client's legal counsel with information that may be needed upon the client's reasonable request.

Arrangements with Outside Firms

Frontier has contracted with a third-party vendor (the "proxy vendor") to provide vote recommendations according to a set of pre-determined proxy voting policy guidelines. Frontier has also contracted with the proxy vendor to act as agent for the proxy voting process and to maintain records on proxy voting for our clients. The vendor has represented to Frontier that it uses its best efforts to ensure that its proxy voting recommendations are in accordance with these policies as well as relevant requirements of the ERISA and the U.S. Department of Labor's interpretations thereof.

There may be occasional circumstances in which Frontier exercises its voting discretion to deviate from the proxy vendor's recommendation. Frontier's action in these cases is described in the Conflicts of Interest section of these policies and procedures.

Proxy Voting Committee

Frontier has a Proxy Voting Committee (the "Committee") that is responsible for deciding what is in the best interest of clients when determining how proxies are voted. The Committee is comprised of the Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO"), the Operations Manager, and one or more Portfolio Managers. The Committee performs the following tasks in satisfying its responsibility:

- Reviews annually, and revises as necessary, this Proxy Voting Statement and Guidelines (the "Proxy Statement");
- Reviews annually all proxy votes taken to determine if those votes were consistent with the Proxy Statement, including any votes where Frontier
 determined it had a material conflict of interest;
- Reviews annually the proxy vendor's proxy voting policies to determine that they continue to be consistent with the Proxy Statement and reasonably designed to be in the best interests of Frontier's clients; and
- · Reviews and approves as necessary any changes to the proxy vendor's proxy voting policies.

Determination and Execution of Discretionary Authority

Except where the contract is silent, each client will designate in its investment management contract whether it would like to retain proxy voting authority or delegate that authority to Frontier. If a client contract is silent on whether the client delegates proxy voting authority to Frontier, Frontier will be implied to have proxy voting authority.

Frontier will not neglect its proxy voting responsibilities, but Frontier may abstain from voting if it deems that abstaining is in its Clients' best interests. For example, Frontier may be unable to vote securities that have been lent by the custodian or may choose not to vote where doing so would prevent transacting in those securities for a certain period of time (referred to as "share blocking").

Proxy Voting Process

Frontier's Operations team ("Operations") manages the proxy voting process. The proxy vendor provides an online portal that shows all ballots received, together with the company's voting recommendation and the proxy vendor's voting recommendation. Operations distributes this information, as well as any additional proxy soliciting materials (such as a company's response to the proxy vendor's recommendation) received by Frontier at least three days prior to the voting date, to an investment professional for deliberation. Prior to the voting date, Operations submits Frontier's vote via the online portal, a record of which is maintained by the proxy vendor.

Investment professionals determine how Frontier votes client proxies. Absent specific client instructions, or in the event that no determination is made by the investment professional, Frontier generally votes client proxies according to recommendations made by the proxy vendor. Investment professionals wishing to deviate from these recommendations must provide the CCO with a written explanation of the reason for the deviation, and the CCO will consider potential conflicts of interest as described in greater detail below.

Any attempt to influence the proxy voting process by Issuers or others not identified in these policies and procedures must also be promptly reported to the CCO. Similarly, any Client's attempt to influence proxy voting with respect to other Clients' securities should be promptly reported to the CCO.

Voting Proxies for Loaned Securities

Neither Frontier nor the proxy vendor are able to vote proxies for securities loaned out by a Client. In the event that Frontier is aware of a material vote on behalf of a Client that is a registered investment company and Frontier has the ability to call back the security loaned, Frontier may attempt to call back to the loan and vote the proxy if time permits.

Conflicts of Interest

As noted, Frontier has adopted the proxy vendor's proxy voting guidelines. The adoption of these proxy voting guidelines provides pre-determined policies for voting proxies and is thus designed to remove conflicts of interest. Examples of such conflicts are when we vote a proxy solicited by an issuer who is a client of ours or with whom we have another business or personal relationship that may affect how we vote on the issuer's proxy. The intent of this policy is to remove any discretion that Frontier may have to interpret how to vote proxies in cases where Frontier has a material conflict of interest or the appearance of a material conflict of interest.

Although under normal circumstances Frontier is not expected to deviate from the proxy vendor's recommendation, the CCO will monitor any situation where Frontier wishes to do so. In these situations, the CCO will consider whether Frontier has a material conflict of interest. If the CCO determines that a material conflict exists, Frontier will vote the proxy using either of the following two methods: (a) we will follow the recommendations of the proxy vendor; or (b) we will not take into consideration the relationship that gave rise to the conflict and will vote the proxy in the best interest of our clients. If the CCO determines that a material conflict does not exist, then we may vote the proxy in our discretion. The Committee reviews annually all votes cast where Frontier determined it had a material conflict of interest.

Proxy Vendor Oversight

Changes to Proxy Vendor Proxy Voting Policies and Guidelines

The proxy vendor notifies Frontier of any material changes to its proxy voting polices and guidelines. On an annual basis, the proxy vendor distributes its updated guidelines to Frontier.

New Account Setup

As part of the account setup process, Client Services will review a new investment advisory agreement to determine if Frontier has voting authority. If voting authority has been granted, Operations will provide the proxy vendor with the required instructions to set up the new account. On the following business day, Operations will review the proxy vendor's systems to confirm the account was setup in accordance with Frontier's instructions.

Account Reconciliations

On a periodic basis, the proxy vendor will provide Frontier with a list of Frontier clients for which the proxy vendor is voting. This is designed to ensure that the proxy vendor is voting for all clients for whom Frontier retains voting authority. In that regard, Frontier will conduct a periodic reconciliation between its records and the proxy vendor's records.

Initial and Periodic Due Diligence of Proxy Vendors

When considering whether to retain or continue retaining Frontier's proxy vendor to provide research or voting recommendations, Frontier will consider factors such as the following:

- The proxy vendor's capacity and competency to adequately analyze the matters for which the investment adviser is responsible for voting;
- The adequacy and quality of the proxy vendor's personnel, processes, and technology;
- The adequacy of the proxy vendor's process for seeking timely input from issuers and proxy vendor clients with respect to proxy voting policies, methodologies, and peer group constructions, including for "say-on-pay" votes;
- The proxy vendor's engagement with issuers, including the firm's process for ensuring that it has complete and accurate information about the issuer and each particular matter, and the firm's process, if any, for investment advisers to access the issuer's views about the firm's voting recommendations in a timely and efficient manner
- The adequacy of the proxy vendor's disclosures regarding its sources of information and methodologies for formulating voting recommendations and, in making such recommendations;
- The proxy vendor's consideration of factors unique to a specific issuer or proposal when evaluating a matter subject to a shareholder vote.
- The proxy vendor's policies and procedures for identifying and addressing conflicts of interest;

- The proxy vendor to update the investment adviser regarding business changes that may affect the proxy vendor's capacity and competency to provide independent proxy voting advice or carry out voting instructions;
- Whether the proxy vendor appropriately updates its methodologies, guidelines, and voting recommendations on an ongoing basis, including in response to feedback from issuers and their shareholders; and
- The proxy voting vendor's policies and procedures to keep confidential Frontier's non-public information, including Frontier's intention to proxy votes.

Votes Cast Other than According to the Proxy Vendor's Pre-Determined Policies

Frontier's CCO, who is also the General Counsel, will periodically confirm that all documentation regarding any decisions to vote other than according to the proxy vendor's pre-determined policies is accurate and complete.

Client Disclosure

Frontier includes a description of its policies and procedures regarding proxy voting and class actions in Part 2 of Form ADV, along with a statement that Clients can contact Frontier at 617-261-0777 to obtain a copy of these policies and procedures and information about how Frontier voted with respect to the Client's securities. Any request for information about proxy voting or class actions should be promptly forwarded to the CCO, who will respond to any such requests.

Upon a client's request, the proxy agent will provide Frontier with the following information:

- the name of the issuer of the portfolio security
- the ticker symbol of the security
- the CUSIP of the security
- the shareholder meeting date
- a description of the matter voted on
- whether the matter was proposed by the issuer or by a security holder
- whether the account voted on the matter
- how each proxy proposal was voted (e.g., for or against the proposal, abstain; for or withhold authority regarding election of directors)
- · whether the vote that was cast was for or against management's recommendation

As a matter of policy, Frontier does not disclose to companies or clients how it expects to vote on upcoming proxies. Additionally, Frontier does not disclose the way it voted proxies to unaffiliated third parties without a legitimate need to know such information.

Recordkeeping

Frontier will maintain in an easily accessible place for a period of six years, the first two years in an appropriate Frontier office, the following documents (except documents maintained on Frontier's behalf by the proxy agent as specifically noted below):

- · Frontier's proxy voting policies and procedures and the proxy voting guidelines;
- proxy statements received regarding client securities, which Frontier may satisfy by relying on the proxy agent, on Frontier's behalf, to retain a copy of each proxy statement;



- records of votes cast on behalf of its clients, which Frontier may satisfy by relying on the proxy agent to retain, on Frontier's behalf, a record of the vote cast;
- a copy of any document created by Frontier personnel that was material to making a decision on how to vote proxies on behalf of a client or that
 memorialized the basis for that decision; and
- a copy of each written client request for information on how Frontier voted proxies on behalf of the client, and a copy of any written response by
 Frontier to any written or oral client request for information on how Frontier voted proxies on behalf of the requesting client.

Frontier retains the following information in connection with each proxy vote:

- the Issuer's name;
- the security's ticker symbol or CUSIP, as applicable;
- the shareholder meeting date;
- the number of shares that the Company cast or instructed to be cast;
- the number of shares loaned and not recalled (if subject to Form N-PX);
- a brief identification of the matter voted on;
- · whether the matter was proposed by the Issuer or a security-holder; and
- how the Company cast its vote (for, against, or abstain)

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC

Proxy Voting

Responsibility to Vote Proxies

As an investment adviser, Brandywine Global owes its clients a duty of care and loyalty with respect to services undertaken on their behalf, including proxy voting. Rule 206(4)-6 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 requires an investment adviser who exercises voting authority with respect to client securities to adopt and implement written policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to ensure that the investment adviser votes proxies in the best interest of its clients.

Client Accounts for which Brandywine Global Votes Proxies

Brandywine Global votes proxies for each client account for which the client has specifically delegated to Brandywine Global the power to vote proxies in the applicable investment management agreement or other written document, or in instances where the client has assigned Brandywine Global investment discretion over their account. Brandywine Global also votes proxies for any employee benefit plan client subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), unless the applicable investment management agreement specifically reserves the responsibility for voting proxies to the plan trustees or other named fiduciary.

At or prior to the inception of each client account, Brandywine Global will determine whether it has proxy voting authority over such account. In instances where the client has retained proxy voting responsibility, Brandywine Global will have no involvement in the proxy voting process for that client.

General Principles

In exercising discretion to vote proxies for securities held in client accounts, Brandywine Global is guided by general fiduciary principles. Brandywine Global's goal in voting proxies is to act prudently and solely in the best economic interest of its clients. In furtherance of such goal, Brandywine Global will vote proxies in a manner that Brandywine Global believes will be consistent with efforts to maximize shareholder value and to protect shareholder interests.

Brandywine Global does not exercise its proxy voting discretion to further policy, political or other issues that have no connection to enhancing the economic value of a client's investment. As part of its fiduciary duty, Brandywine Global does consider environmental, social, and governance issues that may impact the value of an investment, through introducing opportunity or by creating risk, or both.

How Brandywine Global Votes Proxies

Appendix A sets forth general guidelines considered by Brandywine Global in voting common proxy items.

In the case of a proxy issue for which there is a stated position set forth in Appendix A, Brandywine Global generally votes in accordance with the stated position. In the case of a proxy issue for which there is no stated position set forth in Appendix A, Brandywine Global votes on a case-by-case basis in accordance with the General Principles.

The general guidelines set forth in Appendix A are not binding on Brandywine Global, but rather are intended to provide an analytical framework for the review and assessment of common proxy issues. Such guidelines can always be superseded based on an assessment of the proxy issue and determination that a vote that is contrary to such general guidelines is in the best economic interests of client accounts. Different portfolio management teams within Brandywine Global may vote differently on the same issue based on their respective assessments of the proxy issue and determinations as to what is in the best economic interests of client accounts for which they are responsible.

Use of an Independent Proxy Service Firm

Brandywine Global may contract with an independent proxy service firm to provide Brandywine Global with certain services, including but not limited to, information or recommendations with regard to proxy votes or other administrative support. Brandywine Global is not required to follow any recommendation furnished by such service provider. The use of an independent proxy service firm to provide proxy voting information or recommendations does not relieve Brandywine Global of its responsibility for any proxy votes.

With respect to any independent proxy service firm engaged by Brandywine Global to provide Brandywine Global with information or recommendations with regard to proxy votes, Brandywine Global will periodically review and assess such firm's policies, procedures and practices including those with respect to the disclosure and handling of conflicts of interest.

Conflict of Interest Procedures

In furtherance of Brandywine Global's goal to vote proxies in the best interests of clients, Brandywine Global follows procedures designed to identify and address material conflicts that may arise between the interests of Brandywine Global and its employees and those of its clients before voting proxies on behalf of such clients. Conflicts of interest may arise as a result of the firm's business or as a result of an employee's personal relationships or circumstances.

A. Procedures for Identifying Conflicts of Interest

Brandywine Global relies on the procedures set forth below to seek to identify conflicts of interest with respect to proxy voting.

1. Brandywine Global's Compliance Department annually requires each Brandywine Global employee to complete a questionnaire designed to elicit information that may reveal potential conflicts between the employee's interests and those of Brandywine Global clients.

2. Brandywine Global treats client relationships as creating a material conflict of interest for Brandywine Global in voting proxies with respect to securities issued by such client or its known affiliates.

3. As a general matter, Brandywine Global takes the position that relationships between a non-Brandywine Global Franklin Resources business unit and an issuer (*e.g.*, investment management relationship between an issuer and a non-Brandywine Global Franklin Resources-owned asset manager) do not present a conflict of interest for Brandywine Global in voting proxies with respect to such issuer because Brandywine Global operates as an independent business unit from other Franklin Resources business units and because of the existence of informational barriers between Brandywine Global and certain other Franklin Resources business units.

B. Procedures for Assessing Materiality of Conflicts of Interest

1. All potential conflicts of interest identified must be brought to the attention of the Investment Committee for resolution.

2. The Investment Committee determines whether a conflict of interest is material. A conflict of interest will be considered material to the extent that it is determined that such conflict is likely to influence, or appear to influence, Brandywine Global's decision-making in voting the proxy. All materiality determinations will be based on an assessment of the particular facts and circumstances. A written record of all materiality determinations made by the Investment Committee will be maintained.

3. If it is determined by the Investment Committee that a conflict of interest is not material, Brandywine Global may vote proxies following normal processes notwithstanding the existence of the conflict.

C. Procedures for Addressing Material Conflicts of Interest

1. With the exception of those material conflicts identified in A.2. which will be voted in accordance with paragraph C.1.b. below, if it is determined by the Investment Committee that a conflict of interest is material, the Investment Committee will determine an appropriate method or combination of methods to resolve such conflict of interest before the proxy affected by the conflict of interest is voted by Brandywine Global. Such determination will be based on the particular facts and circumstances, including the importance of the proxy issue, the nature of the conflict of interest, etc. Such methods may include:

- a. confirming that the proxy will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of an independent proxy service firm retained by Brandywine Global;
- b. in the case of a conflict of interest resulting from a particular employee's personal relationships or circumstances, removing such employee from the decision-making process with respect to such proxy vote; or
- c. such other method as is deemed appropriate given the particular facts and circumstances.

2. A written record of the method used to resolve a material conflict of interest will be maintained.

Other Considerations

In certain situations, Brandywine Global may decide not to vote proxies on behalf of a client account for which it has discretionary voting authority because Brandywine Global believes that the expected benefit to the client account of voting shares is outweighed by countervailing considerations (excluding the existence of a potential conflict of interest). Examples of situations in which Brandywine Global may determine not to vote proxies are set forth below.

A. Share Blocking

Proxy voting in certain countries requires "share blocking." This means that shareholders wishing to vote their proxies must deposit their shares shortly before the date of the meeting (e.g. one week) with a designated depositary. During the blocking period, shares that will be voted at the meeting cannot be sold until the meeting has taken place and the shares have been returned to client accounts by the designated depositary. In deciding whether to vote shares subject to share blocking, Brandywine Global may consider and weigh, based on the particular facts and circumstances, the expected benefit to client accounts of voting in relation to the potential detriment to clients of not being able to sell such shares during the applicable period.

B. Securities on Loan

Certain clients of Brandywine Global, such as an institutional client or a registered investment company for which Brandywine Global acts as a subadviser, may engage in securities lending with respect to the securities in their accounts. Brandywine Global typically does not direct or oversee such securities lending activities. To the extent feasible and practical under the circumstances, Brandywine Global may request that the client recall shares that are on loan so that such shares can be voted if Brandywine Global believes that the expected benefit to the client of voting such shares outweighs the detriment to the client of recalling such shares (*e.g.*, foregone income). The ability to timely recall shares for proxy voting purposes typically is not entirely within the control of Brandywine Global and requires the cooperation of the client and its other service providers. Under certain circumstances, the recall of shares in time for such shares to be voted may not be possible due to applicable proxy voting record dates and administrative considerations.

Proxy Voting-Related Disclosures

A. Proxy Voting Independence and Intent

Brandywine Global exercises its proxy voting authority independently of other Franklin Resources-owned asset managers. Brandywine Global and its employees will not consult with or enter into any formal or informal agreements with Brandywine Global's ultimate parent, Franklin Resources, Inc., any other Franklin Resources business unit, or any of their respective officers, directors or employees, regarding the voting of any securities by Brandywine Global on behalf of its clients.

Brandywine Global and its employees may not disclose to any person outside of Brandywine Global, including without limitation another investment management firm (affiliated or unaffiliated) how Brandywine Global intends to vote a proxy without prior approval from Brandywine Global's Chief Compliance Officer. Prior approval is not required in instances where Brandywine Global discloses directly to representatives of an issuer how Brandywine Global intends to vote a proxy so long as the disclosure is made solely to representatives of the issuer and Brandywine Global believes that the disclosure is in the best interests of its clients.

If a Brandywine Global employee receives a request to disclose Brandywine Global's proxy voting intentions to another person outside of Brandywine Global (including an employee of another Franklin Resources business unit) in connection with an upcoming proxy voting matter, the employee should immediately notify Brandywine Global's Chief Compliance Officer.

If a Brandywine Global portfolio manager wants to take a public stance with regards to a proxy, the portfolio manager must consult with and obtain the approval of Brandywine Global's Chief Compliance Officer before making or issuing a public statement.

B. Disclosure of Proxy Votes and Policy and Procedures

Upon Brandywine Global's receipt of any oral or written client request for information on how Brandywine Global voted proxies for that client's account, Brandywine Global will promptly provide the client with such requested information in writing.

Brandywine Global will deliver to each client, for which it has proxy voting authority, no later than the time it accepts such authority, a written summary of this Proxy Voting policy and procedures. This summary must include information on how clients may obtain information about how Brandywine Global has voted proxies for their accounts and must also state that a copy of Brandywine Global's Proxy Voting policy and procedures is available upon request.

Brandywine Global must create and maintain a record of each written client request for proxy voting information. Such record must be created promptly after receipt of the request and must include the date the request was received, the content of the request, and the date of Brandywine Global's response. Brandywine Global must also maintain copies of written client requests and copies of all responses to such requests.

C. Delegation of Duties

Brandywine Global may delegate to non-investment personnel the responsibility to vote proxies in accordance with the guidelines set forth in Appendix A. Such delegation of duties will only be made to employees deemed to be reasonably capable of performing this function in a satisfactory manner.

Proxy Engagement and Certain Non-Proxy Voting Matters

Brandywine Global may determine that it is appropriate and beneficial to engage in a dialogue or written communication with a company or other shareholders regarding certain matters on a company's proxy statement from time to time, if and to the extent that Brandywine Global determines that doing so is consistent with law and applicable general fiduciary principles. A company or shareholder may also seek to engage with Brandywine Global in advance of the company's formal proxy solicitation to review issues more generally or gauge support for certain proposals.

Absent a specific contrary written agreement with a client or other legal obligation, Brandywine Global does not (1) render any advice to, or take any action on behalf of, clients with respect to any legal proceedings, including bankruptcies and shareholder litigation, to which any securities or other investments held in client accounts, or the issuers thereof, become subject, or (2) initiate or pursue legal proceedings, including without limitation shareholder litigation, on behalf of clients with respect to transactions or securities or other investments held in client accounts, or the issuers thereof. Except as otherwise agreed to in writing with a particular client, the right to take any action with respect to any legal proceeding, including without limitation bankruptcies and shareholder litigation, and the right to initiate or pursue any legal proceedings, including without limitation, with respect to transactions or securities or other investments held in a client account is expressly reserved to the client.

Recordkeeping

In addition to all other records required by this Policy and Procedures, Brandywine Global will maintain the following records relating to proxy voting:

- A. a copy of this Policy and Procedures, including any and all amendments that may be adopted;
- B. a copy of each proxy statement that Brandywine Global receives regarding client securities;
- C. a record of each vote cast by Brandywine Global on behalf of a client;
- D. documentation relating to the identification and resolution of conflicts of interest;
- E. any documents created by Brandywine Global that were material to a proxy voting decision or that memorialized the basis for that decision;
- F. a copy of each written client request for information on how Brandywine Global voted proxies on behalf of the client, and a copy of any written response by Brandywine Global to any (written or oral) client request for information on how Brandywine Global voted proxies on behalf of the requesting client; and
- G. records showing whether or not Brandywine Global has proxy voting authority for each client account.

All required records will be maintained and preserved in an easily accessible place for a period of not less than six years from the end of the fiscal year during which the last entry was made on such record, the first two years in an appropriate office of Brandywine Global. Brandywine Global also will maintain a copy of any proxy voting policies and procedures that were in effect at any time within the last five years.

To the extent that Brandywine Global is authorized to vote proxies for a United States registered investment company, Brandywine Global will maintain such records as are necessary to allow such fund to comply with its recordkeeping, reporting and disclosure obligations under applicable laws, rules and regulations.

In lieu of keeping copies of proxy statements, Brandywine Global may rely on proxy statements filed on the EDGAR system as well as on third party records of proxy statements if the third party provides an undertaking to provide copies of such proxy statements promptly upon request. Brandywine Global may rely on a third party to make and retain, on Brandywine Global's behalf, records of votes cast by Brandywine Global on behalf of clients if the third party provides an undertaking to promptly upon request.

Appendix A <u>Proxy Voting Guidelines</u>

Below are proxy voting guidelines that Brandywine Global generally follows when voting proxies for securities held in client accounts. One or more portfolio management teams may decide to deviate from these guidelines with respect to any one or more particular proxy votes, subject in all cases to the duty to act solely in the best interest of client accounts holding the applicable security.

I. Compensation

- A. We vote for non-employee director stock options, unless we consider the number of shares available for issue excessive.
- B. We vote for employee stock purchase programs.
- C. We vote for compensation plans that are tied to the company achieving set profitability hurdles.
- D. We vote against attempts to re-price options. Also, we vote against the re-election of incumbent Directors in the event of such a re-pricing proposal.
- E. We vote against attempts to increase incentive stock options available if they are excessive, either in total or for one individual.
- F. We vote against stock option plans allowing for stock options with exercise prices less than 100% of the stock's price at the time of the option grant.
- G. We vote for measures that give shareholders a vote on executive compensation.

II. Governance

- A. We vote for proposals to separate the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board positions.
- B. We vote against "catch-all" authorizations permitting proxy holders to conduct unspecified business that arises during shareholder meetings.

III. Anti-Takeover

We vote against anti-takeover measures, including without limitation:

- A. Staggered Boards of Directors (for example, where 1/3 of a company's Board is elected each year rather than the entire Board each year).
- B. Super-Majority Voting Measures (for example, requiring a greater than 50% vote to approve takeovers or make certain changes).

C. Poison Pills, which are special stock rights that go into effect upon a takeover offer or an outsider acquiring more than a specified percentage of a company's outstanding shares.

IV. Capital Structure

We vote against attempts to increase authorized shares by more than twice the number of outstanding shares unless there is a specific purpose for such increase given, such as a pending stock split or a corporate purchase using shares, and we determine that increasing authorized shares for such purpose is appropriate.

February 2024